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Directors’ Report for the year 2014 -15:

Your Board of Directors has great pleasure in
presenting the ninety third Annual Report with the
Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2015, the
Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow
Statement for the year ended March 31, 2015.

1. Overall Economic Review:

For the year 2014-15 as a whole, India's
Current Account Deficit (CAD) narrowed sharply to
1.3% of GDP primarily on account of a decline in
gold imports and the fall in international crude
prices. Import of petroleum oil lubricants (PIL) and
other non imports also contracted with the
weakening of domestic demand, though there was
some growth in exports. In April 2015, the trade
deficit narrowed to 0.9% due to low external demand
and cooling commodity prices and the ongoing
shrinking of import demand. The Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) is expected to improve from 7.2% in
2014-15t07.5%in 2015-16 if inflation moderates as
anticipated. The inflation rate for March 2015 was
5.17%.

2. Banking Scenario:

With credit and deposit growth moving
broadly in tandem, liquidity conditions in the system
remained comfortable throughout, barring transient
liquidity mismatches. Currency demand started
picking up since the beginning of the third quarter
with the onset of the festival season and drained
some liquidity, but timely liquidity provision by the
Reserve Bank softened these short-lived spikes.

In the credit market, subdued activity in the
first half of the year picked up from the third quarter
(Q3) as banks shifted their portfolios towards retail
lending, especially housing. Credit flow to the
industrial sector — particularly to food processing
and basic metals and services- also improved
modestly. Reflecting the generally sluggish demand
for credit as also regulatory requirements relating to
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the liquidity coverage ratio (LCR), banks'
investments in G-secs on the other hand, showed a
sharp increase during 2014-15. Excess SLR
holdings of banks increased significantly as a
consequence. Banks have been rebalancing their
lending portfolio away from sectors in which their
assets are under stress to relatively stress free sectors
such as retail housing and automobiles. Following
the 50 basis points reduction in the policy rate in the
fourth quarter (Q4), 22 banks have reduced their
median term deposit rates in the range of 7-53 bps
while 14 banks reduced their base rates in the range
0f 10-50 bps.

Liquidity conditions improved during Q3 of
2014-15, reflecting a confluence of structural and
frictional factors, barring temporary pressures
around festival days and mid-December advance tax
payments. In Q4, liquidity conditions tightened
since the second week of January 2015 with
cutbacks in government spending, pick-up in credit
demand and seasonal increase in currency demand.
The Reserve Bank's pro-active liquidity
management operations ensured that the call rates
stayed range bound around the policy rate, reducing
day-to-day volatility.

Reserve Bank of India had tightened the
monetary policy stand last year which helpled
contain demand pressures and volatality of rupee.
With the easing of inflationary conditions RBI
softened the monetary policy stance by cutting the
policy repo rates by 25 basis points in January 2015.
Subsequently the statutory liquidity ratio was also
reduced by 50 basis points, reducing the SLR from
22% to 21.50%. In the monetary policy statements
issued in the months of March 2015 and June 2015,
RBI reduced the policy rates by 25 basis points each.
However, Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) and Cash
Reserve Ratio (CRR) have been keptunchanged.

The bank's deposits position grew by
13.27% and the advances position by 12.79% during
the year under review as against the banking industry
average of 12.78% and 12.60% respectively. The
gross NPA position the Bank improved from 2.46%
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to 1.63% whereas in the banking industry as a whole
it worsened from 4.10% to 4.45%. Similarly while
~ the net NPA position in the industry deteriorated
from 2.20% to 2.36% during the year under review,
the bank improved the position from 1.22% to
0.67%. .

3. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:

The Bank had a successful year in its 93rd
year of operations and recorded an all-round
satisfactory performance. During the year under
review, the total business increased from ¥ 39,789.53
crore to X 44,985.81 crore, registering a growth of
13.06%. The gross NPAs and net NPAs both in
absolute terms and as a percentage of total advances
decreased over the previous year.

Performance Highlights:

» The Net profit increased from X 300.77 crore
t03379.40 crore (+26.14%).

» The deposits of the Bank increased from ¥
22,645.68 crore to I 25,649.86 crore
(+13.27%) during the year.

» The advances increased from ¥ 17,143.85
crore to X 19,335.95 crore (+12.79%) during
the year.

» The Gross NPAs decreased from 2.46% to
1.63%.

» The Net NPAs decreased from 1.22% to
0.67%. :

» Thetotal income increased by X 204.52 crore
during the year from¥2,922.91crore in the
previous year to < 3,127.43 crore during the
year under review representing 7.00%
growth,

Interest income rose by X 132.88 crore from
%2702.65 croretoX 2,835.53crore. Other income
increased by 71.64 crore to ¥ 291.90 crore during
the current year. The increase in total expenditure
was at< 210.31 crore. The total expenditure rose
from¥ 2,309.74 crore during the previous year to
%2520.05 crore during the current year. Earnings
per share increased from ¥ 10,573 toX 13,338,
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4. PROFITAND APPROPRIATION:

The net profit stood at I 379.40 crore
(previous year ¥ 300.77 crore) after making all
necessary provisions under various categories as per
the prudential norms prescribed by Reserve Bank of
India. After adding thereto the surplus of X 3.86
crore brought forward from the year 2013-2014,
there was an available balance of ¥ 383.26 crore,
which has been appropriated as under:

Transfer to: Rs.in Crore

Statutory Reserve 119.75
Special Reserve U/s 36(1) (viii)of 17.50
IT Act, 1961 :
General Reserve 189.00
Investment Reserve 0.94
First Interim Dividend @ 9000% 25.60
Tax on Interim Dividend 5.12
Proposed Second Interim 19.91
Dividend @ 7000% - )
Tax on proposed Interim Dividend 4.05
Balance carried over to next year 1.39

Total 383.26

5. DIVIDEND:

Considering the profit earned and the overall
growth in the business of your Bank during the year,
your Directors were pleased to declare a second
interim dividend of 7000% on June 1, 2015 payable
to all the members as on the record date of June 26,
2015 (considering the first interim dividend of
9000% paid in the month of January 2015 the total
dividend for the year comes to 16000%, i.e. X 1600
per equity share of X 10 each) involving an outgo of
¥ 54.68 crore (including dividend distribution tax)
towards dividend to the shareholders for their
approval.

6. CAPITALAND RESERVES

The Capital and Reserves of your Bank stand
increased to ¥ 2,594.31 crore from the previous
year's level of ¥2,269.60 crore, showing an increase
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of 14.31% after

appropriations.

effecting the above mentioned

Sec 36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
provides for deduction in respect of any Special
Reserve created and maintained to the extent 0f20%
of the profit derived from the business of providing
long term finance for industrial or agricultural
development or development of infrastructure
facility or housing in India. Accordingly, the Bank
has created a Special Reserve of ¥ 17.50 crore
during the year to avail of the tax benefit under Sec
36(1)(viii) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

7. CAPITAL ADEQUACY
The accretion to capital funds during the year

amounted to I 324.71 crore which raised the net
worth of the Bank t0¥2,594.31 crore. The Capital to
Risk Weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) stood at
13.89% (as per Basel III) as on March 31, 2015,
which is more than the minimum required level of
9% stipulated by Reserve Bank of India.

8. DEPOSITS
The aggregate Deposits of the Bank as on

March 31, 2015 stood at ¥ 25,649.86 crore,
registering a growth of 13.27% over the level of

T 22,645.68 crore as on March 31, 2014. The
interest rates for deposits were kept aligned with the
prevailing trends in the banking industry. Many new
innovative deposit schemes were launched by the
bank during the financial year under review.

9. ADVANCES PORTFOLIO — MANAGEMENT

OFASSETSAND DEVELOPMENT OF BUSINESS:
The Bank continued its lending activities in
conformity with the policies and guidelines of
Reserve Bank of India.Gross Advances of your Bank
increased by I 2192.10 crore during the financial
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year 2014-15 and reached the level of 319,335.95
crore from ¥ 17,143.85 crore as on March 31,2014,
showing a year-on-year growth 0f 12.79%.

The Bank continued its thrust on lending to
Agriculture and Micro and Small Enterprises
comprising both manufacturing and service
enterprises. The level of advances to priority sectors
stood at ¥ 9,563.34 crore as on March 31, 2015,
which constituted 54.91% of the Adjusted Net Bank
Credit (ANBC), as against the Regulatory
requirement 0f40%.

Agricultural Advances reached Y 2,107.68
crore as on March 31, 2015, which constituted
12.10% of ANBC, as against the regulatory
requirement of 18%. Tightening of the norms by
RBI for lending against gold jewellery for
agricultural purposes has resulted in a steep
reduction in the said portfolio, affecting the overall
agriculture and weaker section loans position.

Total advances to the weaker sections stood
at ¥ 1574.55 crore as on March 31, 2015, which
represented 9.18% of the Adjusted Net Bank Credit,
as against the regulatory requirement of 10%.

Your bank has revamped various loan
schemes such as Home Loan, MSME Credit, Vehicle
Advances, etc. during the year and made them
borrower friendly. ~New Schemes related to
financing pharma business and vehicle financing to
educational institutions were also introduced during
the year.

Recognizing the need to expand the bank's
exposure to well managed corporates, your Bank has
set up Corporate Credit Centers within the four
existing branches at Chennai, Hyderabad,
Coimbatore and Mumbai. The experience gained at
these centres will help the bank to lay further
emphasis on Corporate Lending.
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During the current year the bank proposes to
increase the flow of credit to Agriculture, Retail
Sector, Weaker Sections and the MSME sector and
aims to achieve the mandatory targets fixed by RBI
while continuing predominantly as a Retail Bank.
The Bank proposes to set up Centralised Loan Assets
Processing Cells at different locations to give a push
to asset based retail lending.

Under the Financial Inclusion (FI)
programme the number of villages allotted to the
Bank has increased to 120. During 2014-15 your
bank opened 9 Ultra Small Branches. During the
drive for opening bank accounts under the Pradhan
Mantri Jan Dhan Yojna (PMJDY) a total of 84,274
Savings Bank Accounts were opened by our
branches. As part of its endeavour to improve credit
linkage in FI villages, the bank has introduced
overdraft facility to Saving Bank accounts under
Financial Inclusion Programme.

10. INVESTMENTS AND TREASURY
OPERATIONS:

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the
Bank made a total turnover of ¥ 70,415.48 crore in
trading operations, resulting in a net profit of X 32.10
crore, as against X 7.13 crore in the previous year.
Sale of securities from 'Held to Maturity' category to
the tune of ¥401.26 crore was made during the year
resulting in a profit of ¥ 12.45 crore (previous year-
NIL)

The net investments of the Bank
stood at X 7,671.90 crore as on March 31, 2015, as
against X 6,771.90 crore as at the end of the previous
year. The Investment-to-Deposit Ratio of the Bank
was 29.89%, as against 29.87% at the end of the
previous year.

The average realized yield on the investment
portfolio during the year increased to 8.18%, as
against 8.10% in the previous year, on account of the
mvestments made in securities with higher yield
during the year. The income earned during the year

BLOY B Suemnged 2 Mibeng aumid)
RUH(PenaTUBHSHSLILL (HeiTerm
WG Gmen Lo QL misaled gBLUGSHS, efeugmub,
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from investments, comprising interest income and
dividend income, was I 605.98 crore (including
income from RIDF), as against < 517.67 crore in the
previous year.

11. FOREIGN EXCHANGE BUSINESS:

1.The total merchant turnover of the bank
grew to I 19682.08 crore during the year under
review from T 18925.31crore during the previous
yearregistering a growth 0f4.00%.

2.The profit earned from foreign exchange
business for the year 2014-15 was I 32.77 crore
against ¥ 32.01 crores during the previous year
2013-14 with 2.37% growth.

3.The Bank has arrangement with a global
network of 703 overseas Banks by exchange of
bilateral key under SWIFT [Society for Worldwide
Interbank Financial Telecommunication]. It
facilitates smooth and fast flow of communication in
the international business. The swift arrangement
has enabled the Bank to give timely and efficient
service to its foreign exchange customers.

4 Atthe end of the year under review the total
number of “B” category branches dealing in foreign
exchange stood at37.

5.The Bank has the infrastructure to render
speedy services relating to inward remittance and for
crediting the beneficiary's accounts on receipt of the
foreign currency funds in our Nostro accounts
abroad.

6.0ur International Banking Division,
Chennai is providing information on foreign
exchange market and market rates in our Bank
website to facilitate our clients to know the up to date

information on forex. Our officers are subjected to -

specialised training in foreign exchange given by
leading training centres in Mumbai, Pune etc. to
keep pace with the day to day changing forex
scenario.

(whersw auGLD 8.10 s56i5D) HENHSS!.
waesbaeledmhel doLHH  ally  WHEID
LRI B% Osmensulet  eubLOTEND  [bLLILITERIY6)
5.605.98 Camouwnasalb S(HbSIH!-

11. oxiAwg Gaeoneieni auemlsib :

12013 - 1410 syevnged SIHBLE GFeoTauem
ueBHH60 Hevew (PHICaBBID HeWiB (PHeNSW
QAUMBLSHe0 . 1892531 Gamowins BBhHS euewls
I BeueudLid ap. 19682.08 Camouing 2 Wb
4 556isID eueni&d HaniBeeng).

2.SbHWEF Ggeomuenl aualiahsle0 Filigwl

Seomuid whHmaw  Spamiged  2013-14
5.32.018smeuines BmbsH. Seleurawiged 2014-15
.3277 Gamouimes o Wihg ‘237 FHeiHD
ouemT&FFLIENL HSI6iTeNHI.

3.0 MiGeT aumd 2 o0&  Slenaieoren
QUEI &) & @Th & &) ew L Gl men LI 60T LDIT 3 [
QaTemaesTLiy  Sewided  Bnmuuglene,

o aHHMN 2 6len 703 UBABEHL T  GHTLL

Qamsien  (PY&mE. O  Qeuelipm G
amissde  Saaed  UflorTBpmsd  10&
afloyaursain, Qo@Gursad  BLUUSBG
golundmg. auRiBule  UTYSHMBWITETTSEHEES
fpbs  Yopule  umurspess G
256 SlBEI-

4. QeiuTaniiged  SIB BIWE GFeoTeuemn]

auellasHHe0 FOLUGL Semenserter aaeamisms 37
S 266N

5. o misel eumdwmed  OeuelBTLiged

Bmba BhHuTalBEg S@UUOILGD LaiSms

amid  QaelBm g muUGHBHSGD BB

Ogmendew  OuBpe  Gstewi 2 1 GaGu,
uwemefiset  sansdBE, @SfieoTe  LfioTBBd
QuiusB@  eumaluller ® 6MaL LenLL

CurgloTaISTE 2_6iTeNG).

6. ®BOH oukid  SHBWECFTeemT
SHALBET IDBHID FHENS HlevaIImHIGmen curnidsu e
Bmamwsengd Hed  Qeauefllulll @G GBI,
UTQE MEBWTON] BEHE S  SlbBHIWF Qg eumeu e
b1 606U Gl B M6 o L @b @L6 SIIB S
CaETeTaISHG2_SalWTe o 6Tengl. BHIGH aubhiBuled
uefyflud  SiFEMieei  (IPDEDL, LT bl
BLRBefNed o eiten  Halluuipd  enwwmiseiled




Eicd

93" Annual Report 2014-15

Beastepahoad ot s

7.The Bank is committed to increasing the
forex business activities significantly in adding good
revenues to the bank in the coming year.
8. The Bank has tie-up arrangements with UAE
exchange centre LLC, Abu Dhabi and GCC
Exchange Centre, Dubai. This arrangement enables
NRIs and their relatives to receive and transfer funds

within 24 hours from UAE under speed remittance

scheme.

9. Efforts are being taken to form a Centralised
Processing Centre (CPC) for Forex transactions.
Initially select C-Category branches will be taken
into the fold of the CPC. Subsequently the remaining
C-Category Branches and the B-Category branches
will also be covered.

12.BRANCHNETWORK:

During the year 2014-15, 60 new branches,
215 new Automated Teller Machines (ATMs) and
one new Regional Office were opened. With this
expansion, the Bank's network has increased to 430
branches, 10 Regional Offices, 11 extension
counters, 880 ATMs, 7 Central Processing Centres, 3
Currency Chests, 1 Service Branch, 5 e-lobbies and
1 SME branch.

13. PERSONNEL:

The Bank's total staff strength was 4119 as on
March 31, 2015, consisting of 1421 officers, 2099
clerks and 599 subordinate staff members. During
the year under review, 58 officers, 550 clerks and
150 subordinate staff members were recruited.
Totally, the bank recruited 700 employees and
promoted 204 employees to the next higher cadre
during the year.

The per employee business (excluding Inter
Bank Deposits) decreased from X 11.04 crore to
¥ 10.92 crore during the year under review.

Industrial relations in the Bank continued to
be very cordial during the year with frequent
interaction between the management and the
Officers' and Employees' Associations. Various staff
welfare activities were undertaken during the year.
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The Bank continues to lay emphasis on developing
the individual skills of its employees and providing a
healthy and congenial working environment so as to
get maximum contribution from the employees of
the Bank.

The Bank's Staff Training Colleges at
Nagercoil and Chennai conducted 80 programmes,
imparting training to 2283 employees during the
year. In addition to the in-house programmes, 267
officers were deputed to other institutions in India
like SIBSTC-Bangalore, NIBM-Pune, IDRBT-
Hyderabad, FEDAI and other training institutions
like SIBSTC-Bangalore, NIBM-Pune, IDRBT-
Hyderabad, FEDAI and other training institutions
for attending training programmes.

There were no employees who were in
receipt of remuneration above the limit prescribed
under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014
requiring the Bank to furnish a statement with
particulars prescribed under the Act. Since the bank
is an unlisted company disclosure of the details with
regard to remuneration paid to its employees as
referred to in sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, is not applicable
to1t.

14.INTER BRANCHADJUSTMENTS:

The Bank has continued to maintain a very
good record in the matter of internal housekeeping.
Since the Bank has installed a core banking solution
with hundred percent networking, it was possible for
the branches to balance all their accounts and the
balances were tallied up to March 31, 2015. There
was also timely submission and scrutiny of the
control returns, which was given adequate
importance at all levels with necessary follow up.
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15. INTERNAL CONTROL AND
INSPECTION/AUDIT:

The bank has put in place an effective and
strong Internal Audit System. During the financial
year 2014-15, internal inspection and Risk Based
Internal Audit were conducted for 313 branches of
the bank. In addition, all accounts having credit
limits of * 1.00 crore and above are subjected to post-
credit inspection. 216 branches involving 2160
accounts were covered during this year. Compliance
reports are received from most of the branches in
time through the respective regional offices and
receipt of compliance reports is monitored by the
Inspection Department.

The bank continued to have the system of
Concurrent Audit, which covered 160 branches.
Concurrent Audit has been recognized as an
important tool of internal control and is in force at
major branches including all the 'B' category
branches designated for forex business. Further,
Treasury Department, International Banking
Division, Chennai Service Branch, CPC — Chennai,
ATM Cell, DPS Cell and Accounts Department are
also subjected to Concurrent Audit. The Bank is in
the process of further strengthening Concurrent
Audit and making it more effective and purpose-
oriented.

The Funds and Treasury Department is
subjected to half-yearly review by Inspection
Department. The Inspection Department also
conducts annual review of the Dealing Room
operations at the International Banking Division,
Chennai.

Critical points like Data Centre, ATM Cell,
RTGS Cell, etc., are 'subjected to Information
Systems audit by external auditors engaged by the
Bank.

During the year under review, Management
Audit was conducted at Thoothukudi Region,
Chennai Region, Legal Department, Secretarial
Section, KYC/AML Cell, Credit Audit &
Monitoring Department, Accounts Department,

15.9 1" &1 BUILIT L 1b S :
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"MIS Department, Information Technology
Department - Thoothukudi, Planning Department,
Staff Training College — Nagercoil, Information
Technology Department — Chennai, Human
Resource Development Department, Vigilance
Department, Inspection Department, Recovery
Department, Establishment Department and
Business Development Department, by the bank's
Inspection Department.

The Bank also conducted Risk Based
Information System audit at 313 branches along with
Internal Inspection.

Under Offsite Monitoring, certain key and
critical areas are subjected to monitoring without
onsite visit. For the calendar year 2014, Revenue
Audit was conducted for all the branches during the
month of March 2015.

A separate cell for monitoring the
compliance with Know Your Customer Guidelines
and Anti Money Laundering norms (KYC/AML
Cell) has been functioning on an ongoing basis in
order to have a close monitoring of the accounts as
per the RBI guidelines and under the provisions of
the Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002.

16. VIGILANCE

The functions of the vigilance machinery of
the Bank are broadly divided into 3 types, viz.
preventive, predictive and punitive. The Vigilance
Department  undertakes a study of existing
procedures and practices prevailing in the
organization with a view to modifying those
procedures or practices that provide scope for fraud
and also finding out the causes of delay and the
points at which the delays occur and devising
suitable steps to minimize delays at different stages.
As such, the Chief Internal Vigilance has conducted
and completed the study of Systems and Procedures
in fraud prone areas during the month of February
2015 and necessary directions were given to the
respective departments for taking corrective
measures. To educate the employees of the Bank,
the Vigilance Department brings out various fraud
awareness circulars and conducts training
programmes periodically. As a part of creating
awareness, 'Vigilance Day' is observed on the 31st of
October every year. The Vigilance Department
plays a vital role in the implementation and follow-
up of the directives and guidelines issued from time
to time by Reserve Bank of India. Upon the
directions of RBI, Vigilance Department has also
formulated/implemented a Vigilance Policy from 1st
April 2013 and the Policy was lastly reviewed on
December 19, 2014. The 'Whistle Blowing'
mechanism is being actively encouraged as a tool for
better governance.
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318,10 BT 6 & 6WT & IT o1 Li L BIT6NT S
OamewiLTLILGSBS. UTIS  1HFHul  eumlEluimed
SlDISSILGD  uelluBIHHedHeT  DBHID
opmemidel  gflune  BleopGabBprnGaaiBeeur
oINS  SemisTeilILGed semtaTeityl  Lfley
(PHSW UhG aBSEBEH. LUTTSH 0SSl eunialuie
SIBlBISHGEILY, BTl  OBTeTend
®_(HeUTSHSLILIL{H  eLiJed 1, (PH60
bOL(pdBLU UGS HLU UL Hel 6 Fl. & 6l 11 & 61
gBulLej el OeuefldbsTemih  eu@pd  (Lpewm

2013

L (PeBUILGSHSILILHS  OlEmemngmULISEsT  (LPeoLD
HEVED SLEMHEND 2_GITeNG).
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Further, a scheme of 'Protected Disclosure'
framed in accordance with the guidelines issued by
Reserve Bank of India on April 18, 2007 is in
operation in the Bank.

As per the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Bank being a company
accepting deposits from the public is required to set
up a 'vigil mechanism' for the directors and
employees to report their genuine concerns or
grievances. Further, the vigil mechanism should
provide for adequate safeguards against
victimisation of employees and directors who avail
of the vigil mechanism. While the purpose of both
'the protected disclosure scheme' and 'the vigil
mechanism' is the same, under the "Protected
Disclosure Scheme' prepared on the lines prescribed
by RBI, Reserve Bank of India is the Nodal Agency
designated to receive complaints under the Scheme,
whereas under the 'vigil mechanism' set up m
accordance with the provisions of the new
Companies Act, the Chief of Internal Vigilance in the
Bank will be the designated authority to receive the
complaints from employees and the Chairman of the
Audit Committee of the Board will be the designated
authority to receive the complaints from directors.

With a view to ensuring compliance with
both the RBI circular and the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Bank had re-drafted its
"Protected Disclosure Scheme' in tune with the
requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013. Ttwas felt that as the two different schemes on
the same subject being in operation simultaneously
may lead to conflicts and it would be advisable to
converge the two schemes into one.

We have sought clarifications from RBI
whether it would be in order to revise the scheme,
inter alia, by providing for a common nodal agency,
say for example the Chief of Internal Vigilance in the
Bank, to receive the complaints under the revised
protected disclosure scheme. While the said
clarification from RBI is awaited, the existing
protected disclosure scheme would take care of the
requirements of Section 177 of Companies Act,
2013.

Guogub UE wWSHHW eumSul&ET  Griged

18,2007  euf&M_(hHev®e  Lig  LTHISTLILITET
QauelliLGS S0  SILLIOTAISH  QUBRSIWLITE)
QaFweOLBSSILGHDBS.

Poeuenmisen  FLLD 2013 Ufley 177

aldseien S auRBUTaIS LTSI MaulILBgEemer
gpusTed elfiemie) Quiss oD FHUGSD
BubHGHIHeT BB  eMPOWITHET  DleuJHe
GMBEH6T  SIV6OH 2 GRIGHIDWITET  HEUHEOHEN6I
Ogflalss aems QFisg. Guoeud alPiiemiey
Buss(IpaB kid QUuISGH] BB eafuisemen
LS eUITBIBLILLTIOE UTSHISMILSHE —aufeuensuns
BmeEh. Qaeliu@dHse  HLD  1oBBID
alfiyeie) Bueswms S Begd
Crreahiserd 6y rHfwnamg. U FaTel
umd UsTTse GuB PHUSSILLL  (PHMIDLITS

o eiengl. USw  Plpuamsei  FLLID
aHwpopsaiean Ug ehs @l HEDEVENLD
aFasnfl  eamfugselar  ystiemen 6B

Huidssiu Gereny.  emiSlulsr  SuisGbisee
Usmismen OuUp  SHmidbms G0 SHM66]
Bl sLILL Beitenmy.

Bpeuamiser sl b 2013 Wfe 1776 alld
sofler  uguubd, uryg  fefel  eumsluller
FHpHsmSsE 2 LaunLisab Ceefiu@sgise0
HLb wgeuemyey Qs g. Bbs Bremi®
S LEsenD @6y Cprésdsde @b GpIHIe
QFWEOLEHIILGUSTED — FFETaB6T  gBUGL
gaLBTd @I HLLRSMEILD  QEIBTS
Bt iLg ey 2 LGS DS

S5 FbUBSOTE UTS fafel  amduie
aMenssld  GaMLLL Getengl. 2 FESIBG
amdwlar s @y SHomevemd | SIHSTH
HmsHumpssiu L Ceaeliugsse HLSHea
&SP UsTismen QLB SIFSTD SIUILLGUTD. 0SS!
flagel aukidulsd Bmbs elenbad aIBL  eem]T
Poeuemise  sLLWD 2013 dfley 1776 Lig
FiGUTmsW GeuefilILGSHSe HI LD BHSEGL0-
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17. CUSTOMER SERVICE: 17. amgdea@wiremt GFevey :
. URISWITEIH — OIFHeT  [HeVe  LDBMID
The Baflk is well known for its good and ofurosurar  Geweidg  GUL)  GUEBSL
courteous service to customer's. The Bank has U & e pafen QTP I L
constantly been endavouring to meet the . ) ) L ..
auTdbenawrenjsefer  aHuUTTULEMET  LTSH)

expectations of the modern day tech-savvy
customers by introducing new and innovative
products and features.

In order to provide a platform to the
customers for addressing their queries, a dedicated
Customer Service Cell has been formed at Head
Office. The Bank has also provided an all-India toll-
free helpline (1800-425-0426) wherein the
customers can clarify their doubts about the products
/ schemes and also register their grievances.

18. TECHNOLOGYADVANCEMENTS

The Bank is continuously making efforts to
provide technology-enabled products and services
to customers by adopting the best available
solutions. In order to ensure continuous availability
of services across all the Bank's delivery channels
and to support the expansion of Bank's Branch and
ATM networks, multiple network technologies, such
as MPLS, Leased Line, VSAT and CDMA, have
been deployed in redundant mode. The availability
of multiple channels, a range of debit card variants
and various value-added services, offer customers
choice and convenience in conducting their
transactions.

19.PRODUCT INNOVATION, NEW
PRODUCTSAND SERVICES
During the financial year 2014-15, the Bank

1.Launched “TMB Mahila Subha savings account”
exclusively for women with health insurance
coverage on25.06.2014

2.Launched a new “NMD deposit” with an RD
period of 36 months and a deposit period of 60
months on 06.06.2014

3.Enhanced the credit card spending limit from
320,000 to 50,000 from June 2014

QFEILDOUITHLH  LSHIenIDWITET OBEBID L6 DG
Gl (5 CFeneumenenuid HibHI0HTemIgHSESMBHI.

AUTRSmEBWTATSEHSS @O  BL i
EX: 20157 Cremeuenwl SlefULSBETS
QUTIQHEMSWITONT MWD  eURISUNST  FHenevenid
SIVIeUVBHFH0  HBCUILL BETeNFE.  eumgHemd
WTeNjsEndE SH6U0  aNSSaD, 2 FHeuabd

OaTeneoCud! eramr 180-0425-0426 BeveusGaenaienul
GoBosTemHeTendl.

18. 60 [RICLI euemiT&S :

UTYHMBWITONTEEHSESG — Fmbhs  CFamey
oeflugBats amd el Bnbas GureGe
2 _wijhs OCHTHHILLRISMmeT  SielbHieumS B
slemer  allfleurdsd, ATM  Sewiyser
S@EwaBng MPLS, gdsmae Qameanii], VSAT,
CDMA, Gumeip UeOSILILLL  Lleneniul  SHLEIH6IT
o LW SSLUBSIBH. TS MBWIT6N] BH6lT
agHdbare ATM, Bmenwder ek GCrme
QuoTenLisd Ui GFenel, UBEBISI ML, HL TSI ML,
SMA, assfdams GCsmeu, uruiem’ o GCaed
oau  Crameusst SleldasLILGABSE.  @eIGeTH

Ceppw yslw alalCurs  Gsare sal
BememsLILBSBS.
19. ygAw GFaneusel ;

2014-15 b UBLSHD  BDEHDHEmIL

Gremeuselt SISPSLILGSHBILILL Fi.

L. “ TMBullen wesenm &ur Galiny &b
Ursslusors CUTSEPEBTS £ L 60HED
STULI BLeir 25.06.2014 SIS QBT BISLILL L&),

2. ydw meugdenoreor QLOLTAL BB Cyoafin
QLOUTSIL 36 OTHRISEMTSD 60 LDTHEIBETESALD
6.6.2014 Sieiip OHTLRISILLL G

3. sLet  Slentulen  QFevalBD  euLDL
5.20,0005560 @BbH 5.50,000 & b 2014
QUL S0 232601 2014 60 B\HHSH & WITSHSLILL LS.
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4 Entered into a tie up arrangement (since
09.06.2014) to become a PAN Service Agent
(issuing PAN cards from our branches), with
M/s.UTI Infrastructure Technology and Services
Limited.,

5.In line with RBI's mandatory requirement of
introducing a “Basic Savings Bank Deposit”,
launched a Savings Deposit scheme namely, “TMB-
Simple Savings Scheme” w.e.f. 14.08.2014

6.“Pradhan Mantri Jan-Dhan Yojna” scheme was
launched during the month of August 2014

7.Launched “TMB Little Super Star” exclusively for
kids inthe age group of 10 to 18 0n 08.10.2014.
8.Tie-up arrangements were made with BSNL for
bill payment through our branches from October
2014.

9.Engaged “Lead Generation Executives” for
improving our CASA since 12.03.2015 in the
branches in Madurai city on a pilot basis.

10.With the increase in the investment cap under
Section 80C, we revised the maximum limit of our
tax savings deposit schemes, “TMB-Mullai” and
“TMB-Malligai” from ¥ 1lakh to ¥ 1.50 lakh
11.“TMB Super Flexi Current Account — Single
Combo Special Current Account” with benefits
linked to the balance maintained was introduced

12.0nline Deposit opening limit per transaction was
enhanced to ¥ 10 lakhs for Savings Accounts and to<
25 lakhs for Current Accounts

13.5 e-Lobbies were opened for the first time in our
Bank

14.First SME Branch was opened in Thoothukudi
15.Cash pick up services was introduced
16.Introduced Schemes Switchover with Account
number portability from Ordinary Current Accounts
into the Structured Current Accounts Schemes with
effect from 02.05.2014

17.Introduced a new facility, “Choose Your Account
Number” for our anywhere banking account holders
from July 2014. Customers can choose their last 10
digits of the Account Number, which is being
provided as a value added feature.

4. 09.062014 (psme0 PAN Goeveu (paeuns
andular domensalcd Qmbs PAN oL
apnigagbare UTI Infrastucture Technology and
Service Limited o L& giur@ Qauiuiil L gi.

506 SguueL amgl  GFUlUYsMISES
oPWwaIUBSSHID  flaFel  aumdular  sLLTWw
Comaude gpu  “TMBeefiw Gy gliob ”
14.08.201460 Bmba Gadliy eweuli) HLIOTE
OSHTLRISLILLL .

6. “Upsmer  wHHH asaGUIREN S
SE0E WTHD 2014 CBTLBIBLLLL .

7. 08.10.2014 ey “TMB  6flliged @UiLiFeroLmy”
Gainydl L UysHGwsiors 10 auug pgHed 18
RINIE: aumrueien  GPHDHHEHH HTH
OBHTLBISLILILL G.

8.0168LTUT 201460 B(HHS! BLOGI Se6Neseil (LPEVLD
slLemild Geaubsd BSNL o a1 gnuiBasen
QFuwLLL 6.

9. gy BHENE O 66N  BHIOH  HeNHereD
suriiullelt BLOIy B CailimamdE CaameaemiL

GuuBss  12.03.2015 g  Carsmenr
alumLuisd “(peiaiani Hameopemms Bieurdssi”
FBUL_IQ(HHSTT SH6IT.

10.0fley 80C (w&eSigpaETer auyibl SiHSFOTeNTeD
amdules afl Gxiiy HLmsenmear “TMB-upeveneo”
wpgtd  “TMB-weedens” SiFsuls eyl b1
L FHH0 BHhHS! @h.1.50 UFIG 2 WFSHSILLLS.
11. “TMB-Super Flexi pLiy seé@ - Single combo
speical  pLiy sasE  BEULOBTHBECHDD
LWIEIBEHL T SIFWPSILGHSILLL SI. '
R.oFosT  GLUTAL  OFTBIGMSHETE eI
ufajssmal  @apse Cally  sansg .10
MLFIOTHD, BLUY SMSEGHS 025 UL FLOTSHEYLD
o_WiSHsULLL Sl

13. Bogl emdulsd WHeowmBwNs 5 G-eorise
Qam_msILLL Sl

14. s SME deen  gIngsidGpuiled
OFHTLESIULL Sl

15.uamgms  Caafs HIs Canel@hld Bz emeu
SBPaILGSSULLL G-

16.56mbE eERIEneRT FGMTen BLIL SHaobse0dbe!
S LWESIUL  BLULSMISADEG 10THBHISCSTETEmLD
FULb  2.05.201460 SPWHUILESBHUILL LS.
17. Qg domsLrensel — shiseled  eubiHesslamer
smisGa CajoCeuh eusd grme 201460 BB
SPWSILGSSILLLSL. UTSMBUITENT 6 SBisees
smLd 10 Bevss aamismen CoHjey GFuUILeMD. B
@ WAL & B SIDFIONS QUPHIGILGSBSI.
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18.RuPay Debit Card was launched to our
Customers at a function held at Chennai on July 15,
2014 on the eve of Karmaveerar Kamarajar's 112th
Birthday (Number of Rupay cards as on 31.03.2015
was 1,19,685).

19.Launched “Remedy”, a platform for recording
complaints at all our branches, which shall serve as a
central registry for complaints w.e.f. 16.09.2014.
20.Enabled an option “Feedback” in the Customer
Self — service kiosks of the Thoothukudi Main and
the Thoothukudi South branch for the use of our
customers to rate the quality of services they
received from the branch, w.e.f, 06.09.2014.
21.Launched “Missed call services” (9211937373)
for checking Account Balance w.e.f. 26.09.2014.

22.Added new Payment Gateway Service providers
namely “SBI ePay”, “ATOM Technologies” and
“PayU India” into our fold.

23.Launched “TMB ePassbook” Mobile application
facility, which the customers can use for checking
their account balances and get the statements of
account.

24.E-connect transaction limit per day was increased
to * 1 crore for Current Accounts and * 10 lakh for
Savings Accounts.

25.Structured financial messaging system (SFMS)
was introduced for all purposes of securing the
communication within the bank and between banks
inIndia.

20. AWARDS / RATINGS OBTAINED BY THE
BANK:

L. Tamilnad Mercantile Bank won the
ASSOCHAM India (The Associated Chambers of
Commerce and Industry of India) “Social Banking
Excellence Awards 2014”. The Bank was ranked
“the Best Private Sector Bank” under Social
Banking Sphere for the year 2014. It is to be noted
that the Bank had won the same award during the
year 2013 also.

18. 15eugm geemev 2014, @jwaiyy Smoymegfles
1126ug LIphgETen Siem GFaamenuied HenL GLBp
Q® olpTeled eaMesMmBWLITANT&HEHSETS Rupay
OLU &M@G OsmLmsiulLg. (31.03.2015 Si&im
Rupay o en_aeflen eemeniidbeonsd 1,19,685 o4&
Bobes!)

19. amd doaseled o ellen  LsTTHemen
uFaeFuiw “Bye| enouwld” ety 16.09.2014 Sieim)
OpmLmslulLg. S& wbHIHW  USTTH6I
LSleenLouIons LignilwmB3ILD.

20. gItHEIBEY Guwuler WwHpID 0BG & mensefen
QUG Csemeusefliar Frseng WL  LBHILD
BhIB6T HMHGSHIHMET OFflalbEd  euensduleomer
sw@semeu  kiosks 06.09.2014 o@im  (WHD
OFWEOLBSHSHILILL F.

21. uUTQHENSWITENTEH6T Hhib6llen Hemibae o _aiTern
BmuiysosTasmw Siba CFTeIEHD alsnsHe
WerbBaTe Gremeuselt  (9211937373)  26.09.2014
(PH60 QBT BISLILIL LGl

22. SBI epay, atom Technologies and PayU India
peOd UL ewid  HimpeauTuled GFemen UHHTH
Caobalul L&l

23. s meWTenjsel  HEGHAT  BHawIs G
BBUUSOSTOSMWWD FMbE DMdbamsaniLuD
m&Cualuiear cpeowns  SPHSICETeTEHD “TMB
ePassbook" QL misLiLL L gi.

24. BTeT  @eiipib@ econnect UfMBB LD
BLLULGISGHEHDHG h.1 Comoumasead, Gy

B b GHEHD & .10 OL FOTH QL0
®_WIHHLILL (HelTeng).
25. amsuiear g GhHU  aHSBEHEHE

@mLuleoren  OFHTLIY UTEHISTILG o _eitefll L
SimadH CHToHemsEHEHTE B L enOSHBLUILIL L
Hg GFuIg Siemwliy SPWSILGSSIILL LS.

20. eunuad Guiny 6flmEiSel D AN IBS6

I sOETH OijssaenLed amidwTag 20141D
SiemIgBsTe HBHS FPSTU BB FEsmeubHTa
alpens  SIBFTOFLOLIOGBHE  CUBEIETETSI
aumBTEIEH 2014D SLEWIYBETM  FPH  CUBIE
Caemeu SigliLimLulled HPhe SHeMWTTEImB cukias
Gugutd 20131

ey WHIIL LU BelTengl.

aBLSHRID B6s almmd CUBEIETETSH 6IeTLIS)
GBI HHSHF.
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2. “ABP News” selected Tamilnad Mercantile
Bank Limited as the “Best Bank (Private Sector)”
under the “Banking, Financial Services and
Insurance (BFSI)” sector. The Award was received
by the Managing Director & CEO in a grand
function held at “Taj Lands End”, Mumbai on
14.02.2015.

3. The Financial Express in its survey on
INDIA'S BEST BANKS - 2013 ranked TMB as No:
1 among the “Old Private Sector Banks” in India.
Emst & Young was the knowledge partner to
Financial Express in selecting the India's Best
Banks-2013.

Rating: During the financial year 2014-15, CRISIL
renewed the rating for the Certificate of Deposit
programme of the Bank for X 1000 crore. The present
rating is A1+ (indicating “Very Strong” rating).

21. Risk Management

The Bank has a proactive approach towards
Risk Management. It's risk philosophy involves
developing and maintaining a healthy portfolio
within its risk appetite and regulatory framework.

The Risk Management Architecture of the
Bank comprises an Independent Risk Management
Organizational structure at the Corporate level, Risk
Management Policies, Risk Measurement Tools and
Risk Monitoring and Management Systems. The
Bank has a well defined risk appetite statement and
the independent risk function ensures that the Bank
operates with ts risk appetite framework.

The Board of Directors of the Bank is
primarily responsible for laying down risk
parameters and establishing an integrated risk
management and control system.  The Board of
Directors is supported by a Sub-Committee of the
Board known as Risk Management Committee of
Board (RMCB), which in turn is supported by the
Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) and Risk
Management Committee of Executives (RMCE).
The executive level Committees are headed by the
MD & CEO of the Bank. The Bank's RMCB
approves its Risk Management policies and also sets
out limits taking into account the risk appetite of the
Bank and the skills available for managing the risks.

2. FOPETH GujssaonLed aEAWTMSE b,
BHFCsmeumei wipd STIGHDUIGT SlgliLenLuied
“Apbg ekl (Gaflwmy sienp) dem “ABP News” g6
Cua@auwi’Lgl. SiPHeTe el 14.02.2015
o (pbepuuied “Taj Lands End” 60 mentGumm &piiy
BapFfuled Hiauns SUSGEH] WHBBID
Bireurs SiFamflwmed GupliLlL Sl.

HEMNGUEMLD

3. Financial Express mrefisip bLobEHW SHEHSISMILI60
2013 Sib HEIBSSTR FBHS UBIESWTS “LILDEHLOULITET
gaiwury aumid” iflaled SOPHTE Glofssaien 6o eubid”
wsoTasTe  CaibosGasslUlBmE. BB
CaibesGugsd Emst & Young eiaip blpieued
Financial Express Brefispé@ genemnuns SohSS!-

g1 wHih: Ops B spengsd, CRISIL 5y
NI QD FOF URSSETE  @AIILF  STSHHD
L  @5.1000 LSS SIUL BET6ngI.
FBéuTamsW FJ LHIIG Al+HEhs euedemwTers)

21. O i1 GLo6OTERIENID :

B aWTed  BLj
(PRTBL NSNS SIGDIGSPEBEDWL! SWLITEwIH QIHSBS.
amid @UEGWMB MHEEEE 2 U6 SMES 95
Q@ SGITHALIOTET BOTETE 2 [HeuTdhe LyTofSS!
aumeuBs aimdluien QETeTmELTGLD.

Gamowins

@oeomest em oWl 60

GLosuTeRTenlD B LMD @ SHFHATLoner S

GuoeuTemienly  SIMIDLIeDL  O@TemiBeengl.  BLJ
GueoTeienty Qsreiend, BL jownall® Smalss, G
saiiETeanily  LBow  Bjers ooy, GLy

CaT UThaEpdE o LUl  eubd  CFweOLTL igame
o pPHOFIL, QRSUTEIH BIS QUGBS S L
OLi opfdéms LBgL swigonora  BLj
QFweOLTLIgeneT QETes([HETT6TE.

@R memHH S GLeoTeRIenoamL HBI6) S60,
sLBUBHHIHO LBELD B TSleTe|SHemeT GMOBHH60
Sifwemal ks BuIsEGe GWala  (PHETELD
QUIGINILTGLD. Biens @Gwele Samageurar S
GueTeRienld GIp BB QeTHE  GUTBIIY &
SpdlWenel BeuTs BUSEGOTSEHHE gleneniLfl &Sles et
Breurdsen BHeneoulsd HenLCUBID Gnl L BiselT ouiElu et
Biens SUEGOT Smeaniouie bl 6L GumBIEIu et
BLj Cueoremiand G, S Cweonaiienio CETeTMSML
guused  seflugiLear  QLy GeVTeRT MDD G
STEAGHILDEB SIMIDSSH BB SIBHSTE  HBeT
SIM&6 SAWeaBmBILD FBijeuabalape.
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Credit Risk:

The credit risk mechanism consists of
policies and practices that include mechanisms for
risk identification, risk measurement, risk
grading/aggregation techniques, reporting and risk
control/mitigation techniques, documentation, legal
issues and management of problem loans to protect
asset quality and ensure orderly growth and targeted
risk adjusted return on assets.

The Credit Risk Management policy along
with Collateral Management Policy address the
Credit Risk related to lending. Credit Approving
Authority, Prudential Exposure Limits, Risk Rating
System, etc., are used in managing credit risk.

The Bank is in the process of migrating to
system driven rating using web based rating models
solution acquired from M/s.Crisil Risk &
Infrastructure Solutions Ltd.,

Market Risk:

Asset Liability Management Policy and
Investment Policy aid the management in mitigating
the Market Risk in the Banking and Trading books.
The overall responsibility of managing the market
risk lies with the Asset Liability Management
Committee (ALCO) of the Bank. The Committee
meets regularly and decides on the size, mix, tenor,
pricing and composition of various assets and
liabilities. It primarily does identification,
measurement, monitoring and management of
liquidity and interest rate risk. It uses tools such as
Ratio analysis, Gap analysis reports - Structural
liquidity, Dynamic Liquidity, Interest Rate
Sensitivity etc. Value at Risk (VaR), Duration Gap
Analysis etc for management of liquidity and
interest rate risks. The fundamental focus is to add
value both from the earnings perspective and from
the economic value perspective.

Operational Risk:

Comprehensive systems and procedures,
internal control system and audit are used as primary
means for managing Operational Risk. The Bank
has in place an RMCB approved Operational Risk

Bl

SLAIGLT  Oeulpempurerd  CaTeTens
wLB@I  Feo  pL(pmBIMmeT  GETen B
SIMDGSUILLL . SauBpPled GLT  SlenLWimend
BTeilgl, BLf olete, B SILUGHSIHD
(PdB&H6eT, B SLEUGSHIHN (POBSH6T, BT
SfSm®s, HOIIILGSHIHN, FULL LITFFametsme
SLFLID6 ©_GIT6NL RIS WLIGTGLD.

BLGT FOUHSIOTeN G 6l HL6iT BT
piauns  Osmeens  BBID  Benewr  Blijeurs
Cbmeiians S WBBTEO SembALUILGHBS!. SL6T
By piaudlssele, sLal @uus® DHeT)
gy, lBus Geeflur® ey, SLi
wHUI G Sy yFweme 2 LBWTEILGSSL]
L &) et 360 QUM &1 Ul 6T G ©) 60 6ur Wi LD
SligliuenLulleorer AT G CFTEHsmen CBTaRmiH
semilel ceod WHIIGL (Peps@ WIMaImSnS.
@sperar  Oamiemrmd M/s Crisil &
Infrastructure Solutions Ltd Hmeueisd b Smbs)
UTRISLILGH MBS

Fhend DL :

allwmuny seusE USsshiseed eumisule
Fhend BLO) GMBUUSBEG, CFTsHa QuImIy
BieuTesd OsTeiend IBEID (IpHed G OsTaTms
SBlwenal gimeLfl@eamer. @UBOWTHS sHms
By piaudssn ourpiy amdular Gsrsg
OuTmIy  Biarss Guee FTHSEH.  DbHS
GUTAISH UPBHINTG Fnl L RIB6T dnl ly D66,
BTeVld, Hevlly, alened WHBID LOCD CFTSHS
Qutmiiy  OFTGUUBmeT  (Ipigey  QFUIEaIBET.
SIEGLAUTAIH] SIEHLUITETD STENIHE0, DlenaiBHe0,
SWIBTANSHHO0 WBGID B BijeudlssHe0, il lg
aldls B guaBms  (PHETELLTS
Lemlwrbpidlaiper. QsBarear smelsms ald s
uglundie), GmLGeell uGLUTUe Sifdmss,
SLLEWLILTEAT BeniD, WMBID Benw, e’y alds
o auijFmar Sy PWwaBes 2 uBWITESS 6.
Bmel  gmaSHIHE  QUQLILUML  HeueILD,
(PeiTBeuTEBITEN GU(HLOTENLD L BHE06T I LOBEBID
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Management Policy based on Reserve Bank
/BASEL guidelines. All new products introduced by
the Bank pass through a New Product Approval
Process' to identify and address operational risk
1ssues.

Implementation of Basel —I1;

The Bank has implemented the New Capital
Adequacy Framework under Basel-II as per the
timelines prescribed by RBI. While the Bank, to
start with, has adopted Standardized Approach for
Credit Risk, Standardized Duration method for
market risk and Basic Indicator approach for
Operational Risk, the initiatives so far undertaken /
envisaged are geared towards enabling the Bank to
comply with the standards set out for more
advanced capital measurement approaches in the
Basel-II Accord.

The Bank has also developed a framework
for quantifying the Pillar-2 risks and has put in place
a comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) framework in line
with RBI guidelines, which is being validated by
external agencies

In order to shift the matrices of measurement
from traditional volume based measures to risk
based measures, bank has implemented a robust and
scientific fund transfer pricing system.

The Bank strives to provide maximum
returns to its stakeholders while maintaining a solid
capital base to support the risks associated with its
diversified business. It has astrong Common Equity
Tier 1 capital adequacy ratio in order to support the
execution of its growth plans and business strategies,
while meeting the regulatory capital requirements at
all times.

meE o LB pPiutds HLy Cuweoremienio
QaTeiens aundulest @I GCeuTeRientd GLpeuTeD
Quuzed  oefdsiul Getengl.  eumid  eLpeOLD
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gD 0gflaldsed fpeld SememuILBGSBE.
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Strengthening the Resilience: Basel-111
Initiatives |

Basel-III guidelines which are a
comprehensive set of reforms, to strengthen the
regulation, supervision and risk management of the
banking sector were issued by Reserve Bank of India
in May 2012. Liquidity Risk Management and
Basel-III framework on Liquidity Standards were
alsoissued in July 2012.

The capital standards and new capital buffers
will require banks to hold more capital and higher
quality of capital than under current Basel II rules.
The new leverage ratio introduces a non-risk based
measure to supplement the risk-based minimum
capital requirements. Banks in India are well
capitalized and are already above the minimum
prescribed ratios. As Basel-III transition is phased in
over a longer timeframe upto 2019, the pressure for
immediate capital infusion may not be there.

The new liquidity ratios under Basel-III
framework on Liquidity Standards ensure that
adequate funding is maintained. Bank is awaiting
final RBI guidelines to evaluate the compliance with
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable
Funding Ratio (NFSR) norms in the Indian context.

Our Bank has been proactively conducting
internal assessment of adequacy of capital, liquidity
ratios and leverage ratios in accordance with Basel-
III standards. Bank's capital position is in
compliance with Basel-III expectations, well above
the minimum requirements. Bank expects to make a
smooth transition to Basel-III standards, as per RBI's
timelines.

Section 134 (3) (n) of Companies Act, 2013
requires that a statement indicating the development
and implementation of a risk management policy
may be made in the Board's report. Risk
management systems are already in existence in the
Bank as per the capital adequacy and other norms as
applicable to banking companies and the details
about such risk management systems have already
been elucidated in the foregoing paragraphs.

Limeroed 3 (ouipselr:
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22. COMPLIANCE FUNCTION

The Bank has a robust policy on compliance
and the related reports are reviewed by the Board and
the Audit Committee of the Board periodically. An
executive of the Bank in the rank of Deputy General
Manager has been designated as the Chief
Compliance Officer. As per the policy, all the
regulatory, statutory and internal compliances are
being monitored and periodical reports are placed
before the competent authority.

23. COMPLIANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS
OF COMPANIESACT, 2013

Most of the Sections of the Companies Act,
© 2013, the related rules and the schedules have now
been made effective. The Bank has already taken
steps to comply with the various provisions of the
Act to the extent they are applicable to the Bank.
Various provisions applicable to listed companies
are not applicable to the Bank, as it is not yet a listed
company.  Some of the provisions which are
applicable based on certain benchmarks in terms of
turnover, capital and borrowings, like the provision
on appointment of key managerial persons, are not
applicable to the Bank.

Some of the compliances made during the
yearunder review are reported below:

Appointment of independent directors

As per the requirements of Section 149 (4) of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Bank is required to
have at least two independent directors on its Board.

The Board in its meeting held on March 16,

2015, re-designated the following existing directors
as independent directors after evaluating their
independence criteria and satisfying itself of the
same:
1. Thiru P. Yesuthasen — to hold office upto
November 25, 2017 subject to the ratification of the
appointment by the sharcholders.
Thiru P.Yesuthasen is a former executive of Reserve
Bank of India, specidlizing in foreign exchange. He
has been a director of the Bank since November 26,
20009.

22.eumidh) LiledTLi: B GouemiloUIeNeaISH6IT:
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2. Thiru A. Shidambaranathan — to hold office
upto October 20, 2019 subject to the ratification of
the appointment by the shareholders.  Thiru
Shidambaranathan is a Chartered Accountant. He
has been a director of the Bank since October 21,
2011. He is also the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Board.
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board was re-
constituted on March 17, 2015 by the inclusion of
Thiru P. Yesuthasen (Thiru A. Shidambaranathan
was already a member of the Committee) in order to
meet the requirements of Section 178. Thus both the
independent directors are currently members of the
ACB.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee presently in
existence in the Bank was re-constituted by the
Board on March 17, 2015 by including Thiru A.
Shidambaranathan (Thiru P. Yesuthasen was already
a member of the Committee) in consonance with the
requirements of Section 178. The said Committee
would function as the 'Nomination and
Remuneration Committee' referred to in Section
178. The Bank already has a "Nomination
Committee' of Directors constituted pursuant to the
requirements laid down by RBI. Therefore it was
deemed fit that the Remuneration Committee be not
renamed as the 'Nomination and Remuneration
Committee' so that there was no confusion with
regard to the nomenclature of the Committees and
their functions

Internal Auditors

The Bank is required to appoint an internal
auditor as per the requirements of Section 138, who
should either be a chartered accountant or a cost
accountant, or such other professional as may be
decided by the Board to conduct internal audit of the
functions and activities of the Bank.

As the Bank already had concurrent auditors,
internal inspecting officers, compliance department
etc. pursuant to the various requirements applicable

2. Sl Adgbugpreer iEGLTLy 20, 2019
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to a banking company, the requirement of internal
audit was already being complied with.
Notwithstanding the same, the Board deemed it fit to
designate a person as the Chief Internal Auditor who
would be coordinating with internal auditors of each
branch and office.

Accordingly, the Board in its meeting held
on March 17, 2015 appointed Thiru C. Sukumaran,
Chief Manager (Accounts), being a Chartered
Accountant, as the Chief Internal Auditor for the
purpose of compliance with this provision.
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship (SR)
Committee

The Bank's Board constituted a Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee of the Board on
April 16, 2014 in pursuance of the requirements of
Section 135 and a Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee on July 16, 2014 in pursuance of the
requirements of Section 178. The CSR Committee
met five times during the year under review and the
SR Committee met twice.

Woman Director

The Bank is required to appoint a woman
director pursuant to the provisions of Section 149
(1). |

The maximum number of directors in a
public company could be fifteen and by passing a
special resolution the number can be increased (no
upper limit specified)— Section 149 (1)

However, Article No. 89 of Articles of
Association of the Bank prescribes an upper limit of
‘eleven' for directors in our Bank. Hence, without
amending the Articles (by way of a special resolution
at a General Meeting of the members), we cannot
have more than eleven directors. The Bank has not
been able to hold its Annual General Meetings since
the year 2010 on account of an order of injunction
issued by the Hon'ble Madras High Court. Therefore
it is not in a position to amend its Articles of
Association to provide for higher number of
directors. Further any amendment relating to the

iHeLy rfEF 17, 2015 oIyl BLbBS GHW
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number of directors requires prior approval of RBI,
as per Section 35 B of Banking Regulation Act,
1949,

At present there are eleven directors in the
Bank including the MD & CEO and two RBI
nominees, the number of which nominees are not
counted within the above limit. Since there was no
vacancy in the Board we could not appoint a woman
director.

24. Board/Committee meetings

The Bank's Board met 21 times, and its sub-
committees including the Audit Committee held a
total of 65 meetings during the year 2014-2015.
25. Changes in the Board during the last financial

year

Thiru H. S. Upendra Kamath joined the Bank
as its new Managing Director & Chief Executive
Officer from July 9, 2014. Thiru Kamath is the
former MD & CEO of Vijaya Bank and a former
Executive Director of Canara Bank. The Bank is
expected to gain from the vast experience and
knowledge possessed by Shri Kamath.

Shri Upendra Kamath succeeds Thiru K. B.
Nagendra Murthy who demitted office on July 8,
2014 on successful completion of his tenure as the
MD & CEO of the Bank. The Board places on record
its appreciation and gratitude for the service
rendered by Shri Murthy in taking the Bank to new
heights.

26. Corporate Governance

The Bank's Corporate Governance
philosophy is woven around its total commitment to
ethical practices in the conduct of its business, while
striving hard to enhance the stakeholder's value.
Your Bank has endeavored to adopt the best
corporate governance practices, wherever possible.
It also adheres to the principles of transparency in
transactions, disclosure of information, integrity,
social accountability and statutory compliance. The
Bank has followed the directions and guidelines
issued by RBI from time to time regarding Corporate
Governance. It has also complied with the various
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requirements of the Companies Act, 1956 and the
Companies Act, 2013 with regard to corporate
governance, wherever applicable.

The Bank has set up the following
committees of the Board for focused governance in

the important functional areas and for proper control
of the affairs of the Bank.

FLLHHBG Bemssrs FwoLGHL GCureais
BBUeHILEMmeT  Beilg Lleupns  euGEDBg. Us
fagel  emduler  euellypisSHe0seT  LOBEID
afsT_ pssdamms  amEuisd  SmaSHg
WL L HHID G Gueoreanientd FBLILITG SHienLOU|D
Grra@Lal o mael eumal UGyl
BLAIgEMEBBMET  6IBSHH  auBABH.  Ceid
BB WITeTgl HpeuendFF LD 1956 g@u  GFwevs
BLAIQHMBBMmEN  Ligliiguitd  TBYl  Sieminsbes

Sl. No| Name of the Committee Gaeeauten  (pwBdsmen  QPTUIHS  QGEBSI.
1 Management Committee aBSuTag Sifs oD Cegide Gamigw
QFweLT(hBefled  Fml  seuald  CFVISHHID
2 Information Technology Strategy Committee | Qum@mL G Bwas GBI seflaL G LI6V
3 | Audit Committee doqEGEEEHN  Huel 260z Beind
Biaurad Gpeled BmeutiL’L  SHlenend@(pobsel
4 NPA Monitoring Committee Ueireu(mLoTQ, ’
61688 ofledT QLI
5 Fraud Monitoring Committee e @@ o
1 HyeUTeSd &6 @ (L)
6 Nomination Committee 9 S0 OHMAEL L OFLESL L EEW
7 | Customer Service Committee 3 pailsmad G0
2 HRM Commitice 4 QFLIGUTLHY SLaiHmen SaisTaibEd &)
5 Gunay Gousmasal B OLpT aiaiamd GasTalsED G
9 Disciplinary Committee (Appellate Authority for Officers 6 BubapiE Bl LD GV
10 | Risk Management Committee 7 aumgdeauwTeny GFeneud@(p
11 | Remuneration Committee 8 Loaflg_uen_GLoaTemienioBE )
) o : o | guie payins 6 (persabsis Cuayenip)
12 | Corporate Social Responsibility Commuttee ; .
10 | &7 Gweoremienivd G
13 | Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 11 | e G
12 | geps GQUIDILILenTe] (D
The Bank has taken various steps asmaybe | 13 | URIGSTITS6T 2 BB S
necessary to attain higper levels. of corpqate ARLUTRIE  GWL BSOS
governance standards by implementing the various afl BB Eaman SILOLBS HIUSHH SMS

mandatory and non-mandatory requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013 in this regard, including
constitution and reconstitution of various
Committees, formulation of various policies and
codes. The Bank, even though an unlisted entity,
shall also strive to meet the requirements of the
recently amended Clause 49 of the Listing
Agreement, wherever possible. The Bank shall
make all efforts to protect and facilitate exercise of
shareholders' rights and also to facilitate increased
shareholders' participation.

Bugeuenda L 201361 Lg emipplin Gevemrgus
LeoGauml L algHMBHMeN GFWELIGSHH QUBSBH!-
AsnaEts  LGap  GUHSEMET ST
QaTeiensaEmenud aldamenud giLBSHSuleTendl.
AREWTEE — URGIHmS  Uliguielsd  GLLD
QUBATMOOWSTBTEILD  SBOUTWSE  LTBEHLD
Qeuiwiul Geten Uil 4960  @emiBaien

alFempasmen NaLBRIIGHEE WUBS CFUIDH
UHSIBS.
2 _flan D& em 61
LIk ST 61l 6or
616060
UBHSBSHI.

AUBRSWTATH  UEGST] Ser el
UTGISTUUSD GLW o3 I
ukBapel  SIHSFILSBESL

algwmer  (pwpFsmeanyd  dBHI!
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27. ANNUAL GENERALMEETINGS

The 88th, the 89th, the 90th, the 91st and the
92nd AGMs of the bank for the years 2010,
2011,2012,2013 and 2014 could not be held in view
of the interim injunction imposed by the Hon'ble
High Court of Madras in a Writ Petition No.11159 of
2011, filed by a shareholder against RBI and the
Bank.

The petitioner had challenged the order
dated March 31, 2011 passed by the Deputy
Governor, RBI with regard to an application made
by a group of shareholders seeking statutory
acknowledgment of the RBI in respect of the shares
held by them in the Bank.

The Bank had, as a matter of abundant
statutory compliance, sought and obtained extension
of time up to 31.12.2010 and 31.12.2011 from the
Registrar of Companies under Section 166 of the
Companies Act, 1956, for holding the 88th and the
89th AGMs respectively.  However, similar
application made by the Bank in respect of the 90th
AGM (for the year 2012), the 91st AGM (for the year
2013) and the 92nd AGM (for the year 2014) were
rejected by the Registrar of Companies, stating that
the grounds submitted by the Bank were not
sufficient to consider the grant of extension. In any
case, the extension of time, even if granted, would
have been inconsequential in view of the court
injunction.

Your Board of Directors is making all efforts
to expedite the disposal of the legal cases and obtain
directions from the Hon'ble High Court of Madras
for holding the 88th, the 89th, the 90th, the 91st and
the 92nd AGMs of the Bank

The 93rd Annual General Meeting for the
year 2015, due to be held on or before September 30,
2015 can also be held only when the above court
injunction gets vacated.

28.STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Maharaj N R Suresh and Co., Chartered
Accountants were appointed by the Board of
Directors in the meeting held on October 28,2014 as

27 . eumLIMHAIT QLITHiSFaL L LD:

amAWleG @M LURGSHT] [[BIOG ek
L@ LTy fagel eukid @maBSGL aHITH,
OBM_jhg 201110 aubLSHWl aupse erew 1115960,
Qo o WK B eupEdueien
BMLEBTL Heml o _GHgyalenig 2010, 2011, 2012,
2013 wpmId 2014 S IbhEHEHEHHTRN 886G, 896aug),
96ugl, 9leug B@ID NeugH  CQUIBISESW
Gnl L HIB6T HenL GLpalsoenev.

aumduielr o0  URIGHTITEHET  GUeITS
Caibal  ure  flFTel  auRdEE — euTSel
MBOUF(LP6ITeN  eURIBUTET UBIEGBEHEHE FL LTl
PUIFHed Gal (B way Gaulgy Curg Lpiissiur L
31.03.20110  GapaullL o Ssyeman ARSI
GuBanpiiw aupdHE LEISTITTE0 CBHTLFUILIL BelTerTg).

aumidwTeng) S6Lel Lgsutenysef LOmba
88eugl BMID 8%6uF  UBLABST CUIHIEESD
Gl LBGMmeT  BLSHGUSBEG 31.12.2010  woBBID
31.12.2011 euemy 1956 suBLGHHW sbGLeR &F1L 1D
Ufley etemr 16661 &p &mev BUigly QUBNHHDSI.
963 wepuled 201210 aBLSHBGSGTW  eug),
20130  euBLHHBGHW  9leugy wmpId 201410
AUGLSHBGHW  926ug  QUIHIGG &nl L HM

&t Bllysg eamd e  CFngsturg
udleurenymed e  OpflealsHs  STeRIBIGE
IBBISOETETEMILLTHHTe0  ByTsflssiul LSTe

QaflalssiulL g. Smulaid HASBEH6ET Henl
2 _Sgre| BLOND BmeEwlung GuBampdiu HTen
Bl @ _&5Te| Sieudlwid Bedsorosd CuruiBmi.

Qaaiemen o WIHHWABSHIE 2 SHHTenel
Oubm 886ugl, 8%6ugl, 90augl, 91eugl, WBHBID 926G
UBLIHAT CUTHIBS FL LSS Fnlguwl allengeaied
BLOSSHUSBETE 2 _MSEHOLW BUSSHT G
SimTHGH (PWBFEMemULD 61(BSHHIHEBS).

201510 syemngBETer  93eugHl  QUBLIHAT
QUTHISGWEL LD, BuBamplu Bl &5T0 Sl
2_5576| boHSULLL L 6T Hanl Gl
28.91 L LIl LiTQILDTEN DB ULIT I ST

umrs  flagel  eumidlulelr  @QLIEHED 6T
DBS.ARS.N0.4771/08:25:005/2014-15  &&8Lmuij
20, 2014e1 LY BUSSHT G FL LD HOLGLUDBD
SBCLTLy 28, 2014 Sem amdular SIBHD
QUMBLTHAT Snl' L Sl o miliTenHemenL ul
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the Statutory Central Auditors of the Bank
(hereinafter referred to as auditors) for the financial
year ending on March 31, 2015 pursuant to the RBI
approval No. DBS.ARS.No.4771/08:25:005/2014-
15 dated October 20, 2014 and subject to the
approval of the members at the next Annual General
Meeting.

As the Bank is required to appoint Statutory
Central Auditors for the financial year 2015-16, it is
in the process of making an application to RBI with a
fresh list of three firms of Chartered Accountants in
the order of preference, for its approval of one of the
said three firms as the Auditors. Once RBI grants its
approval, the Statutory Central Auditors of the Bank
for conducting the audit of its accounts for the
financial year 2015-16 shall be appointed.

29. COMMENTS ONAUDITORS' REPORT

The Notes on Accounts and the Significant
Accounting Policies referred to in the Auditor's
Report and forming part of the annual accounts and
the references made by the Auditors in their Report
are self-explanatory. The Auditors have not made
any observations or adverse comments watranting
any explanation on the part of the Board as referred
to in Section 134 (3) (f) of the Companies Act, 2013.
30. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under section
134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, it is hereby
confirmed that

1) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed
alongwith proper explanation relating to material
departures;

ii) your directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Bank at the end of the financial year
and of the profit and loss of the Bank for that period,

iti)  your directors have taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

PUUSISSLLULG eumisluler gL jauorer ogaul
HemldbmaLmenyaented M/S. Maharaj NR Suresh And
Co.,, uUlLWHamGETNIS6T (B  Hewlbend
wrenjser  aa  GUUILOLUGSABE)  Buloed
QFuIWICIL_L6dT.

plwreni®  2015-1610  Syewig®sTen
FLLILJOUDTE DG 56mildens LT TSHmeN aIbIs)
Blwward  Geuiw  Geauemiiguspred  epeaim)
UL L WS SISSTeN]  Hneueamseier L IQulens)
urrs  fager sl eleuiemilsg, o6
GUIILL cpaim Bnieuemiseied @@  BiBleued
SHENHOBWTENTHEMTE  Hlwiaid  GFuleusBE
PUIH0 GuB GouemiBLb.

utys fagel eumidl QlisHed Slefliss o L e,
2015-16 PFwnemigBaETer amdBule  Hewibmas
Cuwp Gameien  FULULLFeuoTa  10& SHlW
6wl & e LITENTH6IT HILILDedTD QFuILGeu].

29. 5,6wfl & en ST ey B 61f] 63 sms __ 10xmen
NS BRIH6IT:
panfldmawrarjseaflar  infldmaulled

Gl iUl L @EiluyseT swelenssld © slenene.
sbOuel gL 2013 dfley  134QB)e1 Ul
HemllEmasLTaniselel b @b  GDBILILSEHD
LUTSHHOTOHTES SeTHHT0 BUSGSH] Gpaler
allensBmIS6T CHmaUUTAISHTS GEV6N6V.

Wl Teefiel Qumpin) Lipfw Sinfidens:
souel gl 2013 Wfley  134(5)er
CaremeudCaiL &BLDaH6NTL ene) o pHLMGS LGS
1) AUBLIHA] SeisGde1 o flul  HewisE
@ bl swmflésiu Beengl.CapmGae

30.

Bms@D UFHAD  HSHHH — eleTSHERIS6T
Sief BB [HeiTere.
2) amd BuBGBIS6T SHUILHMED SHebHE

BEID BelebLSHBSTE BeOTL BLL  HWIHG,
am@uler  sflurer Bl  STL(HUSBES
Copanauwiten  HewidGWamsmen  CHIHOBHBHSHI
Saupoms  aPalflurs  BOLWOBLILEGS S
b HSBIBTTSH6IT.

3) am& B GbHeln
FLLIA L BBEHEE  Duims  SHibGapsES
wpopsamer  soLLlgluglend,  eaumsluflar
Qandgibsmen UTHISTILHID, Cursg  BHILD
WepCaBHMmeT HBHBMBTTH6N.

4) auma  BuasGhiser QUIBLTH BT
&S GHMeNT  QBHTLIH S BenL Gus mI
QBTENYHBSLD @(H OSTLIGID CT6ITLINS H(HEHS 60

L6 Gaumiul L
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accountingrecords inaccordance with the provision
of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Bank
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

iv)  your directors have prepared the annual
accounts on a'going concern' basis;

V) your directors have devised proper systems
to ensure compliance it the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate
and operating effectively.

31. FUNDING SOURCES OF RENEWABLE
ENERGY

As its contribution to the worldwide effort
against global warming, your Bank has identified
wind to be the best renewable, pollution-free energy
available throughout the year and has encouraged
lending to this sector. Up to March 31, 2015, the
Bank has sanctioned loans aggregating ¥ 1163.80
crore for installation of windmills. The bank also
encourages setting up of solar panels by financing
the purchase and also provided solar energy panels
as part of its corporate social responsibility.

32.SECRETARIALAUDIT

The Bank, as a public company having a
turnover of more than ¥ 250 crore, is required to get
secretarial audit as referred to in Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 conducted. A copy of the
report in form MR-3 of Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014 is required to be annexed to this report.

Accordingly a copy of the Secretarial Audit
Report dated June 26,2015 issued by M/s. Sridharan
& Associates, Company Secretaries, Chennai is
annexed to this report as Annexure I.

There are no material remarks or
observations in the report which require any
explanation on the part of the Board, except
regarding appointment of woman ditector. The
reason for the bank not being able to appoint a
woman director is explained elsewhere in this report.

Qareni(® HUTTESFUISICTET] 6.

5) Buwis Gbj Heit
SOAHE FULBIS6T LOBOID SiFe  alglsmen

Qm&  FHUBSILLL

Heumy o Lenits  GFweour  Gurgiorer
QFWEL(PBHMET JBLBSHIIUIGTETEN].
31 ygiuld Wi o1

gall  GeliubwWLTHME G  GaSHFTear

o_cusoealeonel (pWBdeEEG o Fab CuTL®G
o MmIG6T oumd STHIleN epeold eUBLLD (LpIEUBID
S bosbamiowl  Fphd USIITSSSEmIU  IDBEHID
TH  SeOeTs  QBBIGETEr B 2 Sealmil
oaGHILGHSIEBSH. 31.03.2015 euenguiled eumis
QTHHD 5.1163.80 Gsmouiemer STHBTECOHMEN
Poer  sLal 2 el QFuFmeSnH.  Goaib
QameiiipdHed QFusBEG Hd 2 sal Csulauger

eLpeULD Bsmeory  Bueateddemen  HMOWEH B
ong@GasEFBH. Gweld eumidl G FeposLl
Cummiienu  gBBl  GlW  FHH  LvmSHM6I
UPEIGBBSI-

32. QFwens Hamlibamd:

Q@ QuTsl Hyeuend @5.250 Cames@ Gosd
AlBUMET (PFHe0 CETERTYHHSTEL  HBIUeTFFLL LD
2013 fley 2046 ulg, auiid OFwevs Hewibams
Oup Geouemip. Sfibamasuis gwm Urgeuw MR-3
5| DI 6) GBI & 6T DBEBIL  HifeuTs
uelwmenjaeil emguib) 2014 elglsemen SH&

(Blwwerd

SPsmaicd enantabaliLL. ColemiBL.

Qowews Bmenodd TN, HHOUTCTTEH6IT
warer & SBsTAGLLeD, ST QFwevTH6,
UPRSIILH  BOhS
SIfGMmBUIL 6T HenewniSaSLILL BeIT6eng.

O cirement |61 H6NITeL

Ouewt BWEGHTS6T  HWweaD  Helf,
UTEHGBITe  ahSalsomer  GSHEUUD — SieuTHensl
Sdamauie BeveuTeHdme0 BUIbGSHIGWaler 6bd
alendapd BaemauliuLalsbenev. eubisl e GlLewT
BusGhmy Bwidlds (PpYunTd  SMjewib. @b
opsamauier B L risefled allendasliLGelteng.
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33. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As stated elsewhere the Bank has constituted
a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee
and has also adopted a CSR Policy. The policy
document is available on the Bank's website. The
disclosure in respect of the CSR activities of the
Bank as required to be made as per the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 is
given at Annexure II.

34. EXTRACT OFANNUALRETURN

An extract of the annual return referred to in
Section 92 (3) and Section 134 (3) (a) in Form MGT-
9 of Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 is given as Annexure I1I of this report.

35. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

As mentioned elsewhere Thiru P. Yesuthasen
and Thiru A. Shidambranathan, existing directors,
meeting the prescribed independence criteria were
designated by the Board as independent directors
with effect from March 16, 2015.

The two independent directors gave the
declarations as referred to in sub-section (7) of
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the effect
that they meet the criteria of independence as
provided in the Act and the said declarations were
taken note of by the Board on April 22, 2015.

36. DETAILS OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED
PARTIES

No contracts or arrangements in the nature
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 read
with Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014 were entered into by the
Bank with related parties during the year under
review. The details of remuneration paid to the
Managing Director & CEO forms part of the 'notes to
accounts' pursuant to the requirement of Accounting
Standard — 18. However, as the office of Managing
Director is not a place of profit as defined in Section
188, no disclosure with regard to the said payment of
remuneration is annexed to this report.

33. & QuTp

wBn  GLRsaled @GEUILLgG  Gumeimp
aumid @@ Fpsd  QuTpIyewTe] SO Igenul
SimwsHGieTengl. Gueid qrp Feps CUTBINILEwRTT6]
QeTen el IBBISCsTIBeTeNg.  CBTeTmNS
S RISl  BaUSNSHHED o 66N
Hleuamise aldder 201461 Ly Sevewii] Iled
aumEulel Faps QUTBILLERITE]  [bLAUQSHMEHHEIT
GBI Beiteng).

34. ouewf eluTHHTSse Ligaub:

uigemd MGT-9, Uifley 92(3) wbmd Lifley
134(3)(@) Pmeuemseiar  (Gueotamionto  LOBHILD
Byeutad) elglser 2014651 Ly, Benemiiy [0 @Hs
osamauler e QenemabaLiLL BeiTengi.
35. pereimawren Huibgbiseisr sieiiy;:

OB GLRselled GBI Geen L
Hw.P.gagnae wppd Hm.A.ASDUTHTSHE QLW
SHOLTDSIL BUISEGHISET, 16 0M&F 201560 SHHS!
SN FHFULTEN I ES[BTHEMTHOFLIGOLIBE D6

BoleuarsF Lid 2013 Ufley 149 o Lifley
Mar U Brewid SeEIFMFWLTHT BUISHEG BT S6IT
SSHATIOTS CFweLL F1 LSS0 GBI Belen Lig
o_m#Howrfow BuUiGBiseT  GueallLl
oiefg . Bms BUSGSHIGW guyed 22, 201560
ugey QFUIHIOBTERIL B.

36. _eumiduy 651 wieuTHGem(® Gaull

LLh HBIS D) 2 | GILIpSHMNBH
QLIS 6ir:
by @G  QUUESHSED S0

9 L SiLgdbansdsEnhld BpeuarFsl L 2014 algl 15
Ufley 188q1 o 19fley (1)60 (RSGW LBEID
SIS DHHBTEIS6IT) UhIS OHTLTLIEL UIeUTS6rL LD
gBUBSSaleomev. BHifeuts  BubGey
alugd  sas@Gos  alg 180 GBIl
L [BeitenLily  Hewrb@BEhdaTan allaToaniseafer Sip

ol

CamBaHELILL_(HeTengl.
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37. BANK'S POLICY ON_ DIRECTORS'
APPOINTMENTAND REMUNERATION

The Bank is in the process of formulating a
comprehensive remuneration policy for its directors,
key managerial persons and its employees as the new
wage settlement agreement for bank employees is
being implemented. Once the new wage settlement
is implemented a comprehensive remuneration
policy for the directors and the employees will be put
inplace.

As a banking company, the bank is required
to have not less than fifty-one percent of its directors
meeting the specified eligibility criteria referred to in
Section 10 A (2) of Banking Regulation Act, 1949.
Further, for determining the independence of
directors the Bank strictly follows the criteria laid
down in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of
Companies Act, 2013.

Only the Managing Director & CEO is paid a
fixed remuneration as approved by Reserve Bank of
India under Section 35 B of Banking Regulation Act,
1949 subject to periodic increments as the Board
may decide from time to time, the details of which
are part of the 'notes to accounts'. The other non-
executive directors are paid only sitting fees for
attending the meetings of the Board and its
Committees. None of the directors including the MD
& CEO receives any profit linked remuneration. The
sitting fees payable to the non-executive directors
has been increased to ¥ 30,000 and I 15,000 for
attending the meetings of the Board and the
Committees respectively, w.e.f. June 26,2015.

38. INFORMATION SECURITY:

To protect the Bank's critical customer
information and to maintain resilience in business
continuity, Informationn Security is given due
importance. A separate Information Security
Department is formed headed by an Assistant
General Manager as Chief Information Security
Officer and a Senior Manager as Information
Security Officer. A Security Operations Centre
(SOC), manned by 8 onsite resources, has been
established for monitoring and storage of logs at a
centralized location. Real time threat alerts are being
sent to the application teams concerned on a
proactive basis for remedial measures.

RN S
.

37.  BusaEpiseisr  Huioend IHEMD eaguib
ubpiw eusiBluier QEmeitens:

amid, SiFHaET BUWSGHIH6T WBDID (LSSl
Biyeurs  Gueomewientd LTSI  LOBDID DB
omAuIBEHdE G alifleumer eaglul CaTeTamsemiLl
2 _(Haund@Gaide CFweopempuied 2 6Tengl. eumis)
oaflfsEhsE  YHw  eagw o Lerun(
QEFwAUBSHILLG aBSBE. S sadul &iey
CrwebudBHBILLL  LIBE BuwsESBhIseT BEID
oaflIfHEhHBTE b  elfleuTenr  oamguld
Ommeliensd E(HBGLD.

dfley  10A(2) UJflelled  @BILLIGeiten
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Ued 35B. aumidl @umiGWe»BFLLLD 19496 Lig
BUSGHT Gpamed s Benl-OaualsE gnBaTm
omAwd o wisHd OsrhisliLpaBs TR
sWMHG FNjhs GUULBeN0 QBTHHSILL BTN
Qewed FmMIgH HaumdseEndd, GW. FhIHLILT
&0bG OBmeTeaumsiE SIGHD  SLUL6wid oL B
apRisLLGEBE.  Bijans Qus@er)  LBEHID
HMEVEMID HifeuTs QFEMf o L Buisheeser
Beomug demied  BemewmssUULL  emFlulld
QuBIeuRevemev. ggear 26, 2015 (pGed OlFwied Fmym
BLBGHTHEDSSH PO  SIGBL  SHLLGwID
BusGHIGW FHIIIBE @6.30,000 Sysab, BB
GushAIIBE Mm.15,0000ph CaTHSSELILGSBSI.
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Vulnerabilities in the systems hosting
business-critical applications are being assessed at
periodical intervals and remedial measures are being
taken on a proactive basis. All internet facing
websites of the Bank like www.tmb.in and
www.tmbnet.in are being proactively monitored
24X7 against Phishing, Malware and Trojan attacks.
Web Application Firewall, Database Activity
Monitoring and Privileged Identity Management
Tools have also been implemented as part of SOC
operations.

Network availability is being monitored on
24X7 basis to ensure continuity of business at
branches. Information Security Liaison Officers
(ISLOs) are identified at regional office level and
two officials from each region have been nominated
as ISLOs. Awareness training is being provided to
these officials at periodical intervals. Regular
sessions on Information Security are being
conducted for the Bank personnel at our Staff
Training Colleges. We propose to adopt ISO-27001
(Information Security Management System- ISMS)
Standard, the internationally accredited best
practices, for the Bank's IT Operations.

39. THE POSITION REGARDING
GOPALAKRISHNA COMMITTEE
RECOMMENDATIONS:

In terms of RBI guidelines, the Bank has
established a robust Information Security
Governance framework. Gap Assessment with
respect to RBI guidelines (Gopalakrishna
Committee Recommendations) is carried out.
Presently, a compliance level of more than 90% has
been achieved. Efforts are being made towards
continuous improvement. The status of compliance
is being reported to the Bank's Board and the
Information Systems Security Committee
periodically.
40.OTHERS
Il As the Bank has no activity relating to
conservation of energy and technology absorption,
such particulars are not required to be furnished

under sub-section (3)(m) of Section 134 of the

ARG

www.tmb.in &www.tmbnet.in
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Companies Act 2013 read with Rule (8)(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

I There is an 'internal complaints committee'
in the Bank set up in pursuance of the requirements
laid down in Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act, 2013 to take care of the complaints received. No
complaints were received by the committee during
the year under review.

41.ACKNOWLEDGMENT

The Board places on record its appreciation
of the valuable patronage, co-operation and
goodwill received by your Bank from customers,
fellow bankers, financial institutions and Non-
Resident Indians. The continued support and co-
operation of the employees and customers have been
a constant source of strength to the Bank in all its
endeavours.

The Board places on record its gratitude to
Reserve Bank of India and other regulatory
authorities, the Government of India and State
Governments for their continued guidance and
support.

The staff members of the Bank have been
working with dedication and deep commitment.
Teamwork at every level, well supported by
appropriate technology architecture, has been the
hallmark of the Bank's performance. The Board
places on record its appreciation of the excellent
contribution made by each and every member of the
staff, who have made our achievements all along
possible and is confident that such contribution will
continue in the coming years.

For and on behalf of the Board
sd/-H.S.Upendra Kamath
Managing Director & CEO

sd/-P. Yesuthasen
Director

sd/-S.Sunder
Director

sd/- T.Rajakumar
Director

Place: Thoothukudi
Date : 26.06.2015
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ANNEXURE -1

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANKLIMITED
57, Victoria Extension Road
Thoothukudi—628002.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED
[U65110TN1921PLC001908] (hereinafter called “the Banking Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited's books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Banking Company and also the information provided by
the Banking Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial
Audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the Banking Company has, during the audit period covering
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Banking Company has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained
by the Banking Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under and the Companies Act, 1956 to the
extent applicable;

(ii) The Banking Company is an unlisted Public Company and hence the question of complying with the
provisions of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA') and the rules made there under

doesnotarise;
(iii) Since the entire Share capital of the Banking Company is represented by physical holding of Shares,

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under are not applicable to the
Banking Company.

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder;

(v) The Banking Company is an unlisted Public Company and hence the question of complying with the
provisions of the following Regulations (a to h) and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act') does not arise:-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992;
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c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,
2014 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 to the extent applicable;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Actand dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,

2009 ;and
h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998

(vi) We have reviewed the systems and mechanisms established by the Banking Company for ensuring
compliances under the other applicable Acts, Rules, Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under various
laws which are applicable to the Banking Company and categorized under the following major
heads/groups:

Banking Regulation Act, 1949,

Reserve Bank of IndiaAct, 1934

Prevention of Money Laundering Act, 2002

Bankers' Book Evidence Act, 1891

Deposit Insurance and Credit Guarantee Corporation Act

Securitisation and Reconstruction of Financial Assets and Enforcement of Security Interest
Act, 2002

Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

Payment of Gratuity Act,1972

10 Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

11. The Information Technology Act, 2000 and

12. Other local laws as applicable to various branches and offices.

S

\© 90 =

With respect to Fiscal laws such as Income Tax, Wealth Tax, Finance Act, Professional Tax Rules, and
Service Tax Rules based on the information and explanation provided to us by the management and
officers of the Banking Company, we report that adequate systems are in place to monitor and ensure
compliance of fiscal laws as mentioned above.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(1) The Secretarial Standards on General and Board Meetings specified by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India (ICSI) as prescribed under Section 118 (10) of the Act is applicable with effect from
1stJuly, 2015 and hence not included in the scope of Audit for the current year.

(i) The Banking Company is an unlisted Public Company and hence the question of complying with the
provisions of the Listing Agreement(s) does notarise.

During the period under review the Banking Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below;
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1. The 88th,89th,90th,91st and 92nd Annual General Meetings for the years 2010,2011,2012,2013
and 2014 were not held in view of the interim injunction imposed by the Hon'ble High Court of
Judicature at Madras in a Writ Petition No. 11159 of 2011, filed by a sharcholder against Reserve
Bank of India and the Banking Company.

2. TheBanking Company had made an application to the Registrar of Companies, Chennai, vide SRN
C21236047 on 20th September 2014 seeking its approval for an extension of time by three months
from 30th September, 2014 i.e. beyond the normal period for holding its 92nd Annual General
Meeting (hereinafter referred to as AGM) for the year 2014. The extension of time up to 31st -
December, 2014 was not allowed by the Registrar of Companies, Tamil Nadu, Chennai, under
Section 96/129 of the Companies Act,2013 vide letter dated 30th September, 2014 since the reasons
for extension of time to hold its 92nd Annual General meeting were not tenable as the matter is
pending since 2011.

3. The Banking Company has not appointed a Woman director as required under Section 149(1) of
The Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Banking Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The appointment of two Independent
Directors viz. Mr.P.Yesuthasen and Mr.A.Shidambaranathan, by the Board at its meeting held on 16th
March, 2015 is subject to the approval of the members of the Banking Company in General Meeting.
Mr.P.Yesuthasen was appointed by the Board as an Additional Director on 16th April, 2011 and
Mr.A .Shidambaranathan was appointed by the Board as an Additional Director on 21st October, 2011
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and they continue to hold office. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors before schedule of the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

Based on the verification of the records and minutes, wherever a member of the Board dissented to the
decisions taken at Board Meetings, the same has been duly recorded. However, at the Committee meetings
all decisions were unanimous.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Banking Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Banking Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period,
1.  With the approval of the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) vide letter dated 04.06.2014, the Board had,

subject to the approval of the members in the General Meeting, appointed Mr. H.S.Upendra
Kamath as Managing Director and CEO with effect from 09th July, 2014 for a period of 3 Years.
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2. TheBoard onthe approval of RBI vide letter dated 20.10.2014 appointed M/s. Maharaj N.R. Suresh
& Co., Chennai as the Central Statutory Auditor for the Financial year ending 31.03.2015.

3. TheBanking Company had filed a Transfer petition before the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India for
transfer of all pending cases related to share transfers transferred to a single Court for expeditious
disposal and for avoiding the possibility of conflicting decisions from different courts.

4.  Inthelight of the dispute to title of various shares in different stages in the High Courts in different
suits/RBI, the Banking Company had kept in abeyance the amount of dividend/interim dividend
declared on the said shares during various years and transfer the amount payable in respect of the
said shares to 'Unpaid Dividend Account' together with all other dividends lying unpaid or
unclaimed after a period of 30 days from the date of declaration of dividend/interim dividend.

5.  Mr.B.Prabaharan, Mr.P.Yesuthasen, Mr. Thirukumar Vedhanayagam and Mr.T.Rajakumar were
appointed by the Board as Additional Directors on 16.04.2011 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 and Mr.A.Shidambaranathan was appointed as an Additional Director on
21.10.2011 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. These Directors continue to hold
office as the Banking Company was not able to hold any AGM since 2010.

PLACE : CHENNAI For R.SRIDHARAN & ASSOCIATES

DATE : 26/06/2015 COMPANY SECRETARIES
sd/-

CS R.SRIDHARAN

CP No. 3239

FCS No. 4775

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ANNEXURE I and

forms an integral part of this report
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To,

'AnnexureI'

The Members
TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED

57, Victoria Extension Road
Thoothukudi—628002.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide areasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Banking Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Banking
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs
of the Banking Company.

PLACE : CHENNAI For R.SRIDHARAN & ASSOCIATES
DATE : - COMPANY SECRETARIES

sd/-
CS R.SRIDHARAN
CP No. 3239
FCS No. 4775
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L.

ANNEXURE - 11
Annual Report on CSR Activities

Abriefoutline of the bank's CSR policy:

The CSR Policy ofthe bank outlines the type and scope of activities to be undertaken as part of the Bank's
commitment to contributing to the overall progress of the society, people and the environment while
aligning the same with the general policy prescriptions of the Government of India in the matter of growth
and development. Italso aims at complying with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014 and allied notifications issued by
the Government of India.

The specific activities to be undertaken by the Bank within the parameters as specified in Schedule VII of
the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

1.
.
1ii.
1v.
V.
Vi.
Vii.
Viii.
IX.

XI.
Xil.

Xiil.

X1v.
XV.

XV1.
XVIl.
Xviil.
XiX.

Financial inclusion —to cover under clause (ii) of Schedule VII,

Provision ofsolar powered street lights—to cover under clauses (iv) and (x)

Provision of food to orphanages/old age homes - clause (i)

Planting of trees/saplings — clause (iv)

Donations to schools, vocational institutions etc. — clauses (ii) and (iii)

Organising blood donation camps, eye testing camps etc. — clause (i)

Donating bicycles, sewing machines etc. — clause (ii)

Setting up a library for the public —clause (v)

Providing RO plants to schools, old age homes etc. —clause (i)

Construction of toilets etc. —clause (1)

Training centre for promotion of nationally rebognised sports —clause (vii)

Avocational training/empowerment/skill building institute in the line of RSETT (Rural Self
Employment Training Institute) or so could be started by the Bank for imparting training to various
sections of people in the society especially rural youth and women. Providing financial assistance to
ITIs also could be considered —clause (ii)

Setting up bore-wells, water treatment plants, fresh water disposal plants including RO plants etc.
in villages, schools etc. —clause (i).

Developing rural market places— clause (1it), (x) and (xi)

Provision of infrastructure and aiding machinery for differently abled people, like wheel chairs,
cycles, ramps etc. — clause (ii) and (ii1)

Electrification of villages, especially through solar energy — clause (x)

Healthcare and sanitation facilities for villagers especially womenfolk—clause (i)

Provision of free medical camps, medical consultancy, clinics etc. — clause (i)

Setting up of creches and day care centres—clause (iii)

Providing ambulances— clause (i)

Providing financial assistance for fees, maintenance expenses and provision of various amenities to
the schools and charitable trusts meant for the specially abled/differently abled/mentally unsound
children—clause (ii).
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2. TheComposition of the CSR Committee of Board:
Shri H. S. Upendra Kamath, MD & CEO
Shri S. R. Aravind Kumar
ShriP. Mahendravel
Shri B. Prabaharan
Shri T. Raja Kumar
ShriK. V.Rajan
ShriA. Shidambaranathan, Independent Director
Shri P. Yesuthasen, Independent Director
3. Averagenetprofitof the company for last three financial years:
%373.48 crore
4.  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as initem 3 above): I 746.96 lakh
5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
(1) (2) 3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. | CSR Sector in | Projects or | Amount Amount spent | Cumulative | Amount
No | project or which programs outlay on the projects | expenditure | spent:
activity the (1) Local (budget or programs upto the | Direct or
identified Project area or | project  or | Sub-Heads: reporting through
iS other programs (1) Direct period implementing
covered | (2) Specify | wise) expenditur anc
the e on agency
State projects or
and programs
_district (2) Overheads
where
projects
or
program
s was
underta
ken
1 | Provision Clause | Tamilnadu 4,69,600 4,69,600 4,69,600 Direct
of food (i)
to
orphanages/
old homes
2 | Donations to | Clauses | Tamilnadu, | 1,57,78,891 1,57,78,891 | 1,62,48,491 Direct
schools (i) & Andhra
(iii) and Kerala
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Donating
bicycles,
sewing
machines
etc

Clause

(ii)

Tamilnadu

25,000

25,000

1,62,73,491

Construction
of toilets
efc..

Clause

(i)

Tamilnadu
&
Maharastra

44,72,000

44,72,000

2,07,45,491

Direct

Training
centre  for
promotion of
nationality
recognized
sports

Clause
(Vii)

Tamilnadu

2,00,000

2,00,000

2,09,45,491

Direct

Providing
financial
assistance
to ITls

Clause

(if)

Tamilnadu

8,25,000

8,25,000

2,17,70,491

Direct

Setting up
bore wells,
water
treatment
plants, fresh
water
disposal
plants
including RO
plants etc..
in villages

Clause

(i)

Tamilnadu

3,56,333

3,596,333

2,21,26,824

Direct

Provision of
infrastructure
and aiding
machinery
for differently
abled
people, like
wheel chairs,
cycles,
ramps etc.

Clauses
(ii) &
(iii)

Tamilnadu,
Punjab &
West
Bengal

3,60,000

3,60,000

2,24,86,824

Direct

Healthcare
and
sanitation
facilities for
villagers
especially
womenfolk

Clause

(i)

Tamilnadu

3,28,776

3,28,776

2,28,15,600

Direct

10

Prime
Minister
National
Relief Fund

Jammu
and
Kashmir

10,00,000

10,00,000

2,38,15,600

Direct
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11 | RSETI Clause | Tamilnadu 50,28,000 - - -
vocational (i)
training
institute  of
our bank
12 | Free Sugar | Clause | Tamilnadu 1,45,000 - - -
Test (i
Campaign
14 | Healthcare Clause | Tamilnadu 5,20,650 - - -
and ()
sanitation
facilities for
villagers
especially
womenfolk
TOTAL 3,01,49,250 | 2,38,15,600

6.  Incasethe company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the
amount in its Board report

We have made all endeavors to identify activities/projects covered under our CSR initiatives so as
to contribute a substantial amount. However it may be noted that since the CSR conceptinits
current form is still in the nascent stages, in the initial days there was no clarity about the
applicability of CSR requirement to Banks. There were also proposals from the Ministry of Finance
to the Ministry Corporate Affairs recommending relaxation of the CSR norms in respect of Banks.
Asbanks were custodians of public funds the prudence and propriety of spending huge amounts on
corporate social responsibility initiatives were questionable. In a scenario where certain amount of
ambiguity prevailed with respect to the very applicability of the CSR norms itself, the Bank was not
on a position to make any concrete efforts in furtherance of its CSR objectives.

However itis noteworthy to mention here that the Bank has been making its contributions to the
society at large much before CSR as a concept has got statutory recognition in the current form. The
Bank has been contributing substantial amounts of money every year to education institutions,
vocation institutions, old age homes and homes for the destitute, centres and projects aimed at
women empowerment etc.
The Bank shall make all efforts to make much more contribution on CSR activities in the current
year. ‘

7.  Aresponsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR
Policy is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company.

Itis hereby certified by the CSR Committee of Board as well as the Board of Directors that the sums
incurred towards various activities under the CSR initiatives of the bank during the year 2014-15
are in conformity with the CSR policy guidelines of the bank and it is monitored asenvisaged in the
said policy |




93* Annual Report 2014-15 T/WB s

Be a step ahead of life

ANNEXURE - III

Form No. MGT-9
Extract of Annual Return as on the financial year ended on 31/03/2015
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

. Registration and other details:

1| CIN U65110TN1921PLC001908
2 | Registration Date May 11, 1921
3 | Name of the Company Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited
4 | Address of the Registered office | 57, V. E. Road, Thoothukudi,
and contact details Tamil Nadu — 628 002
5| Category / Sub-Category of the | Public Company/Limited by Shares
Company
6 | Whether listed company Yes /| No
No
7 | Name, Address and Contact details | None
of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if
any

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the
company shall be stated:-

Sl. No. Name and NIC Code of the | % to total turnover
Description of Product/ service of the company

main products /
1 BANKING NA 100

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S.NO. NAME AND CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % of Applicable
ADDRESS SUBSIDIARY/ shares Section
OF THE ASSOCIATE held
COMPANY
1 NONE




03" Annual Report 2014-15

TA\

B .
Mercantile
Bank Ltd

Bea step shead of e

Iv.

Total Equity)

SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders
of GDRs and ADRs):
Cumulative
holding during
Shareholding the year
No. of
shares at | % of
the total
beginnin | shares Increase/Dec Perc
Sl. g/end of | ofthe rease in No.of | enta
No. | Name the year | Bank Date shareholding | Reason | shares | ge
Robert and Ardis 14080 4.95 None NA 14080 | 4.95
James Company
1 | Limted 14080 4.95
Vector Program 13455 473 None NA 13455 | 4.73
2 | Private Limited 13455 4.73
Subcontinental 13209 4.64 None NA 13209 | 4.64
3 | Equities Limited 13209 4.64 ,
. 11342 3.99 None NA 11342 | 3.99
4 | Gokul Patnaik 11342 3.99
B. Ramachandra 10817 3.80 None NA 10817 | 3.80
5 | Adityan 10817 3.80
Swiss 10124 | 356 None NA | 10124 | 356
Reinvestors
(Mauritius)
6 | Limited 10124 3.56
9247 3.25 None NA 9247 | 3.25
7 | M. G. M. Maran 9247 3.25
Fl Investments 5399 |  1.90 None NA 5399 | 1.90
(Mauritius)
8 | Limited - 5399 1.90
4138 1.45 NA 4139 | 145
02.09.2014 1
9 | C. S. Rajendran 4139 1.45
3018 1.06 NA 3034 | 1.07
P.C.G. Asok 28.10.2014 10
10 | Kumar 3034 1.07 | 02.09.2014 6




93" Annual Report 2014-15

TA\B=

Bex step shead of i

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters:
There were ten persons who promoted the Bank in the year 1921 by subscribing to its
Memorandum of Association, collectively holding 11505 equity shares of Rs.10 each. Since all
these persons are deceased now, we have not made any attempt to identify the promoter group
at present. Some of the descendants of these persons might be holding some shares in the bank
stil. Since we are an unlisted company we have not formally categorized the bank's
shareholders into promoter group and non-promoter group.

(i) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)- Not Applicable

(iv) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SI | Name Share holding Date Increas | Reason Cumulative holding
No e/Decr during the year
gase
No.of | %of No. of Percen
shares | total shares at tage
atthe | shares the end of
beginni | of the the year
ng of bank
the year
1 | ThiruH. S. Upendra - - - - - -
Kamath (MD&CEO)
2 | ThiruS. R. Aravind Kumar 885 0.311 - - 885 0.311
(Director)
3 | Thiru P. Mahendravel 1 0.0004 - - 1 0.0004
(Director)
4 | Thiru B. Prabaharan 514 0.181 | 29.04.2014 5 Purchase 523 0.184
(Director) 16.062014 | 4
5 | Thiru T. Rajakumar 197 0.069 | 03.02.2015 3 Purchase 201 0.071
(Director) 16.03.2015 1 Purchase
6 | ThiruK. N. Rajan 7 0.003 - - 7 0.003
(Director)
7 | ThiruK. V. Rajan - - - - - -
(Director)
8 | ThiruS. C. Sekar 308 0.284 | 17.05.2014 3 Purchase 811 0.285
(Director)
9 | ThiruA. 14 0.005 - - 14 0.005
Shidambaranathan
(Director)
10 | Thiru S. Sundar (Director) - - - - - - -
11 | Thiru Thirukumar 500 0.176 - - - 500 0.176
Vethanayagam (Director)
12 | ThiruV.V.D.N. Vikraman | 1805 | 0.635 - - - 1805 0.635
(Director)
13 | Thiru P. Yesuthasen 5 0.002 - - - 5 0.002
(Director)
14 | Thiru C.S Deepak - - - - - -
(Company Secretary)
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for paymerit

(Rs.in crore)

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits '

Indebtedness at the beginning of 259.58 22645.68 22905.26

the financial year

i) Principal Amount Nil

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+ii) il 25058 | 2264568 | 22905.26

Change in Indebtedness during ) -219.20 3004.18 2784.98

the financial year Nil

- Addition
- Reduction

Net Change Nil -219.20 3004.18 2784.98

Indebtedness at the 40.38 25649.86 | 25690.24

end of the financial year Nil

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) Nil 40.38 25649.86 25690.24

VI. Remuneration of Directors and key managerial personnel
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and / or Manager

during 2014-15:

S.No Particulars of Name of MD/WTD |Name of MD/WTD| Total Amount
Remuneration (T)
Shri Shri. K. B.
H. S. Upendra Nagendra Murthy
Kamath, (former-
MD & CEO* MD&CEO)*
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of 30,59,677 11,40,323 42,00,000
the Income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Vvalue of
perquisites under
section 17(2) 44,363 55,907 1,00,270
Income-tax Act,1961
2. Stock Option NIL NIL NIL
Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL
4. Commission NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profit
- Others, specify...
5. Others, please 3,67,161 14,20,172 17,87,333
specify (PF, Gratuity,
PL encashment etc.)
Total (A) 34,71,201 26,16,402 60,87,603
Ceiling as per the Act

*employed for a part of the year
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Compounding

B. Remuneration to other directors: (%)
SI.No. | Name of Directors Sitting Fees | Commission | Total
1. Shri. B. Prabaharan 6,75,000 Nil 6,75,000
2. Shri. S. R. Aravind kumar 7,23,000 Nil 7,23,000
3. Shri. P. Mahendravel 7,08,000 Nil 7,08,000
4. Shri. T. Rajakumar 4,75,000 Nil 4,75,000
5. Shri. S. C. Sekar 3,43,000 Nil 3,43,000
6. Shri. A. Shidambaranathan 6,83,000 Nil 6,83,000
7. Shri. S. Sundar 5,50,000 Nil 5,50,000
8. Shri. Thirukumar Vethanayagam 39,000 Nil 39,000
9. Shri. V. V. D. N. Vikraman 5,79,000 Nil 5,779,000
10. Shri. P. Yesuthasen 5,56,000 Nil 5,56,000
11. Shri. K. N. Rajan 5,779,000 Nil 5,79,000
12. Shri. K. V. Rajan 7,47,000 Nil 7,47,000
Total 66,577,000 Nil 66,57,000
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER /
WTD (%)
Sl. | Particulars of Key Managerial Personnel
no Remuneration
CEO Company CFO Total
Secretary
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, NA 11,94,242 NA 11,94,242
1961
(b) Value of perquisites under section
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 2,56,720 2,56,720
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
2. Stock Option NA NA
3. Sweat Equity NA NA
4. Commission NA NA
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5. Others, please specify NA NA
Total 14,50,962 14,50,962
Vil. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of the | Brief Details of Authority Appeal
Companies Act | Description Penalty / [RD / NCLT made,
Punishment/ / COURT] if any
Compounding (give
fees imposed Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty NONE
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty NONE
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty NONE
Punishment
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Basel Il - Pillar 3 Disclosures as on 31.03.2015
1. f Application an ital A

Table DF-1- Scope of application
Name of the head of the banking group

to which the framework applies:- Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Ltd.,
Qualitative Disclosures Applicability to our Bank
a. List of Group entities considered for consolidation. The Bank does not belong to any group and does not

have any associate, subsidiaries, joint venture,efc.

b. List of Group entities not considered for consolidation| Not Applicable
both under the accounting and regulatory scope of
consolidation.

Quantitative Disclosures

c. List of group entities considered for consolidation The Bank does not belong to any group and does not
have any associate, subsidiaries, joint venture, efc.

d. The aggregate amount of capital deficiencies in all | Not Applicable
subsidiaries which are not included in the regulatory
scope of consolidation i.e. that are deducted and the
name(s) of such subsidiaries.

e. The aggregate amounts (e.g. Current book value) of | Not Applicable
the bank’s total interests in insurance entities, which
are risk-weighted.

f. Any restriction or impediments on transfer of funds or | Not Applicable
regulatory capital within the banking group.

Table DF-2-Capital Adequacy

Qualitative Disclosures
A. A summary discussion of the Bank's approach to assessing the adequacy of its capital
to support current and future activities.

The Bank is following standardized approach, Standardized Duration approach and Basic Indicator
approach for measurement of capital charge in respect of credit risk, market risk and operational risk respectively.

The computation of Capital for credit risk under Standardized Approach is done granularly borrower &
account wise based on the data captured through Core

Banking Solution. Bank is also taking efforts on an ongoing basis for the accuracy of the data. The various
aspects of NCAF norms are imparted to field level staff regularly through circulars and letters for
continuous purification of data and to ensure accurate computation of Risk Weight and the Capital Charge.

The Bank has used the credit risk mitigation in computation of capital for credit risk, as prescribed in the RBI

guidelines under Standardized Approach.
The capital for credit risk on Loans and Advances, market risk and operational risk as per the prescribed

approaches are being computed at the bank's Head Office and aggregated to arrive at the bank’s CRAR
position. The bank has followed the RBI guidelines in force, to arrive at the eligible capital funds,

for computing CRAR.
Besides computing CRAR under the Pillar | requirement, the Bank also periodically undertakes stress testing

in various risk areas to assess the impact of stressed scenario or plausible events on asset quality,
liquidity, profitability and capital adequacy.
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The bank conducts Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) on annual basis to assess the
sufficiency of its capital funds to cover the risks specified under Pillar- Il of Basel guidelines. The adequacy of Bank's
capital funds to meet the future business growth is also assessed in the ICAAP document, which is approved
by the Board. While the surplus CRAR available at present acts as a buffer to support the future activities,

the headroom available for the bank for mobilizing Tier 1 and Tier 2 capital (subject to approval by the competent

authorities) is also assessed to meet the required CRAR against future activities.

The Bank has high quality Common Equity Tier 1 capital, as the entire components of CET1 capital

comprises of Paid up Capital, Reserves & Surplus and retained earnings.

Minimum capital requirements under Basel-III:

Under the Basel Ill Capital Regulations, Banks are required to maintain a minimum Pillar 1 Capital
(Tier-1 + Tier-I) to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) of 9% on an on-going basis. Besides this
minimum capital requirement, Basel 11l also provides for creation of capital conservation buffer (CCB).
The transitional period of full implementation of Basel lll capital regulation in India is extended
up to March 31,2019. Accordingly the CCB requirements are to be implemented from March 31,

2016 in phases and are to be fully implemented by March 31, 2019 to the extent of 2.5% of Risk weighted Assets.

The total regulatory capital fund under Basel- Ill norms will consist of the sum of the following categories
and banks are required to maintain 11.50% of Risk Weighted Assets (9% + 2.5%) by March 2019
with the phase in requirements under CCB from 2016.

o Tier 1 Capital comprises of:-
o Common Equity Tier 1 capital (with a minimum of 5.5%)
o Additional Tier 1 capital (1.50%)
o Total Tier 1 capital of minimum 7%

o Tier 2 Capital (2%)
o Total Tier 1 + Tier 2 should be more than 9%

¢ Capital Conservation Buffer (CCB). (with a minimum of 2.5%)
o Total capital including CCB should be 11.5%

In line with the RBI guidelines for implementing the New Capital Adequacy Frame Work

under Basel lll, the bank has successfully migrated from April 01, 2013.

Quantitative Disclosure

(¥in crore)

a)

Capital requirement for Credit Risk:
(@9% on risk Weighted Assets)

¢ Portfolios subject to Standardised Approach

1505.63

o Securitisation exposures

Nil

Capital requirements for Market Risk:

o Standardised Duration Approach

71.46

o Interest Rate Risk

63.05

o Equity Risk

5.71

o Foreign Exchange Risk

2.70

Capital requirements for Operational Risk:

¢ Basic Indicator Approach

166.94

Total Capital required @9%

1744.03

PR v e
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d) | Total Capital funds available 2692.49

Total Risk Weighted Assets 19378.05
Common Equity Tier | CRAR 13.29%
Tier | CRAR 13.29%
Tier Il CRAR 0.60%
Total CRAR 13.89%

2. Risk exposure and Assessment

Risk is an integral part of banking business in an ever dynamic environment, which is undergoing radical changes
both on the technology front and product offerings. The main risks faced by the bank are credit risk, market
risk and operational risk. The bank aims to achieve an optimum balance between risk and retumn to maximize
shareholder value. The relevant information on the various categories of risks faced by the bank is givenin the
ensuing sections. This information is intended to give market participants a better idea on the risk profile and
risk management practices of the bank.

The Bank has a comprehensive risk management system in order to address various risks and has set up an
Integrated Risk Management Department (RMD), which is independent of operational departments. Bank has
a Risk Management Committee of Board functioning at apex level for formulating, implementing and reviewing
bank’s risk management measures pertaining to credit, market and operational risks. Apart from the Risk

Management Committee of the Board at apex level, the Bank has a strong Bank-wide risk management
structure comprising of Risk Management Committee of Executives (RMCE) and Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) at senior management level.

The Bank has formulated the required policies such as Loan Policy, Credit Risk Management Policy, Credit Risk
Mitigation Techniques & Collateral Management Policy, ALM Policy, Operational Risk Policy, Investment Policy,
Foreign Exchange Risk Management Policy, Policy for Hedging Foreign Currency Loan Exposure, Concurrent Audit Policy,
Inspection Policies, IS Audit Policy, KYC policy, Post Credit Supervision Policy, Stock Audit Policy, Out Sourcing Policy,
IT Business Continuity and Disaster Recovery Plan (IT BC-DRP),Risk Based Intenal Audit Policy, Stress Testing Policy,
Disclosure Policy, ICAAP Policy, etc for mitigating the risks in various areas and monitoring the same.The bank continues
to focus on refining and improving its risk measurement and management systems.

Table DF-3- CREDIT RISK: GENERAL DISCLOSURES

Qualitative Disclosures:
a. Credit Risk )

Credit risk is the possibility of losses associated with diminution in the credit quality of borrowers or
counter-parties. In a Bank’s portfolio, Credit Risk arises mostly from lending activities of the Bank,
as a borrower is unable to meet his financial obligations to the lender. It emanates from potential
changes in the credit quality / worthiness of the borrowers or counter-parties.

Credit Rating & Appraisal Process

The Bank has well structured intemal credit rating framework and well-established standardized credit appraisal /approval processes.
Credit Rating is a decision-enabling tool that helps the bank to take a view on acceptability or otherwise of any
credit proposal. In order to widen the scope and coverage further and strengthen the credit risk management
practices, the bank has developed risk sensitive rating models in-house during the year 2008-09 and 2009-10.

The internal rating factors take into consideration the quantitative and qualitative issues relating to management
risk, business risk, industry risk, financial risk, credit discipline, and also risk mitigation, based on the collaterals available.
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Credit rating, as a concept, has been well internalized within the Bank. The rating for eligible borrower is reviewed
at least once in a year. The Bank uses the credit ratings for deciding the interest rates on borrowal accounts.
The advantage of credit rating is that it enables to rank different proposals and do meaningful comparison.

With the view to migrate to advanced approaches in credit risk, the Bank has implemented the system driven
rating using web based rating model solution (RAM & CRESS) acquired from M/s. Crisil Risk &Infrastructure solutions Ltd.,

The bank follows a well-defined multi layered discretionary power structure for sanction of loans. Credit Approval Grid
has been constituted at H.O for considering in-principle approval for taking up fresh credit proposals above a specified cut-off.

Credit Risk Management Policies

The Bank has put in place a well-structured Credit Risk Management Policy duly approved by the Bank’s Board.
The Policy document defines organization structure, role & responsibilities and, the processes whereby the Credit Risks
carried by the Bank can be identified, quantified & managed within the framework that the Bank considers consistent
with its mandate and risk tolerance.

Credit Risk is monitored on a bank-wide basis and compliance with the risk limits approved by Board/Risk
Management Committee of Board is ensured.

The Bank has taken earnest steps to put in place best credit risk management practices in the bank. In addition to
Credit Risk Policy, the bank has also framed Board approved Loan Policy, Investment Policy etc. which forms integral part in
monitoring Credit risk in the bank. Besides, the bank has framed a policy on Credit Risk Mitigation Techniques & Collateral

Management with the approval of the Board which lays down the details of securities (both Primary and Collateral) normally
accepted by the Bank and administration of such securities to protect the interest of the Bank. These securities act as mitigation
against the credit risk to which the bank is exposed.

Classification of Non Performing Assets

The Bank follows the prudential guidelines issued by the RBI on classification of non- performing assets as under,

i) interest and/or installment of principal remain overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of a term loan.

ii) the account remains ‘out of order if the outstanding balance remains continuously in excess of sanctioned
limits / DP for more than 90 days in respect of Overdraft/Cash Credit (OD/CC).

iii) the bill remains overdue for a period of more than 90 days in the case of bills purchased and discbunted
iv) the instaliment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for two crop seasons for short duration crop.
v) the installment of principal or interest thereon remains overdue for one crop season for long duration crops.

Where the interest charged during any quarter is not serviced fully within 90 days from the end of the quarter,
the account is classified as non-performing. A non-performing asset ceases to generate income for the bank.

(X in crore)
Quantitative Disclosures Applicability to our Bank
b. Gross Credit Risk Exposures Fund Based 24707.37
Non Fund Based 2825.01
c. Geographical Distribution of Exposures (% in crore)
Domestic Operations Overseas Operations
Total

Fund Based | Non Fund Based | Fund Based | Non Fund Based
24707.37 2825.01 - - 27532.38
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d. Industry type distribution of credit exposures as on 31.03.2015 - Fund
based and Non-fund based & investments

(Zincr)
Exposure
Investment | Total
Industry Name FB NFB

Mining and Quarrying (incl. Coal) 88.60 19.55 0.36 108.51
Coal 58.70 6.88 0.00 65.58
Mining 29.90 12.67 0.36 42.93
Food Processing 1249.72 435.03 0.00 | 1684.75
Sugar 56.84 0.00 0.00 56.84
Edible Oils and Vanaspathi 111.86 403.01 0.00 514 .87
Tea 2.10 0.00 0.00 2.10
Coffee 47.89 0.00 0.00 47.89
Others 1031.03 32.02 0.00 | 1063.05
Beverage & Tobacco 46.69 0.87 0.00 47.56
Tobacco and tobacco products 2.64 0.00 0.00 2.64
Others 44.05 0.87 0.00 44.92
Textiles 3560.46 133.99 0.73 | 3695.18
Cotton Textiles 601.81 8.81 0.73 611.35
Jute Textiles 213 0.00 0.00 2.13
Man-Made Textiles(handicraft/Khadi) 3.02 0.00 0.00 3.02
Other Textiles 2953.50 125.18 0.00| 3078.68
Out of total textiles to Spinning mills 1399.62 66.57 0.00 | 1466.19
Leather & Leather Products 12.92 0.40 0.00 13.32
Wood and Wood Products 138.04 84.36 0.00 222.40
Paper & Paper Products 229.75 19.22 0.00 248.97
Petroleum, Coal Products and Nuclear Fuels 2.35 0.04 25.84 28.23
Chemicals and Chemical Products 280.30 12.71 0.04 293.05

Fertilizer 8.31 0.00 0.04 8.35

Drugs & Pharmaceuticals 86.51 0.66 0.00 87.17

Petro Chemicals (excluding under 221 0.00 0.00 291

Infrastructure)

Others 183.27 12.05 0.00 195.32
Rubber, Plastic & their Products 92.17 0.40 0.00 92.57
Glass and Glass Ware 4.49 0.00 0.00 4.49
Cement and Cement Products 13.36 0.00 0.00 13.36
Basic Metal and Metal Products 518.67 29.85 10.49 559.01

Iron and Steel 344.66 15.53 0.49 360.68

Other Metal and Metal Products 174.01 14.32 10.00 198.33
All Engineering 257.61 3.81 1.21 262.63

Electronics 62.20 0.14 0.48 62.82

Others 195.41 3.67 0.73 199.81
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Vehi_cles, Vehicle Parts and Transport 7.90 1.58 10.00 19.48
Equipments
Gems & Jewellery 30.04 0.00 0.00 30.04
Construction 27.07 0.00 0.00 27.07
Infrastructure 2274.79 112.56 | 115.35| 2502.70
Transport 862.69 97.13 38.11 997.93
Railways 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Roads and Bridges 812.89 97.13 38.11 948.13
Airport 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Waterways 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Ports 49.80 0.00 0.00 49.80
Energy 1187.00 15.43 50.85| 1253.28
Electricity Generation 1187.00 15.43 50.85 | 1253.28
Central Govt PSUs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
State Govt PSUs (incl.SEBs) 0.00 000| 4938| 4938
Private Sectors 1187.00 15.43 1.47 | 1203.90
Electricity Transmission 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Central Govt PSUs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
State Govt PSUs (incl.SEBs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Private Sectors 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Electricity Distribution 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Central Govt PSUs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
State Govt PSUs (incl.SEBs) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Private Sectors 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Qil Pipelines 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Oil/Gas/Liquefied Natural Gas 0.00 0.00 0.00
Storage facility 0.00
Gas Pipelines 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Water and Sanitation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Solid Waste Management 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Water Supply pipelines 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Sewage Collection, treatment & 0.00 0.00 0.00
disposal system 0.00
Irrigation (dams,channels etc) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Storm Water Drainage System 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Slurry Pipelines 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Communication 200.09 0.00| 2041| 22050
Telecommunication (Fixed network) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Telecommunication (Towers) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Telec;ommunication & Telecom 200.09 0.00 20.41 290 50
services
Social & Commercial Infrastructure 25.01 0.00 0.00 25.01
Educational Institutions (Capital Stock) 25.01 0.00 0.00 25.01
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Hospitals (capital Stock) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
3 star or higher category classified 0.00 0.00 0.00
hotels located outside cities 0.00
Common Infrastructure for industrial 0.00 0.00 0.00
parks, SEZ, tourism etc 0.00
Fertilizer (Capital Investments) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Post Harvest storage infrastructure 0.00 0.00 0.00
for Agriculture & horticulture 0.00
Terminal Markets 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Soil-testing laboratories 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Cold Chain 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Others, if any, please specify 0.00 0.00 5.98 5.98
Other Industries 1087.70 123.94|  0.00| 1211.64
All Industries 9922.95 978.31 | 164.02 | 11065.28
Residuary Other Advances 14784.42 | 1846.70 | 7523.62 | 24154.74
of which - Education Loan 214.17 0.05 0.00| 214.22
- Aviation Sector 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
-Other Residuary Advances 14570.25| 1846.65| 7523.62 | 23940.52
Total Loans & Advances 24707.37 | 2825.01 | 7687.64 | 35220.02

The details of the industries wherein the bank’s exposure in the related industry has
exceeded the 5% of total gross credit exposure as on 31.03.2015 is furnished below:

SI.No. | Industry classification Percentage to the total credit exposure
1. Textile Industry 10.49%

e. Residual Contractual Maturity Breakdown of assets as on 31.03.2015

(X in crore)
Balance
(;a:‘sdh with Banks
Maturity and Money Fixed | Other Grand
Buckets lel?trri‘ce at Call and Investments | Advances Assets | Assets Total
RBI Short
Notice
Next day 257.00 46.73 38.65 354.74 0.00 79.44 776.56
2-7 days 39.25 30.50 299.86 307.80 0.00 6.71 684.12
8-14 days 16.89 25.00 124.74 351.29 0.00 23.18 541.10
15-28 days | 19.12 0.00 239.95 739.15 0.00 19.35 1017.57
29 days to
3 months 92.32 60.00 883.97 1276.32 0.00 79.01 2391.62
3t06
months 80.77 0.00 490.06 1229.49 0.00 96.09 1896.41
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6to1year | 285.05 0.00 1549.43 1806.12 0.00 86.71 3727.31
1 y;:;rt: 31 37058 | 1.00 303418 | 9864.10 | 0.00 | 16.19 | 13286.05
3105 | g6 31 0.00 48479 | 1809.72 | 0.00 | 63150 | 2992.32
years
A}?g;’fs‘r’ 44.36 0.00 52548 | 1597.21 | 127.30 | 142.04 | 2436.39
Total 1271.65 163.23 7671.11* 19335.94* | 127.30 | 1180.22 | 29749.45
(Covers Net Assets for Domestic Operations)
*Net of Provisions/ depreciation
f. Amount of Gross Non-Performing Advances (NPAs):
A (% in Crore)
Amount of NPAs (Gross) 318.68
. Substandard 159.61
. Doubtful 118.73
. Of which DF1 80.61
. DF2 16.79
. DF3 21.33
o Loss 40.34
d. Net NPAs 128.96
h. NPA Ratios
o Gross NPAs to gross advances 1.63
o Net NPAs to net advances 0.67
i. Movement of NPAs:
(% in Crore)
Movement of NPAs (Gross)
o Opening Balance as on 01.04.2014 428.02
. Additions 463.69
o Reductions 573.03
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2015 318.68
j- Movement of provisions for NPAs:
Movement of provisions for NPAs
o Opening Balance as on 01.04.2014 218.27
. Provisions made during the period 185.08
. Write off 55.10
. Reductions 165.10
. Write back of excess provisions / Transfers -
. Closing Balance as on 31.03.2015 183.15
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Non-Performing Investments (NPIs):

(X in Crore)
k. Non-Performing Investments 0.04
I. Provisions held for non-performing investments 0.04
m. Movement of provisions for depreciation on investments:

(X in Crore)
. Opening Balance 9.48
. Provisions made during the period 15.03
. Write-off -
o Write-back of excess provisions 797
. Closing Balance 16.54

Table DF — 4

CREDIT RISK: DISCLOSURES FOR PORTFOLIOS SUBJECT TO THE
STANDARDISED APPROACH

Qualitative disclosures:

a) General Principle:

In accordance with RBI guidelines, the Bank had adopted Standardized Approach of
the New Capital Adequacy Framework (NCAF) for computation of capital for Credit
Risk with effect from 31.03.2009. In computation of capital, the bank has assigned
risk weights to different assets classified as prescribed by the RBI.

External Credit Ratings:

Ratings of borrowers by External Credit Rating Agencies (ECRA) assume
importance in the light of guideline for implementation of the New Capital Adequacy
Framework (Basel-ll). Exposures on Corporate / PSEs / Primary Dealers are
assigned with risk weights based on the external ratings. For this purpose, the
Reserve Bank of India has permitted Banks to use the rating of the six domestic
ECRAs namely (a) Credit Analysis and Research Ltd., (CARE), (b) CRISIL Ltd., (c)
India Ratings and Research P. Ltd., (India Ratings)., (d) ICRA Ltd., (e) Brickwork
Ratings India P. Ltd (Brickwork) and (f) SMERA Rating Limited (SMERA). In
consideration of the above guidelines the bank has decided to accept the ratings
assigned by all these ECRAs.
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The bank has well-structured internal credit rating mechanism to evaluate the credit
risk associated with a borrower and accordingly the systems are in place for taking
credit decisions with regard to acceptability of proposals, and level of exposures and
pricing.

In case of bank’s investment in particular issues of Corporate / PSEs, the issue
specific rating of the approved ECRAs are reckoned and accordingly the risk weights
have been applied after a corresponding mapping to rating scale provided.

As regards the coverage of exposures by external ratings as relevant for capital
computation under Standardized Approach, the process is being popularized among
the borrowers so as to take the benefit of capital relief available for better rating of its
customers. At the same time, the Bank is well aware and prepared for the
application of higher risk weight (100%) for the unrated exposures relating to all fresh
sanctions or renewals in excess of the threshold limit prescribed by Reserve Bank of
India. The Bank follows below mentioned procedures as laid down in the Basel |l
guidelines for usage of external ratings:

e Rating assigned by one rating agency is used for all the types of claims on the
borrowing entity.

» Long term ratings are used for facilities with contractual maturity of one year &
above.

e Short term ratings are generally applied for facilities with contractual maturity
of less than one year.

Quantitative Disclosures

For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardized approach,
amount of a bank’s outstanding (rated and unrated) in the following three major risk
buckets as well as those that are deducted as per risk mitigation are given below;

(¥ in crore)
Risk Weight Rated Unrated Total *
Below 100% 1646.07 11006.99 12653.06
100% 1123.08 5250.53 6373.61
More than 100% 3465.16 3704.16 7169.32
Total Exposure before mitigation 6234.31 19961.68 26195.99
Deducted (as per Risk Mitigation) 861.47 3533.69 4395.16
Total outstanding after mitigation 5370.14 16427.99 21800.83

* This includes total gross credit exposure i.e. (FB+ NFB+ undrawn or partially
undrawn fund based facility)




03" Annual Report 2014-15

Table DF - 5

CREDIT RISK MITIGATION: DISCLOSURE FOR STANDARDISED
APPROACHES

Qualitative disclosures:

Policy on Credit Risk Mitigation under Standardized Approach:

As advised by RBI, the Bank has adopted the comprehensive approach relating to
credit risk mitigation under Standardized Approach, which allows fuller offset of
securities (primary and collateral) against exposures, by effectively reducing the
exposure amount by the value ascribed to the securities. Thus the eligible financial
collaterals are fully made use of to reduce the credit exposure in computation of
credit risk capital. In doing so, the bank has recognized specific securities namely
(a) bank's own deposits (b) Gold/Ornaments (c) Life Insurance Policies (d)
Government Securities (€) NSC/KVP etc and (f) Units of Mutual Funds, in line with
the RBI guidelines on the subject.

Besides, other approved forms of credit risk mitigation are “On Balance Sheet
netting” and availability of “Eligible Guarantees”. On balance sheet nettings has ’
been reckoned to the extent of the deposits available against the loans /advances of
the borrower (to the extent of exposure) as per the RBI guidelines. Further, in
computation of credit risk capital, the types of guarantees recognized for taking
mitigation, in line with RBI guidelines are (a) Central Government Guarantee (0%)
(b) State Government (20%) (c) CGTMSE (0%) (d) ECGC (20%) (e) Bank
Guarantee in the form of bills purchased / discounted under Letter of credit (20%)
and (f) Credit Risk Guarantee Fund Trust for Low Income Housing (CRGFTLIH)
(0%). The Bank has ensured compliance of legal certainty as prescribed by the RBI
in the matter of credit risk mitigation. :

Concentration Risk in Credit Risk Mitigation:

All types of securities eligible for mitigation are easily realizable financial securities.
As such, presently no limit/ceiling has been prescribed to address the concentration
risk in credit risk mitigants recognized by the Bank.
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Quantitative Disclosures:

(T in crore)

a. For each separately disclosed credit risk portfolio, the total exposure
(after, where applicable, on-or off balance sheet netting) that is covered by
eligible financial collateral (FCs) after the application

of haircuts is given

below:
Portfolio category Financial collateral Quantum of exposure
covered
1. Funded - Credit Bank’s own deposits 935.39
2. Funded — Credit Gold jewels 2401.61
3. Funded - Credit Life Insurance policies 18.66
4. Funded - Credit NSC/KVP 1.85
4. Non Funded Bank’s own deposits 1037.65

b. For each separately disclosed portfolio, the total exposure (after, on
balance sheet netting) that is covered by Guarantees:

1. Funded - Credit ECGC 80.00
2. Funded — Credit CGTMSE 42.65
Table DF - 6

Securitization: Disclosure for standardized approach

Qualitative Disclosures

The bank has not undertaken any securitization activity.

Quantitative Disclosures: NIL

Table DF-7

MARKET RISK IN TRADING BOOK

Qualitative Disclosures:
a) Market Risk:

Market Risk is defined as the possibility of loss to a bank in on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet positions caused by the changes / movements in the market
variables such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, equity prices and
commodity prices. Bank’s exposure to market risk arises from domestic investments
(interest related instruments and equities) in trading book (both AFS and HFT
categories), the Foreign exchange positions (including open position in precious
metals) and trading related derivatives. The objective of the market risk
management is to minimize the impact of losses on earnings and equity capital
arising from market risk.
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Policies for management of Market Risk:

The bank has put in place Board approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) policy
and treasury Policy (Investment Policy) for effective management of market risk in
the bank. The policy sets various risk limits for effective management of market risk
and ensuring that the operations are in line with Bank’s expectation of return to
market risk through proper Asset Liability Management. The policy also deals with
the reporting framework for effective monitoring of market risk.

The ALM policy specifically deals with liquidity risk management and interest rate
risk management framework. As envisaged in the policy, Liquidity risk is managed
through the mismatch analysis, based on residual maturity / behavioral pattern of
assets and liabilities, on a daily basis based on best available data coverage, as
prescribed by the RBI. The bank has put in place mechanism of short-term dynamic
liquidity management and contingent funding plan. Prudential (tolerance) limits are
prescribed for different residual maturity time buckets for efficient asset liability
management. Liquidity profile of the bank is evaluated through various liquidity
ratios. The bank has also drawn various contingent measures to deal with any kind
of stress on liquidity position. Bank ensures adequate liquidity managed on a real
time basis by Domestic Treasury through systematic and stable funds planning.

Interest Rate Risk is managed through use of GAP analysis of rate sensitive assets
and liabilities and monitored through prudential (tolerance) limits prescribed. The
bank has also put in place Duration Gap Analysis framework for management of
interest rate risk. The bank estimates Earnings at Risk (EaR) and Modified Duration
Gap (DGAP) periodically against adverse movement in interest rate (as prescribed in
the Policy) for assessing the impact on Net Interest Income (NII) and Economic
Value of Equity (EVE) with a view to optimize shareholder value.

The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) /Risk Management Committee
of Board (RMCB) monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed by the bank and
determines the strategy in the light of the market condition (current and expected) as
articulated in the ALM policy.

Quantitative Disclosures:

b) In line with the RBI’s guidelines, the bank has computed capital for market risk
as per Standardized Duration Approach (SDA) framework for maintaining capital.

The Capital requirements for market risk in trading Book as on 31.03.2015




93" Annual Report 2014-15 . TMB %

Be astep shead of It

X incrs)
¢ Interest Rate Risk 63.05
o Equity Position Risk 5.71
e Foreign Exchange Risk 2.70
Total 71.46

Table DF - 8
OPERATIONAL RISK

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Operational Risk:

Operational Risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems or from external events. Operational risk includes
legal risk but excludes strategic and reputation risks.

Policies on management of Operational Risk:

The Bank has framed Operational Risk Management Policy duly approved by the
Bank’s Board. Other policies adopted by the Board which deal with management of
Operational risk are (a) Information Systems Security Policy, (b) Foreign Currency
Risk Management Policy (c) Policy document on Know Your Customers (KYC) and
Anti Money Laundering (AML) Procedures (d) IT Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery Plan (IT BC-DRP).

The Operational Risk Management Policy adopted by the Bank outlines organization
structure and detail processes for management of operational risk. The basic
objective of the policy is to closely integrate operational risk management system
into the day-to-day risk management processes of the bank by clearly assigning
roles for effectively identifying, assessing, monitoring and controlling / mitigating
operational risk and by timely reporting of operational risk exposures, including
material operational losses. Operational risks in the Bank are managed through
comprehensive and well-articulated internal control frameworks.

Quantitative Disclosures:

b) In line with the final guidelines issued by RBI, our Bank has adopted the Basic
Indicator Approach for computing capital for Operational Risk. As per the guidelines,
the capital charge for Operational Risk is equal to the average over the previous
three years (2012-13, 2013-14 & 2014-15) of 15% of positive annual Gross Income
as defined by RBI. As per such estimate, the capital requirement for operational risk
as on 31.03.2015 is ¥ 166.94 crore.
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Table DF -9

INTEREST RATE RISK IN THE BANKING BOOK (IRRBB)

Qualitative Disclosures:

a) Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book:

Interest Rate Risk is the risk where changes in the market interest rates might affect
a bank’s financial condition. Changes in interest rates affect both the current
earnings (earnings perspective) as also the net worth of the Bank (economic value
perspective). The risk from earnings perspective can be measured as impact in the
Net Interest Income (NIl) or Net Interest Margin (NIM). Similarly, the risk from
economic value perspective can be measured as drop in the Economic value of
Equity (EVE).

The Bank identifies the risks associated with the changing interest rates on its on-
balance sheet and off-balance sheet exposures in the banking book from a short
term (Earning perspective) and long term (Economic value perspective). The impact
on income (Earning perspective) is measured through use of Gap Analysis by
applying notional rate shock upto 200 bps as prescribed in Bank's ALM policy.
Prudential limits have been prescribed for such impacts as a percentage to NIl of the
Bank and the same is monitored periodically on a fortnightly basis. For the
calculation of impact on earnings, the Traditional Gap is taken from the Rate
Sensitivity Statement and based on the remaining period from the mid point of a
particular bucket the impact for change in interest rates upto 100 bps is arrived at.
The same is reported to ALCO/Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB)
periodically along with the Rate Sensitivity statement on monthly basis. Such limits
are fixed based on the previous year’s NlI.

The Bank has adopted Traditional Gap Analysis combined with Duration Gap
Analysis for assessing the impact (as a percentage) on the Economic value of Equity
(Economic Value Perspective) by applying a notional interest rate shock of 200 bps.
As per the Guidelines on Banks” Asset Liability Management Framework-Interest
Rate Risk issued by the RBI (DBOD.No.BP.BC.59/21.04.098/2010-11 dated
04.11.2010), the Bank calculates Modified Duration Gap (DGAP) & the impact on the
Economic Value of equity (EVE). Assets and Liabilities are grouped as per Rate
Sensitivity Statement & bucket wise Modified Duration is computed for these groups
of Assets (excluding investments) and Liabilities using common maturity, coupon
and yield parameters. For investment portfolio, the Modified Duration of individual
items are computed and taken. The DGAP is calculated by the Bank once in a
month and is reported to ALCO/ Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB).
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The Asset-Liability Management Committee (ALCO) / Risk Management Committee
of Board (RMCB) monitors adherence of prudential limits fixed by the bank and
determines the strategy in the light of market conditions (current and expected).

Quantitative Disclosures:

The increase or decrease in earnings and economic value for upward and downward
rate shocks based on the assets and liabilities outstanding as on 31.03.2015 are as
follows.
1. The impact of change in Interest Rate i.e Earnings at Risk for 100 Basis
points interest rate shock is ¥-19.16 crore (2.172% of previous year Net
Interest Income).

2. Change in Market Value of Equity for 200 basis points interest rate shock is
% 513.67cr (19.80% of Net worth)

TABLE DF - 10
General disclosures for exposures related to counterparty credit risk

Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) is the risk that a counter party to a transaction could
default before the final settlement of the transaction cash flows. Unlike a firm’s
exposure to credit risk through a loan, where the exposure to credit risk is unilateral
and only the lending bank faces the risk of loss, CCR creates a bilateral risk of loss
to either party.

Counterparty credit risk in case of derivative contracts arises from the forward
contracts. The subsequent credit risk exposures depend on the value of underlying
market factors (e.g., interest rates and foreign exchange rates), which can be volatile
and uncertain in nature. The Bank does not enter into derivative transactions other
than forward contracts.

Credit exposures on forward contracts
The Bank enters into the forward contracts in the normal course of business for

proprietary trading and arbitrage purposes, as well as for our own risk management
needs, including mitigation of interest rate and foreign currency risk. Derivative
exposures are calculated according to the current exposures method.

Counterparty Credit exposure as on March 31, 2015

(Amount ¥ in Crs)

Current Credit _ Total Credit
Notional Exposure Potential ] Exposure
Nature - Future Credit | under Current
Amount | (positive mark to E E
market value) Xposure xposure
Method (CEM)
Forward
contracts | °092-38 0.00 101.85 101.85




93" Annual Report 2014-15

TMB=

Bea stop shoad of e

Composition of Capital Disclosure Templates

TABLE DF — 11

Composition of Capital

Part ll: Template to be used before March 31, 2017
(ie., During the transition period of Basel lll Regulatory

adjustments)
(T In Millions)
. ) Amounts
Basel Il common disclosure template to be used durin Subject to -
the transition of regulatory adjustments (i.e. from Apri | Ref
1, 2013 to December 31, 2016) P;e-Btaseltl ' No
: reatmen .

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves

1

Directly issued qualifying common share capital
plus related stock surplus (share premium)

2.85

2

Retained earnings

3

Accumulated other comprehensive income (and
other reserves)

25746.33

Directly issued capital subject to phase out
from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint
stock companies)

Public sector capital injections grandfathered until
January 1, 2018

Common share capital issued by subsidiaries
and held by third parties (amount allowed in group CETI)

Common Equity Tier 1 capital before regulatory
adjustments

25749.18

Common Equity Tier 1 capital : Regulatory adjustments

Prudential valuation adjustments

Goodwill (net of related tax liability)

Intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights
(net of related tax liabilitv)

Deferred tax aqqp‘rqz

Cash-flow hedge reserve

Shortfall of provisions to expected losses

Securitization gain on sale

Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
risk on fair valued liabilities

15

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

16

Investments in own shares (if not already netted
off paid-up capital on reported balance sheet)

17

Reciprocal cross-holdings in common equity

18

Investments in the capital of banking, financial
and insurance entities that are outside the scope
of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short
positions, where the bank does not own more
than 10% of the issued share capital (amount
above 10% threshold)
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19

Significant investments in the common stock of
banking, financial and insurance entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net
of eligible short positions (amount above 10%
threshold) 3

20

Mortgage servicing rights(amount above 10% threshold)

21

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary
differences 5 (amount above 10% threshold,
net of related tax liability)

22

Amount exceeding the 15% threshold

23

of which : significant investments in the
common stock of financial entities

24

of which : mortgage servicing rights

25

of which : deferred tax assets arising from
temporary differences

26

National specific regulatory adjustments 7
(26a+26b+26¢+26d)

26a

of which : Investments in the equity capital
of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

26b

of which : Investments in the equity capital of
unconsolidated non- financial subsidiaries

26¢

of which : Shortfall in the equity capital of
majority owned financial entities which have not
been consolidated with the bank

26d

of which : Unamortised pension funds expenditures

Regulatory Adjustments Applied to Common
Equity Tier 1 in respect of Amounts Subject to
Pre-Basel Il Treatment

of which :#INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT] For
example: filtering out of unrealised losses on AFS
debt securities (not relevant in Indian context)

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]

27

Regulatory adjustments applied to Common
Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier
1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions

28

Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity
Tier 1

29

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1)

25749.18

Ad

itional Tier 1 capital : instruments

30

Directly issued qualifying Additional Tier 1
instruments plus related stock surplus (share
premium) (31+32)

31

of which : classified as equity under applicable
accounting standards
(Perpetual Non-cumulative Preference Shares)

32

of which : classified as liabilities under
applicable accounting standards (Perpetual
debt Instruments)

33

Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase

out from Additional Tier 1
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34

Additional Tier 1 instruments (and CET1
instruments not included in row 5) issued by
subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount
allowed in group AT1)

35

of which : instruments issued by subsidiaries
(Subject to phase out)

36

Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory
adjustments

Additional Tier 1 capital: requlatory

37

Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments

38

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Additional Tier 1
instruments

39

Investments in the capital of banking, financial
and insurance entities that are outside the scope
of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short
positions, where the bank does not own more
than 10% of the issued common share capital of
the entitv (amount above 10% threshold)

40

Significant investments in the capital of
banking, financial and insurance entities
that are outside the scope of regulatory -
consolidation (net of eligible short positions)

41

National specific requlatory adjustments (41a+41b)

41a

Investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital
of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

41b

Shortfall in the Additional Tier 1 capital of
majority owned financial

41c

Regulatory Adjustments Applied to Additional Tier
1 in respect of Amounts Subject to Pre-Basel Il Treatment

41d

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT e.a.DTAs)

41e

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT eg.exting adjustment which are deducted from fier 2t 5

41f

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]

42

Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1
due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions

43

Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier
1 capital

44

Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1)

443

Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned for capital
adequacy

45

Tier 1 capitaly (T1 = CET1 + Admissible AT1) (29
+44a)

25749.18

Tier 2 capital : instruments and provisions

46

Directly issued qualifying Tier 2 instruments
plus related stock surplus

47

Directly issued capital instruments subject to phase
out from Tier 2

48

Tier 2 instruments (and CET1 and AT1 instruments
not included in rows 5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries
and held by third parties (amount allowed in group
Tier 2)
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49

of which : instruments issued by subsidiaries
subject to phase out

50

Provisions include the following
a) Investment Reserve ¥ 193.96 mn
b) Provision for Standard Asset including
restructured standard assets ¥961.40mn
¢) Provision for unhedged Foreign Currency
Exposure 320.34 mn

1175.70

51

Tier 2 capital before requlatory adjustments

1175.70

Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments

52

Investments in own Tier 2 instruments

53

Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 instruments

54

Investments in the capital of banking, financial
and insurance entities that are outside the scope
of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short
positions, where the bank does not own more
than 10% of the issued common share capital of
the entity (amount above the 10% threshold)

55

Significant investments—in the capital
banking, financial and insurance entities
that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation (net of eligible short
positions)

56

National specific regulatory adjustments (56a+56b)

56

Q

of which : Investments in the Tier 2 capital
of unconsolidated insurance subsidiaries

56b

of which ; Shortfall in the Tier 2 capital of
majority owned financial entities which have not
been consolidated with the bank

Regulatory Adjustments Applied To Tier 2 in
respect of Amounts Subject to Pre-Basel |l
Treatment

of which ':V{INSERT TYPE OF
ADJUSTMENT e.g. existing adjustments
which are deducted from Tier 2 at 50%)]

of which : INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT

57

Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital

58

Tier 2 capital (T2)

1175.70

58a

Tier 2 capital reckoned for capital adequacy

1175.70

58b

Excess Additional Tier 1 capital reckoned as Tier 2 capital

58¢c

Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital Adequacy (58a + 58b)

1175.70

59

Total capital (TC =T1 + Admissible T2) (45 +58c)

26924.88

Risk Weighted Assets in respect of Amounts
Subject to Pre-Basel Il Treatment

of which : [INSERT TYPE OF ADJUSTMENT]

of which : ...

60

Total risk weighted assets (60a + 60b + 60c)

193780.46

60a

of which : total credit risk weighted assets

167292.14

60b;

of which : total market risk weighted assets

7939.44

60c

of which : total operational risk weighted assets

18548.88
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ital ratios

Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk
weighted assets) :

13.29%

62

Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

13.29%

63

Total capital (as a percentage of risk weighted
assets)

13.89%

64

Institution specific buffer requirement (minimum
CET1 requirement plus capital conservation and
countercyclical buffer requirements, expressed
as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

65

of which : capital conservation buffer requirement

66

of which : bank specific countercyclical buffer
requirement

67

of which : G-SIB buffer requirement

68

Common Equity Tier 1 available to meet buffers
(as a percentage of risk weighted assets)

NA

National minimum ratio (if different from Basel lil}

69

National Common Equity Tier 1 minimum ratio (if
different from Basel Il minimum)

5.50%

70

National Tier 1 minimum ratio (if different from
Basel lIl minimum)

7.00%

6.00%

71

National total capital minimum ratio (if different
from Basel Ill minimum)

9.00%

9.00%

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction
(before risk weighting)

72

Non-significant investments in the capital of other
financial entities

73

Significant investments in the common stock of
financial entities

74

Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax Liability)

75

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary
differences (net of related tax liability)

Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions

76

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in
respect of exposures subject to standardized
approach (prior to application of cap)

77

Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under
standardized approach

78

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect
of exposures subject to internal ratings-based
approach (prior to application of cap)

79

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under

internal ratings-based approach
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Capital instruments subject to phase-out
arrangements (only applicable between March
31. 2017 and March 31. 2022)
80 |Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase | NA
out arrangements
81 |Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap
(excess over cap after redemptions and
maturities)
82 |Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase
out arrangements
83 [Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap
(excess over cap after redemptions and
maturities)
84 |Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out
arrangements
85 |Amount excluded from T2 due to cap
(excess over cap after redemptions and
maturities)
Notes to the template
Row No.
of the Particulars (% in Millions)
template
10 Deferred tax assets associated with accumulated losses
Deferred tax assets (excluding those associated with accumulated 0.00
losses) net of Deferred tax liabilitv
Total as indicated in row 10 0.00
19 If investments in insurance subsidiaries are not deducted fully from
capital and instead considered under 10% threshold for deduction,
the resultant increase in the capital of bank
of which : Increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital
of which : Increase in Additional Tier 1 capital
of which : Increase in Tier 2 capital
26b If investments in the equity capital of unconsolidated non-financial
subsidiaries are not deducted and hence, risk weighted then :
(i) increase in Common Equity Tier 1 capital
(ii) Increase in risk weighted assets
443 Excess Additional Tier 1 capital not reckoned for capital
adequacy (difference between Additional Tier 1 capital as
reported in row 44 and admissible Additional Tier 1 capital as
reported in 44a)
of which : Excess Additional Tier 1 capital which is conS|dered
as Tier 2 capital under row 58b
50 Eligible Provisions included in Tier 2 capital 1175.70
Eligible Revaluation Reserves included in Tier 2 capital
Total of row 50 1175.70
58a Excess Tier 2 capital not reckoned for capital adequacy (difference
between Tier 2 capital as reported in row 58 and T2 as reported in
58a)
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Table DF-12:
Composition of Capital — Reconciliation Requirements
Step 1:
(Z. in million)
Balance sheet
Balance sheet under '
as in financial regulatory
statements scope of
consolidation |
As on reporting | As on reporting
date date
A |Capital & Liabilities
i. |Paid-up Capital 2.85 N.A
Reserves & Surplus 25940.29 N.A
Minority Interest 0.00
Total Capital 25943.14 N.A
ii. |[Deposits 256498.62
of which : Deposits from banks 3420.03
of which : Customer deposits 253078.59
of which : Other deposits (pl. specify)
iii. |Borrowings 403.76
of which : From RBI 0.00
of which : From banks 0.00
of which : From other institutions & agencies 403.76
of which : Others (pl. specify) Outside India 0.00
of which : Capital instruments 0.00
iv. |Other liabilities & provisions 14649.00
Total 297494.52 N.A
B [Assets
i. |Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of India 12716.47
Balance with banks and money at call and short 1632.27
notice
ii. |Investments : 76711.06
of which : Government securities 66416.54
of which : Other approved securities 0.00
of which : Shares 239.09
of which : Debentures & Bonds 7044.04
of which : Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures / 0.00
of which : Others (Commercial Papers, Mutual 2586.40
Funds etc.)
of which : Deposits with NABARD(RIDF) 424.99
iii. |Loans and advances 193359.46
of which : Loans and advances to banks 0.00
of which : Loans and advances to customers 193359.46
iv. |Fixed assets 1273.04]
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v. |Other assets 11802.22
of which : Goodwill and intangible assets 0.00 .
of which : Deferred tax assets 278.42
vi. |Goodwill on consolidation
vii. |Debit balance in Profit & Loss account 0.00
Total Assets 297494.52 N.A
Step 2:

1) As the Bank is not having any subsidiary, no disclosure
relating any legal entity for regulatory consolidation is made.

2) The entire paid up capital of the Bank amounting to ¥2.85 million
is included in CET I. (refer Item | of DF-11)

3) The break up for Reserves & Surplus % 25940.29 mn as shown in the
Bank’s financial statements is given hereunder for the purpose of
reconciliation for calculation of Regulatory Capital in DF-11

(X in Millions)
As per Balance Sheet Amount As shown in DF-11 Capital
a) Statutory Reserves 8787.79 |ncluded in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11
(item-3)
b) Capital Reserves 109.27 ncluded in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11
(item-3)
c)Revenue and Other 16096.41 |Included in Regulatory CET | capital DF-11
Reserves (item-3) ,
d) Investment reserve 193.96 [included in Regulatory Tier Il capital DF-
' 11(item-50)
e) Special Reserve u/s 739.00 [Included in Regulatory CET | Capital (DF11-
36(1) (Viii) of IT Act 1961 item 3)
f) Balance in P& L _13.86 |Included in CET | (item 3- DF11)
25940.29

4) Other Liabilities —  a) Provision for Standard assets including restructured standard
assets 961.40mn (item-50 - DF-11)
b) Provision for unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure ¥20.34mn

However they are shown under Tier Il capital for computation of Regulatory Capital
(DF-11) as noted in brackets as per extant RBI guidelines.




93 Annual Report 2014-15

TA\B=

Be 2 stop ahead of itfe
Step 3
Extract of Basel Ill common disclosure template (with added column) - Table DF-11
(Part I/ Part Il whichever, applicable)
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: instruments and reserves
Source based on

Component
of regulatory
capital
reported by
bank

reference numbers /
letters of the balance
sheet under the
regulatory scope of
consolidation from step
2

Directly issued qualifying common share (and
equivalent for no dJomt stock companies)
capital plus related stock surplus

2.85

N

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive
income (and other reserves)

25746.33

Directly issued capital subject to phase out
from CET1 (only applicable to non-joint stock

Common share capital issued by
subsidiaries and held by third parties

Common Equity Tier 1 capital before
regulatory adjustments

25749.18

Prudential valuation adjustments

0.00

Goodwill (net of related tax liability)

Table DF-13:

Main Features of Requlatory Capital

S.No

Description

Equity Shares

Issuer

Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Ltd

Unique identifier (e.g. CUSIP, ISIN or
Bloomberg identifier for private placement)

Not listed

3

Governing law(s) of the instrument

Indian Laws

Regulatory treatment

Common equity Tier 1

4 |Transitional Basel lll rules
5 |Post-transitional Basel Il rules Common equity Tier 1
6 |Eligible at solo / group / group & solo Solo
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7 |Instrument type Common Shares
s | Armmiecoaized I Uiy coptl 5 <285 millr
9 |Par value of instrument % 10 per share

10 | Accounting classification Shareholder’s Equity

11 | Original date of issuance Various

12 |Perpetual or dated Perpetual

13 | Original maturity date No Maturity

14 |lIssuer call subject to prior supervisory approval No

15 | Optional call date, contingent call dates and NA

redemption amount
16 |Subsequent call dates, if applicable NA
Coupons / dividends

17 |Fixed or floating dividend / coupon NA

18 |Coupon rate and any related index NA

19 |Existence of a dividend stopper No

20 |Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or Fully Discretionary

21 |Existence of step up or other incentive to No

22 |Noncumulative or cumulative Non-Cumulative

23 |Convertible or non-convertible NA

24 |If convertible, conversion trigger(s) NA

25 |If convertible, fully or partially NA

26 |If convertible, conversion rate NA

27 |If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion NA

28 |If convertible, specify instrument type convertible NA

29 |If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it NA

30 |Write-down feature No

31 | If write-down, write-down trigger(s) NA

32 | If write-down, full or partial NA

33 |If write-down, permanent or temporary NA

34 |If temporary write-down, description of write-up NA

a3 |o5iion in subordination Herarchy i Subordinated to all ofer

immediately senior to instrumen’S claims
36 |Non-compliant transitioned features No
37 |If yes, specify non-compliant features NA
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Table DF-14

Full Terms and Conditions of Requlatory Capital Instruments

The details of the Tier |l capital [Bonds]raised by the Bank

Table DF-14 : Full Terms and Conditions of Regulatory Capital Instruments

Instruments

Full Terms and Conditions

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Table DF-15: Disclosure Requirements for Remuneration

“Qualitative
disclosures

(a)

Information relating to the)
composition and mandate of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee
has been formed with 5
Directors and the MD & CEO.
The mandate of the committee
is to fix remuneration in line with
the risk taken by employees.

(b)

Information relating to the
design and structure of
remuneration processes and
the key features and
objectives remuneration
policy.

of

Bank’s Remuneration Policy,
containing the guidelines on
compensation of Whole time
directors/ Chief executive
officers/ risk takers, control
function etc, was approved by
Remuneration committee of
Board, in its meeting dated
27.12.2012. The key principle of
the policy would be’ that the
compensation shall be aligned
with the type and nature of risk
taken by employees. The
degree of difficuity, specialised
nature of job and - risk
associated would be measured
and compensation would be
fixed accordingly.

(c)

Description of the ways in which
current and future risks are
taken into account in the
remuneration processes. It
should include the nature and
type of the key measures used
to take account of these risks.

Regional Heads,  Branch
Heads, IT department officials
and Dealers in Treasury & IBD
are paid special pay based on
risk taken by them.

(d)

Description of the ways in which
the bank seeks to link
performance during a
performance measurement
period with levels of
remuneration.

A pérformance based incentive
is to be developed.

(e)

A discussion of the bank's policy
on deferral and vesting of
variable remuneration and a
discussion of the bank's policy
and criteria for  adjusting
deferred remuneration before

There is no deferred
remuneration payment to
employees.

vesting and after vesting.
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®)

Description of the different
forms of variable remuneration
(i.e. cash, shares, ESOPs and
other forms) that the bank
utiizes and the rationale for
using these different forms.

The remuneration is in the form
of cash and gift vouchers only
during the year 2014-15. There
is no remuneration in the form
of Shares, ESOP and other
forms during the year 2014-15.

Quantitative
disclosures
(The quantitative
disclosures
should only
cover Whole
Time Directors /
Chief Executive
Officer / Other
Risk Takers)

(9

* INumber of meetings held by
the Remuneration
Committee during the
financial year and
remuneration paid to its
members.

Number of meetings held by the
Remuneration Committee is
one. The total remuneration
paid to its members was
¥32000/-, as sitting fee, .being
¥8000/- per member excluding
MD & CEO.

—

h)

* INumber of employees
having received a variable
remuneration award during
the financial year.

Nil

* INumber and total amount of
sign-on awards made
during the financial year.

Nil

* |Details of guaranteed bonus,
if any, paid as joining / sign
on bonus.

Nil

* |Details of severance pay, in
addition to accrued benefits,
if any.

Nil

* |Total amount of outstanding
deferred remuneration, split
into cash, shares and share-
linked instruments and other
forms.

Nil

* Total amount of deferred
remuneration paid out in
the financial year.

Nil

1)

* |Breakdown of amount of
remuneration awards for the
financial year to show fixed
and variable, deferred and
non-deferred.

Nil

(k)

* |Total amount of outstanding
deferred remuneration and
retained remuneration
exposed to ex post explicit
and / or implicit
adjustments.

Nil

* |Total amount of reductions
during the financial year due
to ex- post explicit
adjustments.

Nil

* Total amount of reductions
during the financial year due
to ex- post implicit
adjustments.

Nil

*khkkhkk
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CORRESPONDENT BANK DETAILS

Sl. No.

Name of the Bank & Address

Currency

National Australia Bank Limited -
32/500 Bourke Street
Melbourne VIC 3000, Australia

AUD

The Bank of Novascotia
44 King Street West
Toronto Ontario, Canada M5H 1H1

CAD

The Royal Bank of Scotland
Beethovenstrasse 33, P.0.Box.5239
CH:8022, Zurich, Switzerland

CHF

Bank of India
Succursale de Paris
3, Rue Scribe, 75009 Paris, France

EURO

Commerz Bank AG
Juergen-Ponto-Platz 1
60301 Frankfurt am Main

EURO

HSBC BANK Plc

8, Canada square

13 E-04.01 London E14 5HQ,

IBAN GB82 MIDL 4005 1500 2642 86

GBP

The Hongkong Bank
1 Queens Road Central, Hongkong

HKD

Wells Fargo Bank N.A.

Yamato International Nihonbashi Bldg.,
8th Floor, 2-1-3, Nihonbashi Horidomecho
Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-0012, Japan

JPY

The Hongkong Bank

Robinson Road, P.O.Box 896
Singapore 0917

SGD

| 10.

HSBC BANK USA

2 Hanson Place, 14th Floor
Brroklyn, New York

11217 USA (ABA 021001088)

usD .

1.

Wells Fargo Bank N.A.
11 Penn Plaza, 4th Floor, New York NY 10001
ABA 026005092

- USb

12.

Standard Chartered Bank
One Madison Avenue, New York
NY 10010 - 3603 U.S.A. '

ush

13.

Wells Fargo Bank N.A.
London Branch

EURO

14.

Standard Chartered Bank
Colombo, Sri Lanka

ACU $

15.

Commercial Bank of Dubai
Dubai UAE

AED
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI
BALANCE SHEET AS ON 31ST MARCH 2015

Bouy Beoe sease 31.03.2015

(Rs. in thousands)

Schedule | As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
SILLeuenesT T e :

CAPITAL & LIABILITIES :
APRSRTPD OLMNILSEED T . ‘
Capital 1 S 2845 2845|
UG epRSETD e e ]
Reserves & Surplus 2 | 25940202 - 22693122
s5680a6T DHOID egAulmiuee TIuaanln 1 : ,
Deposits 3 o '0256498623| ¢ - 226456831
iy Bser T ' ma
Borrowings 4 oo AD3TR1| - 2595817
QUDD SLeTEST L PRI
Other Liabilities and Provisions 5 - 14649000 12233730
850 QumpLyseT HNID PHESGSET e ;

TOTAL 297494521 263982345
ASSETS : - : ‘
OFNSGIbE6T o ‘ i
Cash and balances with Reserve Bank of india 6 - 12716468 10339027
agnés SmUyb fete amduled o erer SmLiyb S , ,
Balances with Banks and Money at Call and Short Notice - L
850 auridulis> & eter Bmlyd, SHd yamﬁs’o QUTRISHRIGL 7 : 1532274 : 3764941
ABTEEWID - Ly ‘
Investments 8 - T6711055] 67718908|
»as80as SRR s
Advances 9 193359462 1714385001
A&NBss sLemen S
Fixed Assets 10 o 1213044] 1168840
Beveowner 6\ETSgIss6T T '
Other Assets 1 © o 11802218| 9552129|
851 QsnggIGH6T ‘ S

TOTAL [ 207494521]  263082345|
Contingent Liabilities 12 79746385 64132987
Fhgtiumsmen Jigisfss aupiLssT : o B
Bills for Collection 10900230 7695716/
AEYEES OUDDISOETSIL a6 T
Significant Accounting Policies 17
vadu samée OBHipPaEsT
Notes form part of Accounts 18
SWEGSHET FUBSLNE efierésaly
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
GwBs @i Beter i Lasmemmad, ekl SwlyBomes sansCant Somemis ugHungid

sd/- B.Prabaharan sd/- S.R.Aravind Kumar

sd/- K.N.Rajan sd/- K.V.Rajan

sd/- S.Sundar
Directors

sd/-V.V.D.N.Vikraman
Directors

sd-HS Upendra kamath
Managing Director & CEO

sd/- P.Mahendravel

sd/- A.Shidambaranathan sd/-T.Rajakumar

Director

sd/-P.Yesuthasen
Directors

Thoothukudi
01.06.2015
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2015
Seonu meigLs semag 31.03.2015 __(Rs. in thousands

Schedule
SILLeUEDEuIT

. INCOME
GUUBLOMEUTLD
Interest earned 13
auLlipufieir apeod QLHMHF
Other Income 14
850 EwLIeD * TOTAL
Il. EXPENDITURE
O\F606 Be6iT
Interest Expended ' 15
OEME&sULLL auLllp
Operating Expenses 16
EEDLAPEDD E1FE06S6iT ‘
Provisions & Contingencies
QF6EGa6T WHOID TRIUMIT ClFEayS6T TOTAL
L. PROFIT / LOSS
Seonuid/peigLLD
Net Profit for the year
855 amLids By Seomud
Add : Profit brought forward
oep LSy Seonusde BHFOTmE

TOTAL
Iv. APPROPRIATIONS
9568086 OFLFDe
Transfer to statutory reserve
gLl feuoner @F&8LIEHE WIHPUILLLS
Transfer to other reserves
gmemnu @gsSlhe WIDPUIULLE
Transfer to capital reserve
apegen &SNS WIHHLILLLE
Transfer to Investment reserve
386 essflehid wIHOUILLLE
Transfer to Special Reserve 36(1)(viii)
Api 9z1681eHG WIHDULILLS
Dividend @i Seomuib)
Interim Dividend & Dividend tax paid
SewLésne Seomu ud@ efl e ruL
Interim Dividend payable
SoLssme Seomu ukSB O&MG&ES GeeRmpuiens
Tax on Interim Dividend
SmLsane Seonu urdLihener eurfl
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet
SIBES SpSHG CBNRNE OFOLOULEBD O\ZNWS
Face value of the equity share is Rs.10/-

TOTAL

Earning per share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs)
Significant Accounting Policies 17
Notes form part of Accounts 18 bl By
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit & Loss Account

Vide our report of even date attached

sd/-T.Prabhakar For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.

sd/-S.Selvan Rajadurai sd/- M.Gunasekaran FRN No. 01931S
Chief General Manager sd/- S.Kandavelu sd/-N R. Jayadevan
sd/- C.S.Deepak sd/-N.Devadas Chartered Accountants
Company Secretary General Managers Partner (M.N0.23838)
Thoothukudi

01.06.2015
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(Rs. in Thousands)

SCHEDULE | - CAPITAL As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
SILLQUEDE 1 APEIFENID
Authorised Equity Capital
SIEESNTD OUDD APEOSEND
1,00,00,000 Eqmty Shares of Rs.10/- each 100000 100000
@510/~ efigid 1,00,00,000 Lki@EeT
|Issued, Subscribed, Called-up and Paid-up Capital 2845 2845
2,84,454 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each
QUPEEILCLEID QUM AanetariuLLgD @hi0/- digid
2,84,454 Lkigae TOTAL 2845 - 2845
SCHEDULE 2 - RESERVES AND SURPLUS As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
SiLaueen 2 ggEAGssT LHNID aGAIGILME
l. Statutory Reserves
grLioubTer @gisSGaeT :
Opening Balance 7647786 6745286
QyIbL SHLLY
Additions during the year 1140000 902500
L Spemged CoiSSE! ‘ ‘
L TOTAL 8787786 7647786
I Capital Reserve
WS EESEE6T _
Opening Balance 51763 51763
Sy Sty
Additions during the year 57510 Nil
(LU Speriged Coilgsg)
TOTAL 109273 51763
n Revenue and Other Reserves
amam Lhnb B SEEEGs6T
Opening Balance 14391007 13083607
Sy By
Additions during the year 1899360 1307400
By Syemge Ceiigsg) ' '
Deductions during the year Nil Nil
Ly Speimgsd PS55I ;
: TOTAL 16290367 14391007
v Special Reserve U/s.36(1)(viii) of I.T.Act
Aol 95686-aumwnenef sriiiiiey 36(1)(vii) ‘
Opening Balance 564000 326000
Spmbu Gy
Additions during the year 175000 238000
BLUY Spemged CHIgHSI :
Deductions during the year Nil Nil
Ly Speimesd BH555I
TOTAL 739000 564000
vV Balance in Profit and Loss Account 13866 38566
Beonu BeigLs semaEdsiLy WHuner Qemub
GRAND TOTAL : (I, IL, il, IV & V) 25940292 22693122
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

‘ Schedules_ to Bélance Sheet N Rs. in Tho_usands)
SCHEDULE 3-DEPOSITS | " As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014

S Lauememt 3 evauLly Bmer
A. 1. Demand Deposits

CaLy evauly HEaer e b o
1) From Banks D | BN
auridsefLAmHS PO D
i) From Others 94406 -~ 15648601
wppaisi G R SRR
Il Savings Bank Deposits el 2m8inaed)
Galilly semEGHeT e : b

l.  Term Deposits

6055 &M oaLbs
1) From Banks

autdsefLbHs

ii) From Others
wippeaiseiLAGbS

TOTAL

B. I Deposits of Branches in India
Bpdursir Bpéed domsafer etar oay Bser)

ll.  Deposits of Branches outside India
oeuefipm:@ Sevensefied o aer oveull Bhser

SCHEDULE 4 - BORROWINGS As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31032014
SLADET 4 QU ELETEST b
. Borowings in India
Spdundle> anmidy sLesar S
1. Reserve Bank of India e - Nil

e aubdiLOEHS
ii. Other Banks
851 andiLfEhE
ii. Other Institutions and Agencies
81 158 BaemissiLEbs

Il Borrowings outside India
OauefipnGaeier QLD sLeEeT

TOTAL

Secured borrowings included in | and If above
CwBs @il whmd | @ Il ungeraslULL sLaTEST
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet

(Rs. in Thousands)

SCHEDULE 5-OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
SliLeueven 5 S0 OMMLLs6T wHNID SEHEGEET ‘
l. Bills Payable 1306785 1214825
oenPaaluL Gouetmow Asoamer ,
I Inter Office Adjustments (Net) B | B Nil
SovenaensdenLCu 2 eitem [Beyeneuse
I Interest Accrued 1688820 1454293
- o@n@ssiuL Geushmw el
V. Deferred Tax liability 902977 1013253
» seefl eoaussLLLL arfidsmer QUTIILEET
V. Others ( Including Provisions ) 10750418 8551359
wppeve @FESEST 2 LuL)
TOTAL 14649000 12233730
SCHEDULE 6 - CASH AND BALANCES WITH As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
RESERVE BANK OF INDIA D o
JiLLauenemr 6 agnées Smid Mefte arkiduld o eer iy
Cash in hand 2038945 1067312
ognss Sl
Balance with Reserve Bank of India in Current Account 10677523 9271715
figiey auriidufied BLOL sembGsefisd 2 eer S
TOTAL 12716468 10339027
SCHEDULE 7-BALANCES WITH BANKS & MONEY As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
AT CALL AND SHORT NOTICE ' -
SiLawenemr 7 @57 aradulsd e eter Smiyd Gndu anesHn
QNMBIS&SARW O\FNDELID
l. In India
Snunefied
I} Balances with Banks
87 amdulisd 2 eer Smiy
a) In current accounts 286131 295902
[BLLY SemTé@aetied
b) In other Deposits 600000 2000000
DHY sewsEGsaTe
ii) Money at call and short notice
SN aEMsSn Qs OSTMDE
a)With Banks Nil 950000
autideafied |
b)With other institutions 250000 Nil
851 BnsvemisefEHEl
TOTAL 1136131 3245902
Il. Outside India
oaefipr@sefied
a) In current accounts 191143 519039
[BLLL| Semé@sefisd
b) In other Deposits 305000 Nil
by semeaGseafie
TOTAL 496143 519039
GRAND TOTAL 1632274

" 3764941
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet
SCHEDULE 8 - INVESTMENTS

SlLaumam 8 pseipaeT

)

Vi

Investments in India

Bpdunsier wsidGsan

Government securities

iy LSt

Other approved securities

pn SmdssaiurL Ui

Shares |

LIMGIG &6

Debentures & Bonds

BLET LGSgTiseT

Subsidiaries & Jointventures
gooambpaemss & sL@pudad
Others - Mutual Fund, Commercial Paper
imeves - ugsy BS, aiGss LsSmseT
Deposit with NABARD (RIDF)

pLInged 2_6ter eveully BS

TOTAL
Gross Investments
owngs wpssdGas
Less: Depreciation
& : CalinanspensT e5sE0
TOTAL

I, Investments outside India
oaefipn@astisd (poeiGaaT
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

o ~ Schedules fo Balance Sheet v (Rs. in Thousands)
SCHEDULE 9 - ADVANCES -~ As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
S O O&NGE5 SLeEST N ‘
A.i)  Bills purchased and discounted 5121776| 4633176

. pesaRL QEusgD ammidugone dessT - '

i) Cash credits, overdrafts and loans 111500601, 106270228
: repayable on demand

fpnesl LDD, SPEU LD aes LHTID
GaLel Ouns AaGss Gousimpw SLeEAT o K
i) Term Loans - 76731085 60535096
606 OEGeyeTeT SLETHGT
| TOTAL 193359462 171438500
B.i)  Secured by tangible assets 190681293 168035902
0506 Qenses Aevemmunsy QLD |

i) - Covered by Bank / Government Guarantee 80272 119425

amd DHNID Sienhs & SSIANSSEILET sl

iy Unsecured - 2597897 3283173

enemmufiedens '
TOTAL 193359462 171438500
C.  ‘Advancesinndia
Spduneled sLemaar

i) . Priority Sector 94531203 84249910

wsigyfeowd ey : ' _

i) Public Sector 1977784 2755790

C unggeopl Oy ’

iiiy  Banks Nil Nil

’ QmdEeT -

V) Others 90850475 84432800

IDDDEDEY
TOTAL 193350462 171438500
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Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rs. in Thousands)

SCHEDULE 10 - FIXED ASSETS. ‘As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
S Leuswewr 10 Beveolnen OFTSSEE6T R IR
I Premises

BLILIEIET SR e o E

At cost as on March 31, preceding year | 526319} . 526238

PhmsL Shem® wiie 3i6 ety eaelig , L A ]

Additions during the year 1) R .

BLUL Spenged kg

ora ¥ | sty 626892

Deductions during the year
LY Sheged G55

Depreciation to date
 mengy euspyuied Gaioned
TOTAL
| Other Fixed Assets ( including funiture
- and fixtures)

OpBemeownen Qensgiaen
(Oisyeue0s AUNGLEEDD Caihaamea)

At cost as on March 31, preceding year | 2262408 s 1865470|
PhosU Spem® e 316 amadu sheeoLiig ¥ e
Additions during the year | 409960] 405946
LU Speirigsd Qg ' '

TOTAL | 2372377 . 2271416
Deductions during the year _ 4405| 9008
LY Spegsd 83558 , , o

2667972 2262408

Depreciaion o date O qTendss| 1431946)
mengl eusopulisy GEuionemD o

TOTAL | 904487 - 830462

o -

* - Includes building under construction at cost
(Rs.in thousands) 9386 (Previous year Nil) ‘ ‘
GRAND TOTAL (1 & I1) 1213044 1168840
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED , THOOTHUKUDI

Schedules to Balance Sheet (Rs.inThousands)
SCHEDULE 11 - OTHER ASSETS As on 31.03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
JLaueem 1 G5) OENEgEE6 ‘ |
I Inter-Office adjustments (Net) — -
SomensenaSenLCu 2 eem Beyeoeusen
I Interest accrued 2089847 - 1797766
uTGeuemgw! 6uLlp ' :
Il Tax paid in advance / tax deducted at source 6220876/ 4720240
wpeirengne OFgsdy / Niggsn eeiwiucL e ' ‘
\Y Stationery and stamps 8780 7293
USSaMmaET, LNhGST DHNID ighasd SmeosaT
v Non-Banking Assets acquired in satisfaction Nil Nil
of claims |
GL6T UMESEHESTS OuDD aurkduiss agmfe
ENgng \ENGHEEaH6T ’
VI Deferred Tax Asset 278421 207528
Serefl maussLULL aifidsTer AFnGgSH6T ‘
Vii Other Assets 3204294 2819302
850 OEnSgIGE6T
TOTAL 11802218] 9552129
(Rs. in Thousands)
SCHEDULE 12 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES | As on 31,03.2015 | As on 31.03.2014
SiLLeuener 12 FhSILLBEMmT HNDENSS auNmILLEAT
I Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 93904 112077
andss afgmer HegLr@ Canfémandt
Il Liability on account of outstanding ,
forward exchange contracts 50923802 38200328
agiumiiy NbBu asoanel Slubsssiams ASMIGHS
Gouemmigws QWINLIL|G6T
i Guarantee given on behalf of constituents in India 19814883 18562624
angsosLneTiaghsaTe (@ndwunde) 2 sansd
QanBsgeme ,
IV Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations 8521033 7151163
SIBSSUTEEHES ShSTaUTST BLAUSMEz6T6
ghULGEIQL OLTTHLILEET
V  Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 392763 16795
executed on capital account not provided for and
Liab.under DEAF
WpssLLL Casimgy QUUESSERESTEN APSSET
OFONBEHEHTS DEHHLILILLOSTDS
TOTAL 79746385] 64132087
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SCHEDULES TO PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended (Rs. in Thousands)

e

SCHEDULE 13 - INTEREST EARNED

QLGS 13 aLy QmaLls aHDIaTD

| Interest/ discount on advances / bills
BLETBEREG ally LOND Teaamer wevaaemL. A5
LIV )

Il Income on investments
waed@sater Cufe augbnemd

Il Interest on balances with Reserve Bank of
India and other inter-bank funds
e eurkid wHpID By arkdasis & eren
Srlusensehu ary

IV Others
IDPEDEY

TOTAL

SCHEDULE 14 - OTHER INCOME
SRS 14 S5 AigFLIRID

| Commission, exchange and brokerage
aiflegeln DPQID 516 &N

I Profit on sale of investments
wasiamen dlipp asmsds Geomb
Loss on sale of investments
wasdasT eipp amade b
ll  Profit on revaluation of investments
a@amen b0y Asiis amais Gemid

IV Profit on sale of land, building and other assets ,
fBooid, aLigLD 0 AeETsgEamen iy aimsidn Gemubd
Loss on sale of land, building and other assets
oo, sl D LY Aensgsamen sy aeaws e
V  Profit on exchange transactions

Sifu Aewane LHPD @b Aupp Seomid

VI Miscellaneous income

9 aenssefed aupIETD

TOTAL
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SCHEDULES TO PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT

For the year ended (Rs. in Thousands)

SCHEDULE 15 - INTEREST EXPENDED 31.03.2015 31.03.2014

Il Leuenenr 15 autlp SFevsheumser ] .

| Interest on deposits 19150965| 17827279
el BEsenésTeT Qi ‘ .

Il Interest on Reserve Bank of India / 119711 117768
Inter-Bank borrowings
MFiey ek wpmbd R0 aridsaiLlphs kS
BLETHERHGAL Qg ' ‘

I Others 250372 259770

| 1DDEDEY
TOTAL 19521048 18204817

SCHEDULE16 - OPERATING EXPENSES 31.03.2015 1 - 31.03.2014

SILLEUEDET 16 [HEDLAPEDDE 61FEIEYHEIT ‘ ‘

I Payment to and provisions for employees 3152369 2838598
semPuisEhEser FenomenDd wHHID SHESE '
QFILILILICL D6

Il Rent, taxes and lightings 515186 426018
aunLsns, eufl . oHOID Welengs OFevayseT

Il Printing and stationery 87058 85268

| SisGasmed DPDID TPHOUNMET auenEs6T
[IV Advertisement and publicity 98287 86887
eflemibLgLd ‘

V @ Depreciation on Bank's Property 337553 229371
andulst asmggaseafs GslbmerD

VI Directors Fees Allowances & Exp. 11919 7643
Busgpiacfer tsv, Jleoeusied LHHID CFeOSET

Vi Aud.itors' fees and expenses (including branch 9684 8593
auditors)
senfdevawnenisefen s HND OFeaE6T
Bevenzeficir genfismawnemaepssnen tav Gebsmea) .

VIl Law charges 3309 3199
FLL 6\F600S6T ‘

IX  Postages, telegrams, telephones, efc. 140119 83967
sune, sid, Ognepetud QFeesT

X Repairs and maintenance 190207 136510
LgLMigse wHmb ugmofiiy OFeeyessT

Xl Insurance 222303 196468
&G agnems :

Xl Other expenditure 911426 790104
wHD E\FeayS6T

TOTAL 5679420 4892626

@ Depreciation for the year includes Rs 430.09 lakhs being the carrying amount after
retaining the Residual value of assets whose useful life is Nil as on 1st April 2014 charged
to profit and loss in accordance with Schedule 1l to the Companies Act,2013.
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SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF THE 20150 eumt_1b womrié: 31 CaBuiL i (oig cuent iz
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st GUITL GBT_Semrd: G Sertladr LigRuimes LIL|SGIT:

March 2015. . .
DL L aueneni-17: (1psdlul semish@ Qmfl(Loenmase:

L.OUITHIITETENE:
A.SigliuenL gwiiuiy

B8 Snaemaset Qgnem  OSTG
‘ Geubifl  uBHL  WEPMLILIQUILD  [HEDLAPSDMUT6D
1.GENERAL: 2 eiten &LLSLMISEHSGID aktBsgienmuieo Heoefl
QUBLD LIPSSAIDSHHIGEHSHGD gnL SmniSeaybLD
fogmuerd eaerm SleguuenLulle
A Basis of Preparation surfsasluur@erenenr. B SN ES6T
S Leuemenwrudeiiy GSHLILL GCHMasS  ebu
eduy III (Form A & Form B) amé
QUBGSY®DFLLD 194961 UR
practices prfevailing within the banking industry. iﬁ:ﬂ:;iJLff;"f@gg%ﬁgw ?@g&a&;&ﬁﬁ
[The financial statement§ have been prepared in ippmb FEeuAETSTEDESEET, JleuCLGLTE SbSL
accordance with the requirements prescribed under ey euriuéd (RBI) cupriudn cuiflsm: GgeSesiiguiid,
the Third schedule (Form A and Form B) of the 19fley 133 asbeuefsiLb 2013, usS7.sbewel
Banking Regulations Act 1949.The accountingand if&er 201460 GHUALLLLGST6T
reporting policies of the Bank used in the preparation &@é&gﬂgﬂ@@paaﬂa}r LUt @E.@“-'
of these financial statements conform to the snrmcﬂg.ga.ng) uileo - 0'.""5'_6" s J’HNUHGL,D
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India &G.Tmﬂm &Lo: .Lu(j&u.m&uu@g,g,u!_]@.w &m@m@ "
) i ) 2 _eiteng). SpusMhcs GULLLILLL Heoaberns
(RBI) from time to time, the accounting standards sefligs eupwLrenb HDD  OsssiemissT
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act gemaS@adod OLTEHITE HEMHS LPEDILITET,
2013 read together with Paragraph 7 of the SiBshs auBLSSHEML ey, OFeaEHameT Goomu
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 to the extent [B6iolL SEWSESHEHES aBSGL PEODEILI CurkiS
applicable and practices generally prevalent in the HerLIDDISDS. L‘{@Q'Lb ungg  Meie “{5'&“5'63'
banking industry in India.] The items of income and I HPPEDHEG eLuL® BLESDE.

expenditure are taken on accrual basis except where ‘
specifically stated and it conforms to the guidelines BéBeowe Ofiders 2.GenEESS6m
issued by Reserve Bank of Tndia (RBI) for banks. QUMDE, OETHEIGEET LDHOID AUTDILILGEETLLD
B.Use of Estimates @giumgmoed  GBEGL  OUTDILLSET 2 LLIL)
lF606YEHET LDDMILD CUCHLDMEDITRIBGEDEMLILD &e0oTeSBLD

SCHEDULE - 17: SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared
on ongoing concern concept, historical cost
convention and conform to statutory provisions and

The preparation of financial statements
requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) as of the
date of the financial statement and the reported &5% WLHUIEEEHLD,  SILDT RIS ETBLD
income and expenses during the reporting period. geq & pELEb slurar  wepUgLD
Management believes that the estimates and
assumptions used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual QBTETOIGaTETgl. 2 CUTEDLOWNG  (PajEET BbE
results could differ from these estimates. BLSGsenelmba FHED LOTMILILEOMLD.

Gurg Bremsd Ao wHITESepeTLLD
SigIDNETRIGEMETLD G Couenou|eTerg.
BBened Sfldens o HaNSsHHH OFLILILILLL

QL Getengl  eremy  [Brieunsd  mbLiGens
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2. FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS: 2. &ibfu eiseoneuenli urflomhmreiser:
i. QeuefiBMLG BT  epswldsLly,

i. Foreign currency balances both, under
assets and liabilities, outstanding forward exchange
contracts and swaps are evaluated at the year-end
rates published by FEDAI. The resultant profit/loss
is shown as income / loss.

i1. Deposit accounts denominated in foreign
currency such as FCNR (B) EEFC, RFC and
placement of such deposits in foreign currency are
recorded at year-end Foreign Exchange Dealers
Association of India (FEDAI) rates.
currency loan accounts are also disclosed at the year-

end FEDAI rates.

- iii. Contingent liabilities on account of

Foreign

acceptances, endorsements and other obligations
including guarantees and Letters of Credit

denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
year-end FEDAI rates.

3. INVESTMENTS:
A) Classification of investments has been

made as per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of
India.

1) The entire investment portfolio of the
Bank is classified under three categories viz. "Held
to Maturity", "Available for sale" and "Held for
Trading".

ii) The investments are classified for the
Jurpose of Balance Sheet under five groups viz. (i)
Government securities, (ii) Other approved
securities, (iii) Shares, (iv) Debentures and Bonds
and (v) Others.

Selcuensulieoner QFNSSISS6T LDDHMILD QLIMMILILEET
wHmL>  WPerGed® = SbPws  eFeomeues
eUUBSMmEET  SlpBuwsasomeaeml  LHMID
BmieueTrIGafiedr G(LPLDSSMED 6UBLE HemLdAuled
OnflefisslLBLD efemeouied HIILLILLEG SiFed
ghuGén SeonuldfpepLid sHeovisded  TEHTHIH
esneTeTLLGEmE.

il. FCNR (B) EEFC, RFC Gunetip SibBwié
egeomeuenofl FLDLIMGLDNET emeuLil] Bfser Bl
eFeomeuewll  LOMHOM)| BMICUETTRISEN6T (G (LDLDSSMED
6udhLs SemLAuied SinflefissLiLGL efemeopdiiled
aGs5es6 easmaaTLUUGEDS. OHBWEF
eFeomeeouiiuiied eUTMIBLLILL SLETHEBLD SlbBuisF
egeomeuetol oMy  BnieueTrISafi6T (G (LPLDSSTED
UdBLSHDLAUle0 @lgﬂsﬁi&&ﬂu(&b eflemeoLodLiLdledr
SlpuuenLuied erGsEIS QBMeTeMLILBSTmEDT.

ii. eBuUMéGL euMmIIEeT,  feneoruLl
euUMMULEeT WOMID QLD SRSMIGET eLpeoLD
affunme@d @puyser OB  eseomeueoof
wrHn Boaarmaseier WSS
SiflefsslILGL eupLs HeoLdl Pl aGHFHIS
Q@meTenLILIBSiTmeUT.

3.1p&ed@ser:

a.psd®aer  ungy Mefel  eumiSulen
euebl|missebBevorris 1AflésLiuL Berereor.

. aumibuler Slewarsg (PHSEBEHD WHiay
SMeDLD 6UED] EWEUHHS Fnlgiemel EADLIENETHE
dLGuener, wWLHMILL AWTUTTSFI&EE & 6T
EDEUSBLILILBETETEMEY  6T60T  ELPETD)  CUEHSSHENTES
Wrflé&sLur. Berereor.

i. 8wy Pewer sevadnsts WpadBser (1)
OipsTmIs &LedT USHIEEET (2) geveviw

SmbsflasiuL.  sLer usPgmssT (3) LUMIG
Wwasb@Gaer (4) sler UsSSTHIGET (5) LDHDEDEUSET
ereor gl WMleymenns WflssLiLL BeTemeor.
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B) Valuation of investments is done as follows:

i) Investments held under “Held to
Maturity” are valued at cost price. Wherever the cost
price is more than the face value, the premium paid is
amortized over the remaining period of maturity.
Profit on sale of securities under “Held to Maturity”
category is initially taken to Profit & Loss account
and then appropriated to Capital Reserve Account. If
there is a loss it is charged to Profit & Loss account.

1i) Investments classified under “Available for
Sale” category are marked to market on quarterly
basis. Shares held under “Available for sale” are
marked to market on weekly basis. Scrip wise
appreciation / Depreciation is segregated group-
wise. The Net Depreciation category wise is charged
to Profit & Loss account. The Net Appreciation in
any category is ignored.

iii)  Investments classified under “Held for
Trading” category except shares are marked to
market scrip-wise on daily basis. Shares held under
“Held for Trading” are marked to market on weekly
basis. The net depreciation group wise is charged to
Profit and Loss account and the net appreciation 18
ignored.

iv)  Investments are valued at year-)end as per

RBI guidelines as follows:

a) Central Government Securities are valued as
per price list published by Fixed Income Money
Market and derivatives Association of India

(FIMMDA).

B.1pgebGasr Sipseoneunp oS
QeLIWILILIBSTNEDT:

I wpdre] sneod euem] eneusS (GeuevoriplLl
Wflefied o 6ter WHdGEeT SiLdH efieneiied
sevoTsELILBETmeT. el eflewed, (P&LDSLIL
SmeEGLD
OlbEnBBHe0 OBTems LHLOHEELD WdiTey snesHn

cflewens®  FnBHONS ULESSHeD
udie) QFLWIILGEDS. WPATONID ST ueHT
ENGEEEIL (WEEsmeT efpuBeD BEPLESLD
Seonuonenigl Seonu HePL BOBENG (PHEOID
aGsEE 6FoULLG U aposar [FHES
LMHPLILGSTDE. HERLINGD ULsSHD Seomu
HegL & Seonmudse
SEDDSSLILGETDS.

& 6001 & & 6Dl (B 5 &I

ii. efipLenered SL@uene ereur LIfleSmeed
WwsdGseTr  @eleeuTeTILd  SHengUled  Beoeyld
deveouled snenTeaoI@ We»D&e6fia
wHILILGSEDE. efiDUaTEE B BUEDEUSET
Uflefled SHBEGLD UMIGSHET GEUGUNH UTFIpLD
wEIILILGEDE.  @efend WSO BaEmer
Gswioneond whHmid wHHY SFsfoy  LUiley
amfurs UfssuuGans. qeeunm UMelgib
o_giten [Bay GHILILDMETD e HaQL s HUTESSS
a@GHaILGEDS. Berndly s uLFSHH Sene
seooTeBe eTBBBLILIBEUSE0EWED.

i sﬁlh.urrurr;rglgésasrr& Q&HIBBLILILIRIHSGLD
WS @E6T Beoayd  efleneoufled
Qeueeunds Hrepd SIALILG Bay GHiiLbrerd
8msGD uLFHH0 Seomu / HEYLE aamréz»@%é@
TGsBsLLUGEDE. ewrungsSHheser
omaddmiueney  Aflefled  SmEGD
geleeunds eungld WHIILLUGEDS. Bar wHy
uLss e Slemeu

shemsuiled

LIMBIG &6

& B LD & 6007 & & 60

TGS aLILIBeuSHDEmED. \
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b) State Government Securities and Other
Approved Securities are valued after appropriate
mark up over Yield to Maturity (YTM) rates for
- Central Government securities declared by
FIMMDA.

c) Debenture and Bonds have been valued with
appropriate mark up over the YTM rates for Central
Government Securities declared by FIMMDA.

d) Quoted shares are valued at market rates
quoted on NSE.
e) Unquoted shares are valued at book value

ascertained from the latest available Balance Sheet
and in case the latest Balance Sheet is not available,

the same s valued at Re. 1 per company.

f) Preference shares are valued at YTM, if
dividend is received regularly. Where dividend is in
arrears, appropriate depreciation is provided based
on the number of years for which dividend is in
arrears as per RBI guidelines.

) Mutual Fund units are valued at market

rates/NAV/Repurchase price as applicable.

h) Treasury bills, certificate of .deposits and

commercial papers are valued at carrying cost.

i) Provisions for investments are made as per

RBI prudential norms.

iv.  ungs Marel eurmiBuletr euuflasm BHedleoTLig
oupLESsH SniBuied wpsiBae Sipsaetoneunm)
wSIIE SFLwILGSetTDeDT.

a. wHEw  OIpHF HLEN UHSTMGET
8ndwneigeren  [Heweowimner  IHLDTETLD
TEMUMTGGLD WPSHEOLLTeTTHEBEHMT LN LWPSOLEG
Bnieuerssned  BreoruissLuGED  FHEDS
efleneoéSetommis UG aFsLWINLGSsTHEDT.

b. wmfeo Sips &L6T LSHPRIS6T LDDMILD
gever Smdsflesslur,.  usBpmiser  GoGeo
sl Bopeverd wHHW  SipsH  HLET
UHGSTRBEHES PrcooTuisG  elemeouied
SligliuemLuied H5&HH ghn Bnssd sNBHE
BUSIE eFLWLILGBSedTmeDT.

C. sLeDT  UupPomseT SHHwnelgieren
Beneowimer eudpLONETD 6aHAUMTSGLD
WwadLLTemBEpGsMe N WsOLE Brieuerd
Brenuisg efeneoulent SiguuenLuied HSHS
ghp Snssld asnGHE LS LILGSaTDEDT.

d. URlGE &sheopuler GHuiLiged
GonasUuL@eter  UMIGSHST, LMIGEF  &FHeDS
el geruyp FHhews o eme uled
AL ILGBetTDEDT.

€. UumEs &bemsulst GOl Sedeons
LUmIGEET SLooueisefer Ffusmon Smuy Benes
seoUTaE e  HeoT@enemr  UH5H®  FHULlen
SigliuenLufed AINLLILEGEDE. sOU srTesHwL

8ply Peneobseoisd SmLESTS LILFHB60
shOUDI&ES .1 eaerm FHuled
&S600THBLLILIL (B6Tengl.

f. wergfiemoll URIGEsT Seomu LRIBLES
OSNems QLIMIETES SMLBHGSD LLFSHO euLllp
euemaUIeONeT CUIHLIMETTHENS (LPSIT6Y SMDSHSIBELI
udiey e&Fug NI LuGSeper.  &eomu
LRI GH Oenens Pauenaiuisd SmpeED LLssHHe0
2 &h% CsiioneggiLer unps HMerel eursiBuler
a6l misseusBeauumie LHULTLLLGS6TDEDT.
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C. Prudential norms: Securities guaranteed by the
State Government where the principal / interest is
due but not paid for a period of more than 90 days are
treated as non performing investments and
appropriate provision is made and interest in respect
of such investments is recognized as income only on

cash basis.

D. (i) In terms of the instructions of RBI, the excess
of acquisition cost over face value of securities kept
under “Held to Maturity” category is amortized up to
the date of maturity and the amount amortized is
reflected as a deduction in Profit & Loss account
Schedule 13 — Interest Earned, under item II —
Income on Investments.

(ii) Brokerage / Commission / Stamp Duty paid in
connection with acquisition of securities are treated

asrevenue €Xpenses.

E.Accounting for REPO Transactions

Repo and reverse Repo transactions are accounted in
accordance with the extant RBI guidelines.
Securities purchased/sold under Liquidity
Adjustment Facility (LAF) with RBI are
debited/credited to Investment account and reversed
on maturity of the transaction. Interest expended
/earned thereon is accounted for as

expenditure/revenue.

g ugeouy B8 WpadGseT gHews eflemed
Slebeog PHmwu eumms  Bieouis@  eflened
Slbeogl Bay €FTHH LS Seupnled ganeug

earMer SipuuewLuled wWHLIEG
QFLWIILGHeTDEDT.
h BHELE USHImEET, eweuly BF

USSITRIGET, EUTHSS USBITRIGET QBT LSy
eflemeouiled LB LILGSeOTDEDT.
i WsdLBs® Coemauuner @FsEE uMIS

fiegrel eaméular OiPieymsdsedleruip
BrevoruissLLGEDS.
C. muoner euwpwenpast UME Merel

aumiBuler  euedlmis@edleimulp  LDMBeD  Sigeed
euMINGUDSLILLL SLETUSHIRIGET LOSTET 6Ll
Slbengl OlFed  FeuemEIUTBHTEOL  HLHH 90
BILBEBSGSLD GLoeONS TSNS LLFHH0 Slemel
QUIBLDMEDTLD FLLNG (WP&HEOG@ET 6Teurd SBhSLLLES,
Coemauwner @@sdGseT OFLWILLEG — SigedT
euemsUIeONET Ul euGEON@LD Gumg GG
6)(JBLDMEVTLDNGE &H600THde TBHSLILGEDE!.

D. (i) ungs Meren eum&uler
ausllymissedleorule,  (pHirey SO  EUeDT
mapdpsed Wpedbsaiar wdia LSINDEG
B0 OHMems BNESH  UMMIBWIHSGSLD
uLESBD Slelaumn SnaB s  CSTHHBLILILL
ueooid Wwéiey smeod euewy uBTULLE Seomu
BePLES SeUTHBED  SlLLelemeT 136D  "euLIp
auensWieT euHLONeTD” erebip Seweolidledr Sp Iled
sMeTILBD  WpeedGsaeficor Gufled eumLTETHS6
sUl5g s LIUGSDE!.

(i) wodGsewenr eAp@L Gungy BenLESD
SIS, &Ll WDMILD 2THH5HTENS ShHIiene
wesdGaeiar OlLEs  afleweoul el b sl
GODEEILGEDS!. (PESBHmeT CUTRIGLD ELTLDE!
OFQIHFID H5IE. Slleger wodeoraull SpBuieneu
BLLIL| CFe0eyEemnE eTBHSIS OEneTemLLBGSDS!.
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4. ADVANCES AND PROVISIONS:

a) Advances are classified into Standard, Sub-
standard, Doubtful and Loss Assets and provisions
for possible losses on such advances are made as per
prudential norms/directions of the Board of
Directors/directions issued by Reserve Bank of
India from time to time. With regard to the Standard
Advances, Provisions are made as per extant RBI
guidelines. In addition to the specific provision
made towards identified NPAs, the bank also holds

floating provision.

b) In addition, the bank adopts an approach to
provisioning that is based on past experience

evaluation of security and other related factors.

¢) Provisioning on categorized assets is done as per
RBI guidelines except, based on a Board approved
policy, additional specific provisions for NPAs
under SS (secured) made with 25%, DF2A (NPA for
2 years) and DF2B (NPA for 3 years) @ 100% as
against the RBI stipulated minimum of 15% and
40% respectively. Similarly, Education loans were
provided at 100% irrespective of asset classification.
On the same basis, for some selected high value NPA
accounts, considering the possible potential losses,
the Bank has made provision during the year up to
100% as per Board directions and the provisions so

made is found to be adequate.

E QULGUT _ HLEINGDEHEBSHSTE _HE00THE
DMEET

apuGunm  wpmib  MfeurevaguGum
BLapsmasE  UMTs  Mefel  eumiduiedr

auflenGgeilarig sevssLILGEDg. LTpg faiel
amduwidlmne ped®seT LAF & emnmigh /
i@ eumwps Peedbaeaier seuraded LDDI /
apey eaLWILGSDE. &5 BHLeupsasuieT
waiasresdo GCBT  eFLWILGSDS. &s6r
epold  ghUBLD QI 6Fee] LHMID el
QUIBLOMEDTLD,  6\F60EAETMRIGET  LDDMILD  GUIHENML
sevoTHS6 61LDSLILGBS!.

4.5L.601861 LDDHID QFHISSBEET:

a. unpg femel eumRBuIeT CUEDIWIEDDBHEHHEE
© U@ HLeOTHET GUBLDNEID FL(BL6meN LDMHMILD
QUBLDNETLD FLLMG &LETB6T  (pednGw UL
SODHEHma  FHECHESEDSLLIDTETENE)  LDOHNILD
8ypulener gHUGHSS  SnlpuieneN  ETET
Ifsslur®, SiesLeee OsNGSS euensuieod
gihuLs snipw Splysener &l aFLwD eUTHLE
aumduicr Sua@pT Gpeieme BrreorulssiirL
amduisr  euenywenDHEEECHHL  CHemauuwine
REI6EGs6T  aFLWLILGSaTDeT. uMmg  Mael
aumiBufedr euflsmBsedledr Lilp SLDeDT &L eoTaereor
BHd @E6EGsT QFLWILLLE.  SEfUULL
REI6EGEET 6T AUTFIL LIenLILITET 6515EBHELD
QFILIWILILL (BeTengl.

b. G B  QUBLMOID  FLLTS
BLETBEHEHNNT RFIGEG OFLLD QUTLDSI, LPeT
SigILIeILD, FLIS 2 _6Ten QFnGHeor SLL LDDMILD
asnLiyeTen WHDH &MY 6ovli & 6w ariLd
SlgliLenLWINGS &sTe6 RHIGSG  QsLWD
S GS(LPEDDEDIL ABTE00TBETEN .

C. eGsasSSDALIDNET  sLEEDaTS ST
hy BLOBEERES BUSGHT G @UUSD
Slefiggietenger Lp mEHH 5EEG 25%
Qi NPA SS  (ungienssiurL) e
aurBiBuietr auLflpenmasT Lip @&iIEsLLGSEDS. DF 2
A (Bpei® Sbesoi® NPA) wimib DF 2 B (epeiy
Spetor(®  NPA) 100% Meiel eumid eHgnsd
WpemmGWw 15% WHmILD 40% GSEDDHSLLEFLD CULPMHIS
Geuetor@eloeiin) QUILSKRILD. SCsBUTed Slemeardal
soel sSLOTBEERHGL 100% QHEE0

eFELWILGEDS.
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d) Advances disclosed are net of provisioning made &ngSwionenr Swisemer  uMfdBg,  Csiiay

for non performing assets and floating provisions,
provisioning on diminution in fair value of assets on

restructured accounts.

e) In case of loan accounts classified as NPA, an
account may be reclassified as per performing asset

if it confirms to the guidelines prescribed by RBI.
5.FIXEDASSETSAND DEPRECIATION

a) Fixed assets are carried at cost of acquisition
less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes
freight, applicable duties, taxes and incidental
expense related to the acquisition and installation of

the asset. Except for items on which input credit is

availed.

b)
computers and ATMs, is provided on strightline

Depreciation on fixed assets, except on

value method at rates prescribed under Schedule II
of the Companies Act, 2013.

c) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided in
accordance with estimated useful lives as specified
in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, and
reckoning the residual value at 5% of the original

cost of the asset except for the following

eFwnuCL. Heo 2 wmpdi NPA seooré@aseried
amd SusGeT G 2 mansdul effseferLie
100% euemy BLOY Spetonged  @HIEEEG
QFLIWIIUL (B6Tergl.

d. B8 Sifleenauied ceuefiufiLiLi Geer &6t
OB TEMSHIITETS EUIBLDMTEDID LTS SHLEITEHEHSSTE0r
RFI680, WssELD OFTHGISS6T, BUIMLLDTET LDSLIL
GOme| PO  LNIFTEDLDSBLILILL.  HLETHET
SBweupridlEhs LSS BET  OHTEHSWTS
snevoril&aLILL BeTengi.

© Sidu ferey auraiduliehr aufsm Leoseledr
ug NPA Guneip euemsLESSUULL  SHL6T
sENsGHeT, BoFH OFTHH 6
LDMIEEDSLIBSSLILIBLD.

5. [feneoliner &S gissem LoDMILD GeHUILDTEUTLD:

a. Beveowner Q&FTHHEHET  euTmiBwL
elleneoulediping Sgieuenyuied sewTaSLLILILBeTer
Gswinerd  BWHFH  snevorissULL (BereTer.
aflsepd &I6@ SLLEOWLD eNEIGUSHESLD
Saupenn BOIUSHETET  AFOBEDBLD  EUTMISL
eflemeow |6 GaTHSLILIL(BETETEDT.

b Beweowner 6&01SF &asef e
Gzuionenoneng  Gewlouny),  snesfwrud
ueRILLGaunLt  Quibruset Feliigg) 2013w
ampLsSL sbelLelser b SlLLeusneor lled

sam@Gererl CHrIRCHTE W e Duled
SERSSLUILILBETNS).

) Beoeownenw OFTHHeT  GFHUIDTENID
amdssrLp 2013 Ufley I e &G

SO @GLILEDS S6All HD CUDEHEHHS
5%6@ eiehfl eFnsdenr WPl BHlHSSD
LwienisiTe eumprberfieo &eursSLLILGEDS.

Class of Asset Rates of depreciation per annum | ngHetr Lifley aupLsShanen Csiionen efidsi
Computer Hardware & Software| 33.33% sexfuowum) esiaungsT & aosiaungst | 33.33%

Prescribed rate Prescribed rate

Class of Asset Rates of depreciation per annum | | QgngPetr Lifley aupLsShanen Gailioner ez
Building 1.67% SLIQL MIG6IT 1.67%

Office equipment 20% Sigyeuens 2 LisTemuseT | 20%

Computer Hardware & Software | 33.33% safliouml asLnger & AoeiRLngsr | 33.33%

Vehicles 12.50% QUM EVTTRIGH6IT 12.50%

Furniture and Electrical Fittings | 10% DyemoneieT DOQID WsemALTGEBE8T | 10%
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d) The written down value of fixed Assets
whose lives have expired as at 1st April 2014 after
retaining the residual value have been charged to the
Statement of Profit & Loss and disclosed as an

exceptional item.

Depreciation on additions is pro rata basis,

e)

from the date of capitalization.

Expenditure during construction/capital

f)

works pending completion is shown at cost.

6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
a) In respect of provident fund the bank pays

fixed contribution at predetermined rates to a

separate trust, which invests in permitted securities.
The obligation of the Bank is limited to such fixed
contribution.

b) The bank has adopted AS-15 (Revised)
“Employee Benefits” of the companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006.

c) Annual contribution to Gratuity Fund,
Pension Fund, Leave and other long term employee
benefit plans are provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation at the year end. In respect of
defined contributory pension scheme, provision at
predetermined rate is made.

d)
profitand loss account.

7. TAXES ON INCOME
Income Tax comprises current tax and

The actuarial gain / loss is recognized in the

deferred tax as per Accounting Standard-22. Current
tax is made on estimated tax liability using the
applicable tax rates. The deferred on tax Asset /
Liability is recognized in accordance with the

applicable Accounting Standard.

d sreveuBwinedr  [Bemeowinenr NS ISa6riieor
P 1st guged 201460 enghdlw wHuL Sefly
IpHpeney GeoLl Beigl HEWIHS Jisamauded 6fid
sfleosanen e\Feoa a6 eTeor HflefGsLILILS).

D] SelaudpLLD UMRIBLLLL 6\FTSHFIBHEDHHE
cLPeOSET S\ETEGNSBLILLL. Hrefedl hHg GEHWLDTeTLD
seouBELLILL BeTeng).

) BLIGLTRISET SL g6 C\BMTEUTRIBHSLD OLUMLDSI
gnuBLD eFeEeT OlFeT OlLss  eleneouied
smenorLilssLILBGBDS.

6. e ST HEDEITEHEIT:

a. aurRld e fluiT euEmISTED emeull] BHEG
(WpeiienL lpBW Sioneoliss [Bemeowinenr LIMisefiLienL
R SOl SINEELLEDMEE — QUPRIGEDS.
SIpsasLLeDET Olews O@ILFESHULLL
ubSrmisafied WHOG OFLSDMS. eumIBuIeoT

sLemD  [Beweowimedr  UMIGEALULLET  WRbHSI
IGEILE
b. Bmieuent efifaer 2006, 6ld 15 (BpsSwS)

"Qem SlIIT (560608 6UMEIES LTSS,

c. HHEDETTHEBTENS, UISUILD, efBLIeneoT
L6TOILDNE&@LD 6uFd LDMM Ler PN [HEDEITEHEIHS ST
8n% oL Snduigld SieleumpreaT OFTenEs
seooredL. Aoy uwind eubmeufledr sevofiliyLie
euBIBWITED SevoTEdBe T(BSHSLILIL(BTeng.

d. oSl [HEOENTSEHHENET  SHevvfiLiL|meried
gpuUBLL &emuld LOHMILD HEQPLIEIGEDET EUmIS
&eonu oL BevtBHed SIRSssgieTeng.

7. euflsenssner a&IsE0:

SHE00TE@(LPEDID 6T600T 2260TLIR 6UhLDMe0T 6uil,
mLOY eufl omid Seirell emeussLILLL 6urflEener,
2_arenLsSwgl. HLUY euflwnengl. euUpsssSHeESLD
gfwnenr aufl eizdemss O@neiG eufl OFQIHS
Geuevorigw  eummUysefier  SlgliuenLuied
seooTBELLLULBeTengl.  HeTafl  eneusBLLLL

QeNSSHIHGSHET LDOMILD OUMMILILEeT  HLDEevfs6r
seooTaEUI0 euemppenm eldmer 200660T LR
SirdsfaaUuL GaTengl.
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8. REVENUE RECOGNITION:
Income and expenditure is generally accounted on

accrual basis except in the following cases.

1) In the case of NPAs, Income is recognized on
cash basis, in terms of guidelines of Reserve Bank of
India. Where recovery is not adequate to upgrade the
NPA accounts by way of regularization, such
recovery is being appropriated towards interest in
the first instance and towards the principal/book
values thereafter, except in the case of suit filed
accounts. In case of Non-performing investments
(NPIs), the same accounting treatment as above is
followed except otherwise agreed.

ii)
mutual fund, income from sale of mutual fund

Dividend on investments in shares, units of

products, locker rent, Insurance claims, commission
on LCs, income on auxiliary services and other
sevices, overdue charges on bills, commission on
Government business and insurance business are
accounted on cash/realization basis.

iii)  Income related to credit card is accounted on
the basis of the bills raised.

iv)  In the case of suit filed accounts, legal
expenses are charged to the profit and loss account.
Similarly, at the time of recovery of legal expenses,
in respect of such suit filed accounts, the amount

recovered is accounted as income.
9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The bank reports basic and diluted earnings
per share in accordance with applicable Accounting
Standard-20. For the year under reference, both
Basic and diluted earning per share being the same,
is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the
weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the period.

8. aumeumii Simidsiiiy

6U(HLDMEOTLD  LDOMID  61Fe06lETRISEmET
&HE00THEBEUHD OLIMFIEUTET HETUTHE (LPEDMWITEDT,
ObeHs QUBLSSDGTIW e  6FaseeT
Lpseutr_eme) Hefly SeonL oL HEONHGHEHHE
TEHSLD pewmenw eurkié HeTuDnIEDS.

i)  ungs Meiel eurkld SHEMETOTLILIE EUIHEUMIL
FLLTE &LebtaeT LOHMer 6Ll 6ugemGLELINS)
seovsEed TBHHLLBEDG. CUGHEOMNGLD EHTens
au@eumiy FL@L Spepn sLefeldmbgl e
Sleneys® Beveons LLFGESD (QUPEHS OHMLIULILL
sLeimeT H6fly) OlSESMME (PHEOTEUF CULL
QUEDBHGLD LOGLpETeNgl SIFQIBGLD H600THSLLILIBLD.
Seiaumpner eugpeumiy LG SDETDD (WPHEOGHET
Ogrmeor  eugponeorpld GoGed HevoTL  (WpemMuied
&60018 B6160(B&SLILI(BS60TMEDT.

i) umie Seomusastems, ugeougBs LSsmer
eu@bLONeNTLD,  upeoupBdenw  EADGSLLOLTLPE,
SDLEGSLD 6UIBHLDTEOTLD, LITSIBLIL QLILLES GUTL6WES,
&S euqpLoneoTLd, LC sLslagsdr LDDMILD SIFSNHisLD
sniSE Ogeued BSGHD BMLESD SIS 8nedl
SHEWeme  EUSHEONGLD  OLMLDE  QUHLDTEUILDNES
&60018:E6160(BE& SLILIBEETMET.

i)
uweTu®s5S
UGBS ILGELD  6UHLDTEITLD
eleneolULQUENe  FWLMINESLD
6UJHLDMEDTLONS 6T(BSSISOSTeTeTLILIBSEDE!.

BLET  SiLenLemwiLl
QAMMBIGL UFSHS
SlaauLeunipgl
auUTLp &I

6URI$  QUPMIGLD
GILHT (H 6T

iV) - LewD 6ugsed QLD QUTIHLG CULPHGSSET
OSMBSBBEHGSD LLESHD SlIauTDIesT  QUDSS
ufey &L LODID HLSSCUSDETET CFO6YSBET
Sigiauioumpg Seomu el seiede TEHSHIS
QaneTemiu@EDSl.  SleluTDIeT &6 S6T
QUGHOMGD  OUMLPE  CUEEONOT  OFHTEMS
GUAHLDMEUTLONS 6T(BSEIH QsTeTenLLGEDS-

9. @eueeuNdh URIBNGLD FLigw) Seomu eflfsLb:

HEWTHG (PO 6T600T 2060 HEVUTGETEILIY
@alan® urEHEb o Seoru  efldswD
saonsSLULUGSEDE. ambular @eleend
uRiBhE@L 2 M SiplienL. WHNILD SHeMTHSULILL
sgnefl  euponmeoTD  Fwwne  SBUUBTED,
SIGIEUTDTET GUJHLDNEILD [BE) SeOMLHems ELDTHS
URIGsaier eTeeuisenasIITd  6UE S

&600TSELILBGEDSI.
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10. CASHFLOW STATEMENT
The Bank has adopted the respective Accounting

Standard prescribed under Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006 and follows indirect method.
11. PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS

The Bank follows the instruction given by RBI in

this regard.
12. SEGMENT REPORTING

As per RBI guidelines on enhancement of disclosure
AS-17, the
reportable segments have been divided into treasury,

relating to segment reporting under

corporate / wholesale, retail banking operations.
13. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

The Bank has adopted the respective Accounting

Standard and the guidelines of the RBI.
14. CONTINGENCIES

Loss, if any from contingencies arising from claims,

litigation, assessment, fines, penalties etc are
recorded when it is probable that a liability has been
incurred and the amount can be reasonably

estimated.
15.IMPAIRMENT OFASSETS

Impairment losses, if any, on fixed assets are

recognized in accordance with the Accounting
Standard 28 'impairment of assets' and charged to

profitand loss account.
16. NET PROFIT

The net profitis arrived at after provisions for:

i)

directtaxes

i)  possible losses on standard assets,
restructured advances, NPAs and other
contingencies

iii)  depreciation/diminution on investments

iv)  employee retirement benefits and

V) Otherusual and necessary provisions.

10. U6WTLIL|LPES SInflbens

aumd Sigeues FULW 2006, eupridw
BOUBGPemn elPsaficiile SFNHEET HETIHE
auempWenDE6T SewLLiipsbslLL BeTerg.

1. (LPHEMSII BUdHL. [BBLDEYBEIT:
aumid ungs Merel euriBuiietr gnaEmeot
auflpemmasmet LleoTUmIL{eTeTg.

12. eflwmunuiifleyser Sirfléens

unpg ferel eumiBuletr eulsmGgedleor
Gufled seoomaGWemn 176tule  eflwinuny  Udley
SifGenaILINeTE (LPSHEO®, BHIeIeT / QNS DDDILD

feeoemn QUmSHHMD  eflwmungd  ereor
Wrflssuur Bererng. .
18. emfuLer asmLilyenLuwearsGenn®

gNUBSSW eUILIKGEISeT LDMlw eflensSmIseT:
amd sausEGpern elfsafenigub

unpg Maiel  eumSuiehr  eulsML BSedledTLIRW|LD

8snHENET HEONEHG 616D W DM 6m 6l

sewLLIGSI6TengI.

14. a&MGmnéeLd SLpuLiser.

SpuiGaet, eupsGSafet Sl seT,
aufl  seoofill SUILEDATGHOSTDBESET  GUTEITD
aBMGHEGL SLpuiGaer AUTMIILSENTS LDImILD
ULEHPHE0 Ol  SlEIGUMDIETT  OHTEDHHEDET
2 5@pswne BreoouléGlb Hmeumuie
&60011686160(BSSLILBBEOTMEDT.

15. QFnsgISSefer LDALIILPUILY:

Peneowineor  QFTHFIGHEND  GHLBLD
WANNPLIY SHeoOTSBESGLPenD 2860TLIR HE0UTSELILILG
Seomu HeQL BETEBE TBSSIH QBTeTeTILGSDSI.

16. 880 &eomuLb:
8o HeQL BH6TSES Bevor(Beren [HHT
Seonunerg BB  QHIHGEG  OFILILLL
Lledreorit sevoTsSLLILIL(B6T6MF.

) &Ly Ten o eurfl

i) L6 OBMBSS eUemSUiled
gDUL&SnIgWI SLpLIL|GET
WPHedB@BeMed FHLLSFnIQWLI
Ga\LILDMEDTLD/@LpLIL|& 6T
emSluiheG QUIe|eILmID
eUMLPG SemLBGLD LISDETHET
6ULP&EHLDITET LDMHMILD
SgBumeuf @gieEGs6

ii)
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17.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In respect of Intangible Assets, the Bank has adopted
the respective Accounting Standard (AS26)

18. ACCOUNTING FOR _PROVISIONS,
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND

CONTINGENTASSETS
~As per the Accounting Standard 29 the bank

recognises provisions only when it has a present
obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources is required to settle the
obligation and when a reliable estimate of the
amount can be made. The required disclosure for
contingent liability is made ‘on possible
obligationthat arises from past events, the existence
of which depends on occurrence or non occurrence

of future event not under control.

b) Contingent assets are not recognized in the
financial statement since this may result in the

recognition of income that may never be realized.

sd/-S.R. Aravind Kumar
sd/-K.V Rajan

sd/-B. Prabaharan
sd/-K.N Rajan

sd/-V.V.D.N. Vikraman
Directors -

sd/- S.Sundar
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sd/-M.Gunasekaran
General Manager

sd/-T.Prabhakar
General Manager

sd/- C.S.Deepak
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Thoothukudi
01.06.2015

sd/- P.Mahendravel

sd/-P.Yesuthasen

sd/-S.Kandavelu
General Manager

17._e0s0Inans e\&nsgisbael

amd sausGD  efdsefeg
wHmb (AS26) 8snener &e0HS
EUEMPIIEDDSENET HeWLLIIpHGI6TeNS).
18.  e@gied@ser _adiungny  Uereispey

QUTMILILSET _LDDMILD C\FTHEIBETHHSHNET _SEU0TEHE
(LPEDMSET:

a. QRSN SOUHSLPEOD 2960TLIY
BLIHZHNE [BHLDEAILIND SDOLNLPE FOULIRIHSSLD
ouUMIILBEH6ETE @FHES6 asFsLWILLBETeTg.
855 @HsSGs6T  HHUSLIET  PenDuUied
wHIILIULGetengl. &hF eSTTIT  eUTDLLSET
adrencodded MBewbd Sleg BEPTS HD
BL.BUMLIped 6060 [BHLDFEE6TED LDAM)ILIL6OMLD.

b. B8 Oifsmsuie adiungmi
HetTelisLpe) AFTHHIBSET EUEDIWINIGESLILIL 6606MED.
SIGEED EUHLDMEUTLD SIRIBHNILONS 6T(B&S6He06weD.
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Be b stop shead of ity



93" Annual Report 2014-15

SCHEDULE - 18:
NOTES FORM PART OF ACCOUNTS FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2015

1. The Financial Statements have been
prepared in conformity with Forms A & B of the
Schedule IIT to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949
read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013
read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules 2014 to the extent applicable and
practices generally prevalent in the banking industry
in India.

2. During the year, all the 430 branches have
been subjected to statutory audit.

3. Reconciliation of inter branch / office adjustment
accounts has been completed up to 31.03.2015

4. (i) In accordance with RBI guidelines, the
investments portfolio of the Bank has been classified

into three categories as given below:

Category | Book value (Rs.n crore) | % to total Investments
Held to Maturity 5755.34 75.03%
Available for Sale 1650.55 21.52%

Held for Trading 265.21 3.45%
Total 7671.10 100.00%

SLR securities under 'Held to Maturity' category
accounted for 22.38% of Bank's Demand and Time
Liabilities as on 31.03.2015 as against the ceiling of
23.50% stipulated by Reserve Bank of India.

L. BhFHureled euiid PHIUMTRIBEDDBEG 6o
oL (pempulen Ulg, Bipeuen FLb 2013, uUifley 133,
usd 7 wBEILd aukid SLEUUTE FLLLD 1949 GFHTGLLY
O, ugandb A & B & ug [ spfsms
SwflabsUul Beiengl.

2. Bhs aumLSHed ausdluler 430 Henenaeriigid
glLfBwmren semflidens GoBOSTsTTILLL SI.

3. &) 60 611 & 61T oM MILD BIG)I 61 6V & Bl & 61h & &)

Bl Cuuwmen  seuibGdsT  31/03/2015 GUEM]

GrreFwwItILCL &I

4, (i) SpaamiL O Leuemeniuler U euridluler

WHSLB sMDGDen Wweain MBS WTH

Uil a1’ Beiemeor.

Uifleyeseir LSS QLTSS
&I (P &60L 1960
(em.Bamiguiled) %

(pelralbe 5755.34 75.03%

ellBLIEnEIEE 1650.55 21.52%

AUSHHEHHBEG 265.21 3.45%

QLoTes LD 7671.10 100.00%

FlLlyjonons emeaudhdmbs Gousmigw (pHeSbaeiied
wpajeipaster Uflelsd BmpésGd WwWHIY, umiSule
Cxemey wmmd Gpr OGummiysefed 22.38% i
o aiengl. Ba umgHwu  fFjal  aumslufler
afapsGSILLL. PRSI F  eneuten  23.50%BE

GOBaUTHC6 2_siTengl.
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(ii) During the year, the excess of acquisition
cost over face value of securities kept under 'Held to
Maturity' category was amortized up to the date of
maturity and the amortized amount for the year
aggregates to Rs.7.51 crore (previous year Rs.6.12
crore). As per Reserve Bank of India guidelines, the
said amount has been reflected as a deduction in
Schedule 13 — Interest Earned, under item II —

'Income on Investments'.

(iii) Interest received on sale of securities for
Rs.677.66 crore (previous year Rs.185.87 crore) and
interest paid on purchase of securities Rs.700.28
crore (previous year Rs.202.71 crore) have been
netted and shown under the head 'Income on

Investments'.

(iv) There was sale of Central Government
securities out of "Held to Maturity' category totally
for Rs.401.26 crore (face value Rs.420.00 crore) and
profit booked was Rs.12.45 crore during the year

(previous year—Nil)

(v) There was no shifting of securities during

the year.

(i) BLLUI QLEwT960 (PSTaSBTET (LPHeSBBeMaT,

ey  wIIBEG mBHO OFTME  CHTHHSHI
amBAUIGSSD UL FSHD  SeleuTBl  SaBHOTH
Qarhés@GUuULL Ui  (PPHTeBETew  GUM]

apLBCHTHIL uAFLLLG  BeluBLSHBETEOT  LIGHILD
GFeveysd aaslLGEBE. BHLFTMmSD
BeuaumLd 05.7.51 Gamy (BLHS auBLLD @5.6.12 Gamg)

B6NThE 60

us  fajel  amsuls afsm @salanny  Bbs
OpTens®, i Leuenemt 1360 Ul eunBUTled GU(HLOTEID

aaip  goeoudlar &Y Iled  smamriu@
wesSGasallaiGufled  ampLIMS SO S5 8
ST LIUGS B

(iil) wseSbxer 6lBp aumsuled GLBULILL
aly .677.66 Gamg (QFeamp Suewid 5.185.87 Gamg)
B WwHeSbdeT aMBRSILLL aumsuisd CFmisHsL
angwiren ¢5.700.28 Gamouj 6 (QFap Suemi® @h.202.71
Gamg) CrIGauILiILL B, (wHeSBaefan sumaurul Liflaled

ST LU BeiTengl.

(V) el Qops wWHHW  SFThE
(woHeSB&eir 540126 CargdE elBUMOITEIH (PD
waII 15.420.00 Czmg). BFed eoTUID ¢h.12.45 GBMUITS
udwiu’ Gerengl (CFaB SLERG @h.Se0anev)

(V) Bbs aueinged (peeSpseie WIBBD GHIb
BeLene60.
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5. Additional disclosures Fa@geons oeuefiliLBss Geuewmmuwiene

A. Capital epeosesid

Items

Current Year L QLD

Previous Year a5 aupLd

Basel Il

Basel Il

Basel Il

Basel Il

Common Equity Tier | capital ratio (%)
epeogenT Setrevllemmey efdBsHID
Tier | capital (%)

13.30

13.30

13.29

13.29

15.10

15.10

14.96

14.96

apeogent Settetllenme) sABSD — APSEOST
CLPEVSEOTS 6D  5600TSHB6160BSH D]

Tier Il Capital (%)

epeosent Seitefledmey 6fldB5ID- RIeTITLTDST
CLPEOSVHEWS H600THE6160BS S|

Total Capital Ratio (CRAR%)

0.61

13.91

0.60 0.63

13.89 156.73

0.63

15.59

(ewonss settesllemmey 6fBsIiD)

Percentage of the shareholding of the
Government of India in public sector
banks

Amount of equity capital raised

NA

Amount of Additional Tier 1 capital
raised of which

PNCPS:

PDI:

Amount of Tier 2 capital raised,;

Of which

Debt capital instrument:

Preference Share Capital Instruments:
[Perpetual Cumulative Preference

Shares/ Redeemable Non-Cumulative
Preference Shares/ Redeemable Nil
Cumulative Preference Shares]

Nil

Nil

NA

Nil

Nil

Nil

B. i. Investments wse@Gser

(Rs. In crore)

eb.Cameseriied

Items
AUDHHEIT

Current Year
BLLIL| 6IJBLLD

Previous Year
SLIHS 6UJHLLD

(1) Value of Investments
apsed®merflesr By
(i) Gross Value of Investments
apseSBaeflelr QDNSs B
(a) In India @mBsuwnsfled

(b) Outside India, aeuafiBn®Gserfieo
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
G UWIDTETSBNHTET RGISHSHBHET
(a) In India &mBBwnefileo
(b) Outside India, eenefilrGserfieo
Net Value of Investments
apssSGoaflesr wonss WS
(a) In India @mBsuwinefleo

(b) Outside India. asuefiBrGsetieo

(iii)

(2) Movement of provisions held towards

depreciation on investments.

WPpSGmeflen CaulionensShans ahUGSSILLL @5i6E1e60 DIHDID

(i) Opening balance spmbu @iy

(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year

Beueurretor®B RGIHS

. B O\FwwLULL S).
(i)

provisions during the year

Beuainei® saBsons @REIHSEE SoUS a@HSIULLE)

(iv) Closing balance ams$ @iy

Less: Write-off/ write-back of excess

7687 .64
Nil

16.54

Nil

7671.10
Nil

9.48
15.03
7.97

16.54

6781.38
Nil

9.48

Nil

6771.90
Nil

9.06
517
4.75

9.48
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ii. Repo Transactions (In face value terms) :
CUGSAINS LISIDNSESID (pSSBEmeT SHbL auMmudsasneTend 2 s58nangsg 65

efiHh&id pewm (Rs. In crore) em.Gameseficd
Minimum | Maximum | Daily Average [Outstanding
outstandin| outstandin| outstanding as on
gduring | gduring |duringthe year yiren 34,
the year | the year @mﬁn@"g’ﬁw q 12015
. upmreflesr soms

GOIES e | Jdaurs Slemey Begiemeu Sletin Begieme

Securities sold under

repos

1. Government 11.00 339.00 73.11 -

Securities

2. Corporate Debt

Secuirities

Securities sold under

MSF

1.Govt. Securities 5.00 210.00 5.37 -

2.Corporate Debt

Securities purchased

under reverse repos

1. Government 5.00 650.00 39.78 -

Securities

2. Corporate Debt

Securities

iii. Non-SLR Investment Portfolio
arLiyfiounns eefided Lemmonsassapw wHeSGaeT Sidengme. Steubon eeiefuiLaisefir
SiplIienLUT6d SPSSHETLUITDI HGDIDBGIETE6.
a) Issuer composition of Non SLR investments

(Rs. in crore) ep.Gamesetied

No.| Issuer |Amount Ing_ter;t of lg(et:e:vf’ of EJ(tentt dof Extent of
i o . rivate ‘Unrated’ [‘Unlisted’
e | Qe g;:f»i Placement | o e | Securities |Securities
gafiluiL. gpenpulen S@HuneT i) LI 1gwiedled
siifCurassS60 SIGEIHGS 1Biewrufs e SLib
Siarey ; LILIT, (AN
GNHSHE6N Semel BT SHenel
(1) (2) (3) (4) () (6) (7)
(i) |PSUs 32.01 10.00 0.00 0.00 0.11
OLINGISSIDD
IBmIsuevITRISET
(ii)|Fls 538.39 32501 |  0.00 000 | 0.00
B8 Boieueumuser
(iii)|Banks 357.04| 86.00 5.00 0.00 0.00
aumids6iT
(iv)[Private Comorate|  72.45 | 19.75 0.00 0.00 0.00
munma»g) c9|8)90|'|"5
se\LessT
(v)|Subsidiaries/ Joint 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Venture
Svam Brieeise
saL® BrisucwissT
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(vi)Others (RIDH  46.10 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
MF & Others
LDDDEmEY
(vii)Provision

held towards| - (16 54)| .00 0.00 000 | 0.00
depreciation

CaunengSiamen
881650

Total 1029.45 440.76 5.00 0.00 0.11
The amounts reported under columns 4, 5, 6, and 7 need not be mutually
exclusive.

4,56 DOHOID 7aug SLLMEGeTOD 2 6o OFTEmEseT Qeimied GUIIILILLLE, eenemueabiiied
2| GHILLSDOILING SHSSTS

(Rs. in crore) em.Gameserfled

31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Shares / unigseir 23.91 7.78
Debentures and Bonds / aLetrugdpmisei 704.40 529.24
Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures / @soemr wiyy smivyBneismsst 0.00 0.00
Others (COD+CP+NABARD+MF) / wibmeme 301.14 267.72
Total / ewngsid 1029.45 804.74

b) Non performing Non-SLR investments

suBeIMLl FULNG SFLLLpTaIDTS elefidsd Lemmbnsssianioul WpSeO@H:6T

Siedeonzeme (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars / eflugruser Amount / ages
Opening balance — net of provisions / Symbu @iy 1
Additions during the year / sa@seons Gaimpbgemey Nil
Reductions during the above period/ 965 smgg siaaiuL Campusna Nil
Closing balance / gnig gmiy 1
Total provisions held / owrss pgiE&6s6T 3,79,999

C. Derivatives

The Bank has entered into four forward contracts aggregating Rs.1.67 Crore
under FCNR deposit plus scheme.
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D. Asset Quality
oEnggisseflen S
i.a. Non-Performing Asset

UEBLDTENLD FLLNG C\FNSZIGEH6I (Rs. in Crore) em.Gsmeseisd
Items Current | Previous

Year Year

(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.67 1.22

Bar sLeisefien eumwnend rLLNG Bap sLeisefisr didsn 0
(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)

6UBLDNEVID FLLMG 6WDNSS SLehsefled LDMbDMmIS6T

(a) Opening balance 428.02 214.45
Sbobu Sply

(b) Additions during the year 463.69 684.29
855 aumpLsdeo saBseons Gaibame

(c) Reductions during the year 573.03 470.72
855 aumLE S SPGSILLLEDE

(d) Closing balance 318.68 428.02
8nsd 8ouy

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs

QUEHLDIENID FLLNS [Ba) SLeiseflsd DmbphIseT

(a) Opening balance 209.75* | 106.76*
SpIbL Ly

(b) Additions during the year 278.61 313.09
85 eSS0 saBgeons CaFimhsmey

(c) Reductions during the year 352.83 210.10
865 aumLES0 SGSELILLLED6 :

(d) Closing balance 135.53* | 209.75*
8od oLy

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs
(excluding provisions on standard assets)
eumLDNEND ALLNG Ba) SLesehesTan QFibS0HaM0 IbHDHsT
( sywnen sLchaEpasTe RFEEGasT S GsiaaliLLsHdame )

(a) Opening balance 218.27 107.37
Spmbu Sl -
(b) Provisions made during the year 185.08 371.20

8b5 eumLD OFIWLILLL RESEGSH6T
(c) Write-off/ write-back of excess provisions 220.20 260.30
sememLe eFLWiLLLE / sa@geonsn 56E6 SHil aBEsLLLLE
(d) Closing balance 183.15 218.27
8ns 8niy

*Amount received includes claim received from ECGC / DICGC / CGTMSE of
Rs.1.25 Crore (Previous year Rs.0.43 Crore) and amount held in sundries
account in respect of Non Performing AccountsRs.5.32 crores.

i.b. Non- performing Loan Provisioning coverage Ratio is 74.74%
QUHLNETD FULNG SLesenbaner eass@aaisr didshd 74.74%
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ii. Movement of NPAs

GU(BLDTENILD RLLMTS SLebiamerfled LOMDDMEIsT (Rs. in Crore) em.Gamgseried

. Amount Amount
Pa;(]lcul.ars ason ason
Hoe 31.03.2015 | 31.03.2014
Gross NPAs as on 1.04.2014 (Opening Balance) 428.02 214.45
O\DNGE EUEHLOTEUD FLLNE SLeiseT (Spmbu SmL)
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 463.69 684.29
855 aupLESD Fabseons Caibseme
Sub-total (A) 891.71 898.74
QIWDMSFLD
Less:- aflgseo
(i) Upgradations GuibLi@gglirLg 241.74 270.42
(i) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from upgraded | 276.19 170.72
accounts)
agoneng EoOUGSHILLL semsgaaieimhsl augeneng S6in
(iii) Technical/Prudential write-offs 55.10 29.58
SETEBLIQ OVRLWLILILL S
(iii) Write-offs . - -
SOMEhLIQ O\FIWLILILLE)
Sub-total (B) cwnggid 573.03 470.72
Gross NPAs as on 31.03.2015 (closing balance) (A-B) 318.68 428.02
6\DNGS QUHLDMEND FLLTE sLeiae (Smid Smu) |

Stock of Technical write-offs and the recoveries made thereon:
(Rs.in crore)

Particulars Current year | Previous year
Opening balance of Technical/Prudential written- 176.46 157.72

off accounts as on 01.04.2014 .

Add: Technical/Prudential write-offs during the 55.10 29.58
year

Sub-total (A) 231.56 187.30
Less: Recoveries made from previously 18.67 10.84
technical/ prudential written-off accounts during

the year

Closing balance as on 31.03.2015 212.89 176.46
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(iif) Sector-wise NPAs

(s1empeumfiwiresr QUBLDTEND FLLTS SHL6TSH6T)

(Rs. in Crore)

Sl. Sector* Current year (Fy 2014-15) Previous year (Fy 2013-14)
No. Outstanding | Gross | Percentage | Outstanding | Gross | Percentage
Total NPAs of Gross Total NPAs of Gross
Advances NPAs to Advances NPAs to
Total Total
Advances Advances
in that in that
sector sector
A | Priority
Sector
1 |Agriculureand | o407 68| 4563 088| 206172 1438 0.48
allied activities ' ' ' ' ' '
2| Industry 3348.44 | 111.26 3.32 2656.00 |  62.90 236
2a | Of which;
Textile 114729 | 12.00 1.04 931.70 9.25 0.99
3 | Services 304645 41.25 1.35 2192.15 39.87 1.81
4 | Personal loans 1060.76 [  33.31 3.14 971.15 24.48 2.52
Sub-total (A) 0563.33 [ 204.45 2.31 8781.11 141.63 1.61
B | Non Priority
Sector
1 | Agriculture and
allied activities 0 0 0 0 0 0
2 | Industry 4163.99 | 3898 0.93 342640 | 212.46 6.20
2a | Of which;
Textile 1272.59 0 0 1141.71 29.79 2.60
3 | Services 3554.12| 58.88 1.65 2928.25 51.42 1.75
4 | Personal loans 1973.55| 16.37 0.82 1937.37 22.50 1.16
5 | Food Credit 289.51 0 0 292.56 0 0
Sub-total (B) 9981.17 | 114.23 117 8584.58 |  286.39 3.45
Total (A+B) 19544.50 | 318.68 1.65 17365.69 | 428.02 2.50

(iv) Concentration of NPAs

QBTG FULTS Bar sSLemafled NBHULE SEUESHOT

(Rs in Crore) em.Camseafld

As on 31.03.2015

As on 31.03.2014

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts

BB HING SSLILE QUBLITEID FLLITS
sams@seiisn Jierey

96.42

202.34
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Vi. Details of financial assets sold to Securitization / Reconstruction
Company for Asset Reconstruction

sLeiT aummudweuisefislt Lleenu C\FTSHISHHEDET SL6IT S\HTEnHUTEHE 6Ug:6d E1FUILILD
ounGLB ahu@ssiuLL NFSCWs JemwlLsHe sAhsULrL O\FTsgissseT efleugid

ltem 2014-15| 2013-14
(i) No. of accounts Nil Nil
semisGsefler eenmenfigons
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of Nil Nil
accounts sold to SC/RC

sLelr O\grensulenen g OFLLD OUTHLG

gpu@ssliLLL TgsCws Jlemblsd sfihm

semsGsefsh Qwngs wHi ( SgESGssT Briseons )
(iif) Aggregate consideration

Quonss 0SS Nil Nil
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect
of accounts transferred in earlier years Nil Nil
WhMSI aubLEIGeTe0 DTHDUILLL Semésaieombs e
IS0
(v) Aggregate gain/loss over net book value. Nil Nil

Bar Usss ST FlQw WSS Seomud / [BeipLID

vii. Details of non performing financial assets purchased/sold
SUIHLDNEBID RLLNG SL6IT C\ENSHSISHHmeT auMhiGaugy/fibug Lubhw efugrussit
a. Details of non performing financial assets purchased:

QUIHLDNEIND RFLLIG SHLETT CWEFNSgihsener eunmadwl eflugrhiger (Rs. in crore) es.Gamesefie

Particulars 2014-15 2013-14
1.a) No of accounts purchased during the year Nil Nil
BeuadLE S0 ambuw sausGsefler eeurenilghons
b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
Beyemauuied 2_6Ter WSS LSLIL
2.a) Of these number of accounts restructured Nil Nil

during the year

BeuaumLEHe0 WIDHN SEDDSSHLILLL SesGHalen eeauenfsams
b) Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil

Bayieweauuied 2 et OIDNSH DSLILY

b. Details of non performing financial assets sold :
QUIBLDNENID RLLNG &L 6\FNggissemer efihp eflugmussit (Rs. in crore) emp.Gamesefied

Particulars 2014-15| 2013-14
1. No of accounts sold Nil Nil
SeuaumLsH b sens@seflesn eetrenfisana
2. Aggregate outstanding Nil Nil
Beyemeauuileo 2 siterr GWDNGS LDSHLILY
3. Aggregate consideration received Nil Nil
ewupUuLL. [Begiemeuuied 2 sitem QIDNSg LI
viii.. Provisions on Standard Asset
SUwner sLeiseT s @HIHS® (Rs. in crore) em.Gsmeserfieb
Item As at As at
aUeDE 31.03.15| 31.03.14
Provisions towards Standard Assets 96.14 75.22
SULDTEST HLEIIHEHSHHTN R5IHED
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ix. Floating Provisions
OLINGILILIEHLIITET QSIHEBHET

(Rs. in crore) em.Gameaserfied

Current year | Previous Year
BLL L@ | phewsu Syeu®
Opening balance of floating provisions 23.58 22.58
SungliuepLwnes QSISSGsefiesr BpuibL SabLiL
The quantum of floating provisions made during the year 2.34 1.00
SeuaumLESO OFILOILEL aUTGLILLWNET F5sSGaaflen Dlerey
Amount of draw down made during the year 0.00 0.00
SeumLESH DleuaMDIen RHIGHSELIH BMHE TGSSULLL C\STNsS:
Closing balance 25.92 23.58
8ns 8oy

E. Draw Down from Reserves

fgi6SGaallsd SmbH OUDLILILLED6

The bank has not made any draw down from the reserves during the year (previous

year Nil).

BLUL Spetongsd ekl @FsE0safle SMmbE OSTms aged LML
F. Business Ratios

auduistr Ssweonsasens LDFTHONID sfwmuny efldsmiser

(Rs. in crore) em.Gameserfied

Items Currentyear |Previous Year
BLUY SpeB | e b
(i) Interest Income as a percentage to Working 10.28 % 10.73 %
Funds
allp eumLNESSHGID BLUY BBs@D e sten efidsb
(i) Non-interest income as a percentage to o
Working Funds 1.06% 0.87%
Séiary amsun lieoons ambrassheD by Bhsen e.erer ddsw
(iii) Operating Profit as a percentage to Working 2.20% 2.43%
Funds
eflunumy pLAIEESET epeod RipL BemiBSHeD BLIL BéeD e-sien eidsD
(iv) Return on Assets@ 1.38% 1.19%
LTS SHGD eenss wHIDGD 2een eidsd @
(v) Business (Deposits plus advances) per 1083.85| 1074.71
employee # (Rs. in lakhs)
eoaul B WHMID SLeNEHET SieienLuled enfluiirserfiesr
seofipur eflwmunmb # ( ob.BeoL.5&56b )
(vi) Profit per employee (Rs. in lakhs) 9.21 8.35
eamflwirseficlr geofipun eomubd ( eb. BeoLssHe0 )

@ ‘'Return on Assets is with reference to average working funds (i.e. total of

assets excluding accumulated losses, if any).

@ eumLONeTSSHGD &TSE WSNADSD 2 eten efiidsd synefl BLOLY BHamws
@unss 61snSEl WS> FarLliL@erer BeigLrkssT TCIEID BEHESTO Slewey Brumeons)

FmibSmES0-

# For the purpose of computation of business per employee (deposits plus

advances) inter bank deposits are excluded.

# eemfuiisefieit seofipuiT efwmunmb SeIGALILEGLD OLNIRE SURISSHEHSSLGUILITET eDeuLiL|
BS seiiissuuLGsitengl.
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G. Asset Liability Management
O\ENSGIGHH6ET HMID OLIMMILILISET GLDEOMERTEDLD

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities:

(Rs. in crore) ep.Gameaetied

D it Advances| Investments| Borrowings | Foreign Curency assels | Forig Cumeey s
CPOSI | s | apmeSGaer | oummhdu | Sipfu Geanad | S esra
ewalBs | g s sLettaeT |  Omgess | umpusd
1 day 68.03 | 354.74 38.65 0.00 27.57 23.76
SEBST
2 to 7 days 311.77| 307.80 299.86 0.00 31.87 0.06
2 PO 7 [BILSET CueD]
8 to 14 days 612.90| 351.29 124.74 0.00 2.05 0.00
8 (PS> 14 HNLGET CUEDY
15 to 28 days 288.50| 739.15 239.95 0.00 7.32 0.26
15 (ps6d 28 IHIL&6T QueD]
29 days to 3 monthg 2924 .49 1276.32] 883.97 0.00 10.65 1.33
29 psed 3 WDNFEIGET CUEDY ‘
Over 3 months and | 2341.74| 1229.49, 490.06 0.00 5.7 3.74
up to 6 months
3 IDNFmiGEHeES GLD6d
6 LDNGMHISHET eueD
Over 6 months and | 6602.10] 1806.12] 1549.43 | 20.38 3.16 5.49
up to 1 year
6 WNBhIGEHEG G
1 QLD 6uemT
Over 1yearand up| 9693.75 9864.10; 3034.18 | 20.00 0.00 15.61
to 3 years
1 uBLESHG GLosd
3 WBLIEIEET Guen]
Over 3yearsand ug 1753.04] 1809.72| 484.79 0.00 2.85 15.53
to 5 years
3 aumpLEdhe Ged
5 GUBLIRISST 6uewmT
Over 5 years 1053.55| 1597.21| 52548 0.00 1.95 0.00
5 QUBLIAGEBESE B
TOTAL 25649.87 19335.94 7671.11 40.38 93.13 65.78
QUDNEID

The above data has been compiled on the basis of guidelines of RBI and certain
assumptions made by the management have been relied upon by the auditors.

Gupaeni. gaeueoset LM Metey eurbiBulielr auflam @Gaelletr Lguib, Biansgden Heo
Sionemaseflen Ligud swnfdalLL BeTeng).
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H. Lending to Sensitive Sector
LUTSiienl 21 66T AQIMIIGHEHEaIN SDDEHEBHHICT HLEOTHOT
i. Exposure to Real Estate Sector |
SIOFUT OFISEGHNET B5T0r AUNNTS HODSS QUQEISIIL. L6

Rs.in Crore
Category Current Year| Previous Year
Mifle&6ir Exposure ‘Exposure
BLLY SbewiB | ApBems Jher®
eeuefluun® Qeauefluun®

I) Direct exposure
(a) Residential Mortgages —

Lending fully secured by Mortgages on residential 1483.32 1336.54
properties that are or will be occupied by the
borrower or that is rented

SuimiIssT B5TeN  SHLelEGeT — SL6T  eunmGLIeuflelr
QEMBs 2 LGWNESSDHSNS DI CUTLEDSHSHTS -6iTeT
SQUABLILIBEDET SLLDTETILDNG:E 6)STETuTL G-

of which

Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in 0933.91 852.76
priority sector advances

(b) Commercial Real Estate — cuewfls euemmaruser 241.59 183.87

Lending fully secured by mortgages on commercial
real estates (office buildings, retail space, multi-
purpose commercial ~ premises, multi-family
residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels,
land acquisition, development and construction,
etc.). Exposure included non-fund based (NFB)
limits also; '

(c) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities
(MBS) and other securitised exposures —

C\FNSGIHSH6IT gmbemsd — HMLESLD suemsuileonent

pzeSGaei
a. Residential, Nil Nil
). GlUNBLILSHET
b. Commercial Real Estate. | Nil Nil

9p). cuenlla eueTaMmISET
) Indirect Exposure \oepmdp&LONs: GULDMAIGLILIL'L 66U 8.03 11.96

Fund based and non-fund based  exposures on
National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance
Companies (HFCs).

LGOI GOITLIT @60I0NS BI606085] LIGHOI I (BEITLIT
Sicoeons alamsulico CHAL AlG aFd emid whHmIh
i GHHELT QFd BHQGTHSEDEHES QIIBIHIIL DT
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il. Exposure to Capital Market

CLPEOSETT FHWG FOUBSLLILL HEDDEES 6UDMISLILILL SHLESTSHET (Rs. in crore) ep.Gameserfied

Particulars

Stimescit Current Year | Previous Year

Bl S | @bmsls e

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible
bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity- 43.95 15.95
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not ’ '
exclusively invested in corporate debt;

(i) advances against shares/bonds/ debentures or
other securities or on clean basis to individuals for 3.42 4.05
investment in shares (including
IPOs/ESOPs),convertible  bonds, convertible
debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds;

(iii) advances for any other purposes where 0.00 0.00
shares or convertible bonds or convertible
debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds are taken as primary security;

(iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent 52.33 120.13
secured by the collateral security of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the
primary security other than shares/convertible
bonds/convertible debentures/units of equity
oriented mutual funds “does not fully cover the
advances;

(v) secured and ‘unsecured advances to 23.48 29.35
stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of
stockbrokers and market makers;

(vi) loans sanctioned to corporate against the Nil Nil
security of shares / bonds/debentures or other
securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter’s
contribution to the equity of new companies in
anticipation of raising resources;

(vii) bridge loans to companies against expected
equity flows/issues;

(viii) underwriting commitments taken up by the Nil Nil
banks in respect of primary issue of shares or
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or
units of equity oriented mutual funds; Nil Nil
(ix) financing to stockbrokers for margin trading;

(x) all exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both Nil Nil
registered and unregistered)

Total Exposure to Capital Market 123.18 168.78

Nil Nil
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iii. Risk Category wise Country Exposure

(Rs. in crore) emp.Gamesefled

Risk Exposure | Provision held| Exposure (net)| Provision
Category (net) as at | as at March 31, as at March held as at
@Liun@sefesr | March 31, | 2015 31, 2014 March 31,
6UDS 2015 2014
miE 31, 2015 | mig 31, 2015 | wmiE 31, 201460 | bmig 31, 201460
Bar Beymasd| @SIH6SG Ber Beyeveisst | @56E0
Insignificant 291.19 Nil 151.46 Nil
(G NINGI
auesudled
DIEDEOITLDED
Low risk 121.70 Nil 99.49 Nil
&ODHS
Moderately 13.09 Nil 64.08 Nil
ulgLomeot
High risk 0.00 Nil 0.00 Nil
DifsLbmest
Very high risk 0.00 Nil 0.00 Nil
& SiBsiomest
Restricted 0.00 Nil 0.00 Nil
SEDL OFLIWILILILL.
Off-credit 0.00 Nil 0.00 Nil
asLs&[ @gg',s
MEUSSLILILL.
Total 425.98 Nil 315.03 Nil
6UDNGSLD

As the country-wise net funded exposure does not exceed 1% of the Bank’s total
assets for any country, no provision is required for the risk involved. -

sefiucL aps HGLauD Gobhaststenir asnliasSe apeob SibBwE Gseomeucufl
el ardulist OLTSs AsTss SIS B FEHs5SSGD GMDaINS BmBHS
SNIaISSNE0 REIHSGHET QNI 6flcoemed

a) Details of single borrower limit in excess of the prudenticel exposure limits

of RBI : Nil
SllLIL QEHAIGSHE IONH BB GWLSHHES aEOTUNIGSEILLL SieTayé@ GLed eurhldimed
QUPRISLILCL SL6T efLPRISST - B60me0

b) Details of Group borrower limit exceeded by the bank: Nil
GLLESNG ADIUNSSILLL HET6i6ES G AIHBLINED QUPBISILLL QDIGSEELET Sieney: @60emeo

I. Miscellaneous wbmeme
i Amount of Provisions made for Income-tax and Wealth tax during the

year; _
&5 aELsshe aumoreiafl whpid aendgeufisenaater R1550
(Rs. in crore) ep.Gameserisd

Current year | Previous year
BLOLY Spe0iB| WPBEwSW Sheui(®

181.07 79.07

Provision for Income Tax & Wealth Tax
auneaul & enss aflsanssner @HISE0
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ii. Penalties imposed on the Bank by RBI : RBI has imposed a penalty towards
Mutilated and FICN notes amounting to Rs.41,150/- during the year 2014-15 (Previous
year “Nil”)

iil. umpg Marmey aurkIBwmed Seuaunetonesd SPHS CHMBHEBHSHNS €5.41,150 DLITSD efHsaiLG.

iii. Special reserve: As per section 36(1) (viii) of . T.Act 1961, the bank has created a

special reserve of Rs.17.50 Crore during the year 2014-15.
AL} @H1556: eupreeuflFsiLb 1961, 19fley 36 (1) (Viii) eirg ek 2014-15 eugpLE S0
eb.17.50 Game fAmiiy REHIHEG \FWISisTerngl.

iv. Break up of ‘Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head
Expenditure in Profit and Loss Account
e\FeveflevmhigelT eTedTD SeweoL el Ep 6oL HeigL & Hevarsded SMLLUILIL BeiTen @G5I6SGSHET LDHMILD

aBILINONG 615606 CUENWSHSHEHITEN CHlLINTHIGET (Rs. in crore) em.Gameseried

Current Year Previous Year

Depreciation on Investment - 4.34
wWseS@Baeflesr LoBSNpLILY

Diminution on Investment 0.10 1.99
wseS@Eseflesr WHINDEHSLD
Provision towards NPA 17.76 139.73
QUIHEUMUI FULMS SHLEDISHSTET 5IHEBHET

Provision towards Standard Asset 20.92 10.68
SULDNET SLEDISHTETT RBISEBH6IT

Floating provision for Advances 2.34 1.00
SLETHEBSHSITET ELITGHeUTeNT DHI55B

Provision made for Taxation 181.07 79.07
auflsEpssmer Q51656

Deferred Tax (18.12) 74.67
seiterfl emeussLILILG6iTeT euiflger

Provision for unhedged Foreign currency 2.03 -—
exposure

RUUBSID OFIWLLTS 6euefibm G LewigShanest

R5I5EB

Others :Diminution in fair value - Restructured 21.86 0.79

Advances

850 RHSHEEHET WOHMID aBiungnsg E1Feoeyseit

BbS5ES DeowsEsILLL SLessefledr DHIMPLILY

Total 227.96 312.27

WDNESLD

v. Details of complaints / unimplemented awards of Banking Ombudsman
LamiseT HmId Usnismer eflsmiagh anids Siamamemnub euprid OeweTSEILLTS SiissT

A. customer complaints * emgssnawnetfiss Lamissir
Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year -

8bS aumbL SHIDLSSHD (pleuImbed BHHES Lsmsefle ereurevnfisans
Number of complaints received during the year 236
858 UBLSSD aIbs Lsisellen aememiisame

Number of complaints redressed during the year 236
Br5 aumpLsSw SiaslLrL Lsisefsr eemenfidams
Number of complaints pending at the end of the year -
* = including ATM compliants

855 eumL (pigsfled (PIRWIMDD SEHS Lsiserlen erctreueilsens

KR R
b7
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B. Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman
yarnigenenr sflgmiissb euhids Sieunepennub Deflgs Siiyser

Number of Unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year --
8% L pIbLSHD QFweonssILLTE Siisefel eeuemiisame
Number of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year -
8mbs eumL L arkds Sianeennub Hefgs Siiysefsn acmenfaams A
Number of awards implemented during the year --

855 amLEH0 OFweNSSIULTES Sl sefe eeamemniisans
Number of unimplemented awards pending at the end of the year --
855 aupL SniPule aFwensaILLTs Silsefler eeomemiisams

vi. Letter of Comfort disclosure (Rs. In crore)
Letter of comfort issued in earlier years and outstanding 1256.03
as on 01.04.2014
Add: Letter of comfort issued during the year 4438.67
Less: Letter of comfort expired during the year 4299.40
Letter of comfort outstanding as on 31.03.2015 1395.30

vii. The details of fees / remuneration received during the year in respect of
Bancassurance business undertaken.

ardssmiie shummsde eupiLL abwrend upPw efugruset (RS.in Lakhs) eb.eocsrisefied

Commission on Bancassurance 31-03-2015 31-03-2014

anudd sminiiger S SDLES SHLLERMIGET

Non — Life Insurance — Net of Service Tax 319.96 249.21

smniG @pwer smuie sein

Mutual Fund Products 0.00 0.00

ugeour B SrLmiseT

Life Insurance — Net of Service Tax - 95.78 125.36

Spuweir MG

viii. Concentration of Deposits _ .

omalBduie PsLLs seusGseien ey (Rs.in Crore) em.Cameserfisd
31-03-2015 31-03-2014

Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 3884.82 3419.01

SBBLLE (PS5O BBLIGI CUTRSEDSWITETITEET

Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest 15.10% 15.09%

depositors to Total Deposits of the bank

SFHLLE PS5O BBUS aImesensinemigafiiecs evaubs
agtevsulsn ss6isb OWNEs emalibd Ot

ix. Concentration of Advances
sLetizafledo el semeEGseieT Jleney (Rs. in crore) em.Gameserfled

31-03-2015 | 31-03-2014

Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2596.74 2377.30
SiBaLrs (psed BmUg sLemeafisefish OLONSS SL6T E\FMTNS

Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to 13.28% 13.69%
Total Advances of the bank

SifsuLs Wpoed BuUg sLemelsefeir sLsOSTEDSUTSHT
&56ligD OWDNES SL6MT QFTewsuiled
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x. Concentration of Exposures
SBsLLEF DieipBwedlssEUuL sLeTserfer DHerey (Rs. in crore) emp.Gameserfied

31-03-2015 | 31-03-2014

Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers/customers 3489.46 319043

DEHULE (PS5O SHLS CUTSHESHINETTHEOHES linSuefibsiLiL
&L65TEH6T

Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest 13.53% 11.51%
borrowers/customers to Total Exposure of the bank on
borrowers/customers

QUMPGEDSWINETITSEHSS® DienipdweflssuurL sLeirserfiesr
sgelldsld 6Wnss DigpduefissiurL. sLeTsefled

xi. Off-balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

Name of the SPV sponsored

Domestic Overseas

31-03-2015| 31-03-2014 | 31-03-2015 31-03-2014

NiL NIL NIL NIL

xii. Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue
OeuefliBTL® CVFNSHIHSH6IT, QUIPLDNUID SINE SHLEGTHEIT DHOMID CUIHLDTEUILD

Particulars Amount (Rupees in Crore)
eflleunTiIZHeiT

31-03-2015 31-03-2014
Total Assets Nii Nil

6WDNGS C\FNSSHISHHET

Total NPAs Nii Nil

6UBLDITEVILD SOME HLEHTH6IT

Total Revenue Nil Nil
WDMSs GUIHLDITEUTLD

6. Disclosure Requirements as per Accounting Standards where RBI has issued
guidelines in respect of disclosure items for Notes on Accounts:

6. umgg Marey aurhifuled uEILMIGSILILL QABUIIPEDDHEDHHESG Bevomhkis 6eueflufiLiii
GoU6TITIQUI HEMTSHGLPEDDSHSMHILILIS6T

6.1. There were no material prior period Income /Expenditure requiring disclosure as
per AS 5. ‘

6.1 semisG GBPlpsmn wihpmseafen £ apssaul wpafwioner sLHS abLESSHS&HW
QUBLDIENTLD / 6\F6vefleuTThigmsT GIgIa|D B606MED

6.2. The heads of income recognized on cash basis are neither material enough nor
do they require disclosure under AS 9 on Revenue Recognition.

6.2 seweEGSwedn 9. aumami Sndsfiinier Sp aeuefluliin. Geustomew &S
SiglinenLuiled SmuSsfssiuL Geuemmneul PSS UIHLNENID 6IHIQID S606meD.

6.3 The company has changed the method of providing depreciation from 1st April
2014 as required by the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly depreciation is provided
in accordance with Schedule Il thereof for the current year as against the rates
specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 adopted in the previous year.
As a result, depreciation for the current year is higher by Rs 499.62 lakhs.

6.3 albeeflssr srLib 20136 L CHUIDTESSDHTEN QGIESML SaMESBL WmD AHOUILLGEToTZ.
SicLeuenent lled GPIUILOULGerren efidshisefisimie Cauonemnd Geueunewmsd sewaSLLILGSDE. SFemed
GauIDNENTLD [HLLILIMERNEED ¢5.499.62 SOLFID 2 WIHGIETENg).

51
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6.4 Accounting Standard -15 : Employee Benefits

201415 2013-14 201213 201112 2010-11
Gratuity | Pension | Gratuity | Pension | Gratuity | Pension | Gratuity | Pension | Gratuity | Pension

(i) Principal
actuarial
assumption
used

Discount Rate 775% | 7.75% | 0.00% | 9.00% | 8.00% | 8.00% | 8.00% | 8.00% | 8.00% | 8.00%

0 0, 0, 10,

ﬁf‘;::;;ft‘s"" on | 915% | 7.30% | 9.05% | 680% | gu50 | 6.00% | 040% | 5.00% | 940% | 450%
Salary Escalation | 6.50% | 6.50% | 7.00% | 7.00% | 6.00% | 6.00% | 450% | 450% | 450% | 4.50%

(ii) Change in
Benefit

Obligation:
Liability at the | 10067.00 | 31571.00 | 9221.00 | 28004.00
beginning of the 8027.84 | 23856.23 | 6430.67 | 18678.67 | 5047.56 | 13367.28
year
Interest Cost 73400 | 2256.00 | 698.76 | 116125 | 610.80 | 1749.30 | 492.38 | 147419 | 11039 | 967.81
gg;’te"‘ Service | 727.00 | 243400 | 42166 | 203868 | ,4500 | 126800 | 32880 | 950.30 | 378.15 | 5605.43
Benefit paid 719900 | 4876.00 | 973.00 | 5041.00 | 801.00 | 4058.00 | 562.78 | 512.37 | 64140 | 253009

Actuarial (gain) / 1015.00 | 4404.00 698.68 | 5408.57
loss on obligation 037.36 | 5188.47 | 1338.77 | 326544 | 153597 | 127744

Liability at the 11344.00 | 35791.00 | 10067.10 | 31571.50
end of the year 9221.00 | 28004.00 | 8027.84 | 23856.23 | 6430.67 | 18678.67

(iii) Fair value of
Plan Assets:
Fair value of Plan | 9030.00 | 25431.00 | 9221.00 | 28004.00
Assets at the .

beginning of the
year
Expected return 858.00 2004.00 874.41 1548.84
on Plan Assets 58247 | 153272 | 33293 | 107544 | 436.05 501.32
Contributions 0.00 615.00 1037.00 [ 661.00 [ 1117.00 | 6618.00 | 1470.00 | 11470.82 | 690.05 | 4200.12
Benefit paid 1199.00 | 4876.00 973.00 5041.00 | 801.00 | 4058.00 | 562.78 512.37 641.40 | 2539.29
Actuarial Gain / 1039.00 | 6312.00 | -1129.41 258.16
(loss) on Plan 252579 | -372.72 | 33270 | -223.25 2,63 52.26
Assets
Fair value of Plan | 9728.00 | 29486.00 | 9030.00 | 25431.00
Assets at the 9221.00 | 28004.00 | 6009.31 | 24335.21 | 5101.86 | 12524.56
End of the year

6009.31 | 24284.00 | 5101.86 | 12524.57 | 4614.53 | 10310.15

(iv) Actual return
on Plan Assets:
ExpectedRetum | 858.00 | 2004.00 | 87441 | 154884 | 50547 | 153072 | 33203 | 107544 | 436.05 | 501.32
on Plan Assets
Actuarialgain/ | 1039.00 | 6312.00 | -1120.41 | 258.16
(loss) on Plan 252579 | -37272 | 33270 | 22325 | 263 | 5227
Assets
Actualretumon | 1897.00 | 8316.00 | 255 | 1807.00 | 599549 | 116000 | 023 | 85219 | 438.68 | 55359
Plan Assets

(v) Amount
recognized in
the

Balance Sheet:

Liability at the 11344.00 | 35791.00 | 10067.10 | 31571.50 9221.00 | 28004.00 | 8027.84 | 23856.23 | 6430.67 | 18678.67
end of the year

Fair value of Plan | 9728.00 | 29486.00 | 9030.00 | 25431.00

Assets at the 9221.00 | 28004.00 | 6009.31 | 24335.21 | 5101.86 | 12524.56
End of the year

Difference 1616.00 | 6305.00 | 1037.10 | 6140.50 0.00 0.00 2018.53 | -478.98 | 1328.81 | 6154.11
Amount 1616.00 | 6305.00 | 1037.10 | 6140.50

Recognized in the 0.00 0.00 2018.53 | -478.98 | 1328.81 | 6154.11
Balance Sheet

(vi) Expenses
recognized in
The Income
Statement:
Qurent Service 727.00 | 243400 | 421.66 | 203868 | 44600 | 126800 | 32880 | 950.30 | 11039 | 560543
Interest Cost 734.00 2258.00 698.76 1161.25 610.80 1749.30 492.38 1474.19 378.15 967.81
Expected Return | 858.00 | 2004.00 | 874.41 1548.84

on Plan Assets 582.47 1532.72 332,93 1075.44 436.05 501.32
Actuarial Gain or -24.00 -1908.00 | 1828.09 | 5150.41 -
Loss 1375.86
Expenses 579.00 780.00 2074.10 | 6801.50
Recognized in P -901.53 | 7045.77 | 2159.72 | 4837.74 | 1585.84 | 7297.09
&L

5561.19 | 1671.47 | 348869 | 1533.33 | 1225.18
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Details of Provisions made for Other Long term Employee Benefits :

oemfuiisefisin adiisne moossEnsaTs OFLS SFGEGHeTsT Ui
(Rs. in crore) em.Gamesefled

S.no. | Other Long Term Benefits | 2014-15 | 2013-14 {2012413 |2011-12

1 Leave Encashment 8.18 6.27 453 3.74
cAiBLIeOL LIERMDISHESS60

2 Sick Leave 3.62 3.45 4.04 1.81
Crmisster efiBLL

6.5 Accounting Standard-17: Segment Reporting
SERSESAPEOD 17: Feopaumiuner Sseueomismns
PART A: Operational Segments: asweonsssder SigliepLuied AiflsaiLiL ey
(Rs. in crore) ¢m.Camesearfled

Particulars

For the year ended 31.03.2015

For the year ended 31.03.2014

Business
Segment
eflwimungudfley
eflLgmig6T

Treasury

8656

FIDLIBSLONG

Corporate/
Wholesale
Banking
Fal'LenipliLy
61D

FIDLBSIDNG

Retail
Banking

Slsosoam]
eBwmumy
AUBASSOD

FIDLIBEIDNG

Total
ALNgsID

Treasury

a6

FIDLIGSDNS

Corporate/
Wholesale
Banking
GaLLepiiLy
61D,
srsAgon
FLDLIGSIDNG

Retail

Banking
edevsmy
efwnung

ULESHIED

FLDLIBSIDNS

Total
QgL

Revenue
QugBeIMLI

700.25

774.54

1652.63

3127.42

550.87

691.16

1680.76

2922.79

Result
(Profit(+)/Loss(
-))

wiesy

€OMLID / [B6QLID

200.56

109.84

234.36

544.76

104.34

102.43

249.09

455.86

Unallocated
income
[Expenses
LSIILLTS
6\5606G6IT

(15.71)

76.02

Operating
Profit
owngs Seomud

560.47

379.84

Income Tax &

Wealth Tax
sugpLomevteur]

181.07

79.07

Extraordinary
Profit
AUPEESHES
DA B6OTLILD

Net Profit
BEx @eonLid

379.40

300.77

Other Information
Hm sfeupmiseT

As at 31.03.2015

As at 31.03.2014

Segment assets
Uifeysenaanar emsaEseT

8138.04

8558.60

12402.80

29099.44

7383.05

6598.61

11923.73

25905.39

Unallocated assets
udpluLg GensglaasT

54.72

78.57

Total assets
QDTG ATSEHEAT

29154.16

25983.96

Segment Liabilities

feysnaansr QUNLGAT

6557 .44

7148.54

15252.78

28958.76

6096.71

5735.02

13946.47

25778.20

Unallocated liabilities
UEgULLAG OUNmLEAT

195.40

205.76

Total liabilities
fLongs OLNILLE6T

29154.16

25983.96
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Note:

1. Assets and Liabilities wherever directly related to segments have been
accordingly allocated to segments and wherever not directly related have been
allocated on the basis of segment revenue.

1. GTROEHEG 6ETSHGHERGGD, OLMILGEssEID swumny AfesGamE CHewns 6 Smiienr ks
Afeilpe semsanm 9680 aeuiLLGeng. CHIe OsMLT Beens LLsESSH ibs W abD
aumTeSSe SlgliueoLuled RFSEEE AFLwLILLGeTeng).

2. The Bank operates only in Domestic Segment.

2. amd 2 e @ UfeEGam@ WLED OFweoLGSDE.

3. Retail banking includes a sum of Rs.5.04 crore (previous year Rs.4.57 crore)
income earned from Para-Banking.

3. deveoemy eflunumy Feopulieir euELTETESD 5.5.04 Camp (WHMSW auBLD 65.4.57 Camg)
ariud FMBEsssmD aellasded Smha LDULILLE.

PART B -Geographic Segments

Particulars | Domestic @ssmigsy) | International Geefipmge) Total Ewgsw)
sfupriss 24 33 0015| 31.03.2014 [31.03.2015| 31.03.2014| 31.03.2015 | 31.03.2014
Revenue 3127 42| 292279 - - 3127 42 2022 79
Qu(BeNTLL

Assets 20154.16 | 25983.96 - - 20154.16 | 25983.96
O\FTSSIGEET

6.6 Related Party disclosures (AS-18)

The Bank has identified the following person to be the key management person as
per AS-18 on Related Party Disclosures:

SEMHSWEnD 186U wpadw Biaundaser eflud

Thiru K.B Nagendra Murthy — Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer -
01.04.2013 to 08.07.2014.

8. KB. 5resndy episd - Bians Suasht whpd semeeio Bicuns SiSsmf

A.Emoluments:

01.04.2014 to | 01.04.2013 to
08.07.2014 | 31.03.2014

Sglary' 11,40,323 37,50,000
FFLDLI6TLD
Bank Contribution to Provident Fund 1,36,839 4,50,000
aumsTe el BH66 amduisr unsefiy
PL Encashment 5,83,333 0
uesrefiBLIL
Gratuity uewfl&asmenL 7,00,000 0
Other Benefits pp FeyemaseT 55,907 1,20,747
Total 26,16,402 43,20,747
GIDITESLD

B. Others: Nil
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B s st of e
C. There is no other transaction with the Managing Director & CEO.
Thiru. H.S. Upendra Kamath — Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer —
09.07.2014 to 31.03.2015.
Bwm.H.S.2 Cubdy amps - Bieuns SWSSHT WHOID Seveoenwd Biams Sibsm
A.Emoluments:
09.07.2014 to
31.03.2015
Salary swuembd 30,59,677
Bank Confribution to Provident Fund euriusned eveull i@ amdulen Lrisefiiy 3,67,161
Other Benefits wbm seyemsse 44,363
Total owngsb 34,71,201
B. Others: Nil
C. There is no other transaction with the Managing Director & CEO.
6.7. Earnings Per Share (AS - 20)
ltems Amount Amount
CUEDEHS6IT 6\HEDS T
2014 -15 2013 -14
Net Profit after Tax available for equity share holders 37940.18 30076.69
(Rs.in Lakhs)
afl Priseons uniGsTITsERSES 2 6rer Bay Seomib
Average number of shares 2,84,454 2,84,454
sonefl UmiGsefieir ereteniisens
Basic and Diluted EPS (in Rs.) 13338 10573
RECGUTIH LRISDGSLD FLIQW SQULIEDL DHOID SEMGSLILIIL e0mLid
Nominal value per share (in Rs.) 10.00 10.00
uniGseiesr ewwetefleomen Wil

6.8. Consolidated Financial Statements (AS — 21)

6.8. saseWweD 21 : YBHSmaHS B Jiflsms

The Bank has no subsidiary and hence the need for consolidation of financial
statements does not arise.

amdsd gt Bneerd ggw Seosonssie B Jsmaamen QUmbmanss auphias Caaauuieame.
6.9. Accounting for Taxes on Income (AS - 22)

In respect of Income Tax, the assessment has been completed up to the Assessment
Year 2012-13 (Year ended 31.03.2012). Appeals are pending with appellate
authorities for various assessment years. Provision for disputed tax amounting to
Rs.34.45 Crore is not considered necessary, based on judicial decisions. The
management does not envisage any liability in respect of the disputed issues.

The bank had recorded the cumulative net Deferred Tax Liability of Rs.80.57 Crore
relating to the period up to 31.03.2014 arising out of timing difference. The amount
credited to the Profit and Loss account during the year is Rs.18.12 crore and the net
Deferred Tax Liability is Rs.62.45 crore as on March 31, 2015.
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6.9. sMHEGWD 22 : eupIeD Wanen el samassE

e aufidaamamal OUIMGSLLESD LHIIE Spem@ 2012-13 aemmleoner HIIG saiLLGsTeTg).
ue eupLEsEBEsTeN  GeddperpuiGast Beyemauled o emeng. amdse snssorer Sillsemer aHIGHHS
aups@ Beyemeauuleo © eiem augponew aufl ¢5.34.45 Camgsd @HGEE asiad Camauisome aar SHSLLGSDS.

OeueiGaumy EeusBLLESD eupnen aufl OSSN LOHNID SmbUl Oumeus Setefl eaGSSEITE EDLILL
oenggibaeten Bag iy 31.03.2014 aepy o5.80.57 Gamp SHUT samadiurGatens. BB auGL Seom
BeigLe Bemsde ¢5.18.12 Gamp SmU aupsULLLET aubwienall HLGeg wOHDD SEDUD OUnCS Seet
massdemme gpurt Bay oummtimer 31.3.2015 Cauehy @5.62.45 Gamewins 2_steng).

The major components of deferred tax assets/liabilities as at 31.03.2015 arising out of
timing difference are as follows;

31.3.2015 Gg,gmm@ SuEpLDIeTT afl s-@ag WD SEDU AupeEs Setefl aeaudsdemed gpuu_

6\eN&s WM OuMmLLsefies eflugmisst &6 UL GeTerment.
591 0D D 25 (Rs. in crore) @.G&mg&aﬂeo

Deferred tax Deferred tax
Asset Liability

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 2.81
Diewawng 6\enggsHeT Hnen GsipTeD

Particulars

Interest accrued on Investments 3.31
Ws65@a6T 3H6 QI'lp QBTG
Special Reserve :
Depreciation on Investments 59.08
Wwaed@aer 5Hne Gauipmetd
Provisions on retirement benefit etc
QuiepBusShenen SEIHEGaeT 16.33
Provision for DFV on Restructured
Standard Assets 7.69
SmIHHUEDSHILI'L SLDTEN SLegetes S|
Sopsiiphsne 956506

Others : 3.82
LDHMEDE
Deferred tax asset/liability 27.84 90.29
aumwneteufl SLGag WHOID SHDUL OLMiCImS
semefl epausFHeed FOLILL CSTEHISSET LDHDILD
QLINMICIL|E6iT

Net Deferred Tax Liability 62.45
eumponeteufl SLE6IE WHMID SHLIL OUNICIEDS
geitefl eoeuggdenmed gbuLL Bag CETSFISH6I
DD OLITMILIL|GET

6.10. Intangible assets (AS — 26)

Depreciation on software is calculated on straight line method at 33.33% in
compliance with RBI guidelines.

6.10 GEEESPDD 26- £ HUSLILGSSAPIQLITS CFTSSIHSH6T

QweieILN@eT Bsmen Gsupnend LI Meme ardulssr aufism Gaseg 33.33% 66 CHIGMSES
wepulieo serTeSLLLLBeTeng).
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6.11 Impairment of Assets (AS - 28)

The fixed assets, mainly immovable properties, furniture fittings, the required
indications prescribed in AS 28, not being met with, in the opinion of the
management, there is no impairment of any asset of the Bank.

6.1 [Beveownes OENSZIHSET WPEALIDTE JEDFLT CIEFNSHIHHE, SETCUNLLISGET, SHMESWEDD 2860
asmeeLILLBeTen AMGHSET SHMERILILLTSESTE Bianssder sESHIULQ aHSO6N®m OFTSSID

LS emLILicledemed.

6.12 Contingent Liabilities (AS - 29)
The details of provisions and contingencies, contingent liabilities, the movement of
provisions on NPA’s and depreciation on investment which are considered material
are disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements.
6.12 9g680s6T HMID aSTLMT OFSHT, aHTLNIMDO CHEIL OLMMILILIGET, QUHEUTL FLLTS
sLeiaeT Bsnen @gsSGsafld UL IHDEISST, ASS@aeT Wanem Gsuionemd GuIED wpasw
elugriser HBemer Siflsenaseafied O feliasiiLL Bereng.
6.13 Movement of Provisions for Contingent Liabilities

(Amount in Lakhs)
1121.00

Balance as on 01.04.2014
1.4.201460 @BLIL

Provided during the year Nil
SeeumLDd QEwlILLL R8650

Amount used during the year Nil
SevaumLd 2 LGWNSLLEGSSHL O\5Tems
Reversed during the year Nil

egi6S 8mbE SEDL aSsUULLE
Balance as on 31.03.2015
31.03.201560 LY

1121.00

6.14 Transfers to Depositor Education and Awareness Fund (DEAF)

Particulars Current Year | Previous Year
Opening balance of amount transferred to DEAF 0.00 Nil
Add: Amounts transferred to DEAF during the year 3704.88 Nil
Less: Amounts reimbursed by DEAF towards claims 0.12 Nil
Closing Balance of amounts transferred to DEAF 3704.76 Nil

6.15 Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure : The bank has a board approved
policy dated 05.08.2014 on Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure.
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6.16 Liquidity Coverage Ratio

As Banks are required to disclose information on their LCR in their Annual Financial
statements under Notes to Accounts starting with the financial year ending March 31,
2015, the LCR related information based on simple averages of monthly
observations for the quarter ending March 2015 only is furnished below

LCR Disclosure Template — Quarter ending March 2015
( Rs.in Crore)
, Total Unweighted | Total Weighted
Particulars Value (Aven%ge) Value (Avgrage)
High Quality Liquid Assets '
Total High Quality Liquid Assets
1| (HQLA) 1890.18 1844.22
Cash Outflows
Retail deposits and deposits from
2 | small business customers, of which: 15974.65 1395.30
(i) Stable deposits 4043.51 202.18
(i) | Less stable deposits 11931.14 1193.12
| Un.secfured wholesale funding, of 1158.02 63852
3 | which:
Operational deposits (all
(i) counterparties) 13.15 1.75
) Non-operatl_onal deposits (all 1144.87 636.77
(ii) counterparties)
(i) | Unsecured debt 0.00 0.00
4 | Secured wholesale funding 524.25 6.50
5 | Additional requirements, of which 0.00 0.00
Outflows related to derivative :
exposures and other collateral 0.00 0.00
(i) requirements
Outflows related to loss of funding
(i) on debt products 0.00 0.00
(i) | Credit and liquidity facilities 0.00 0.00
6 | Other contractual funding obligations 2888.78 203.01
7 | Other contingent funding obligations 4095.28 1609.68
8 | TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 24640.98 3853.01
Cash Inflows
9 | Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos) -286.03 0.00
Inflows from fully performing 1923.97 611.98
10 | exposures
11 | Other cash inflows 1626.71 949.20
12 | TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 3136.71 1561.18
Total Adjusted
Value
21 | TOTAL HQLA 1844.22
22 | TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS 2291.83
23 | LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 80.4693%
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Qualitative disclosure about LCR::

The main drivers of LCR Results:

LCR is computed as a % of stock of HQLA to the net cash outflows over the next 30
calendar days. The LCR promotes short-term resilience of banks to potential liquidity
disruptions by ensuring that they have sufficient high quality liquid assets (HQLAs) to

survive an acute stress scenario lasting for 30 days.

For all three months, i.e., January to March’15, Bank's LCR has been more than the
minimum regulatory requirement of 60% for 2015 calendar year and LCR of the bank for the
quarter ending March’15 stood at 80.47%.

The bank is having an adequate stock of unencumbered high-quality liquid assets
(HQLA) that can be converted easily and immediately in private markets into cash to
meet liquidity needs for a 30 calendar day liquidity stress scenario.

The net cash outflows for the next 30 days has been arrived at after deducting the
cash inflows from the outflows for the period. The inflows and outflows have been
arrived at based on RBI prescribed haircuts and run-off factors.

Composition of HQLA

The Level 1 Assets of our bank comprises of Cash in hand & ATM, Excess CRR and
SLR and MSF (2% on NDTL). Level 1 asset is the main driver of HQLA,
contributing around 92% in the total HQLA of the Bank.

Level 2A and Level 2B assets are well within the cap of 40% and 15% of the stock of
HQLA respectively after the required haircut.

Corporate Bonds not issued by a Bank/Financial/NBFC which have been rated AA-
or above by an Eligible Credit Rating Agency have been classified under Level 2A
assets. Similarly shares not issued by a Bank/FI/NBFC which have been rated not
lower than BBB- have been classified under level 2B Assets.

Outflows & Inflows:

Deposits are the main source of funds for the Bank comprising around 86% of total
liabilities.

Currency mismatch in LCR::

LCR is expected to be met and reported in a single currency. The bank is not having
significant liabilities and HQLAs in any foreign currency.

Description of the degree of centralization of liquidity management and
interaction between the group’s units:

The Bank does not belong to any group and does not have any associate,
subsidiaries, joint venture, etc.

7. The amount of advances for which intangible securities such as charge over rights
licences, authority etc., has been taken as collateral security and the value of such
collateral security @~ ———- NIL ------

7. 2_HeuslLGSHS (PG a&ng,gjésasso)én 2_rflemioser, SigInPE6T, HSSTIMHIBET, LDHDEDEUSEET FFLITES
EMEUSHE! QULPTRIBUI BHLEOTEHET FJHILSEODED.
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8. The remuneration payment to Managing Director is subject to approval at the
Annual General Meeting.

8.[fifauns SWaEHIHHE QIPRISUILLL eafuibd Sheoor® OUNGIGELL ST QUUSRIHE 2 LLILL S

9. Pending finality of industry level bipartite settlement, a sum of Rs.14.76 crores is
provided towards estimated liability for revision of salary due to employees till the
financial year 2014-15. '

9. amBsasNSld exflursepssnar Snsrll 2ol QUUBSLD Baienauie 2 ereng. 2014-20156 2erbut
NHDEHeoEd FOHUGLD AUTNILLSSTS ob.14.76 Camp @FIESE aslwiULBeTeng.

10. The Bank held its 87" Annual General Meeting on 06-01-2010 and thereafter no
Annual General Meeting has been held pursuant to the stay made by the Hon’ble
High Court of Madras in a Writ Petiton No.11159 of 2011, filed by a shareholder
against RBI and the Bank. M/s. Suri & Co, Chartered Accountants, which were
appointed as Statutory Auditors in the 87" Annual General Meeting resigned as
Statutory Auditors of the Bank after completion of four years and M/s. Maharaj N R
Suresh And Co, Chartered Accountants, have been appointed as Auditors of the
Bank in terms of the provisions of Banking Regulations Act, 1949 and as approved
by the Reserve Bank of India in their letter dated 10" October 2014.

0.l 8705 QELTHIT OUNGEGWILLD 06.01.2010 ey BLESILLLE. Oigen L6
UELTHS] OLNEGEGWSsLLD, 8 URGSWT 6ssemer e wibdvsmsden 2010 OSMIGHS aQIPES
aer 115960 eflgsalurL @epibame FeL o sgnefienug, BHLEsLULeeeme. Smauneriser.gh &G
LLLWISERIGETENTSET, 87615 QUBLIHEST OLNGEGW sallgded BuifisaiurL et ieuiseafer gredemmonene
WESS SEAUNETIEET.ADTINE 66 ObT.6006 MM CaN, LLLLSIESTaTTE kil SURIGWPSIDFF LD
19496ir efifmefien Ligud, LNy Meie amdulsr @UUsH agsb G5 10.10.2014 Liud Sewllémewnert
semna BuIslGELLILL 6.

11. In respect of certain branches/offices where additional information was required,
the data available at Controlling/Head office was considered.

1l o SRANEET/SIQSIOHESST FDUBSILLL saBSo SaasT CHMAIGEELD LIsSSH Saemip Higaiesd
Db geveny sLGILME SigaeshsiEbs OuDLLLL duphiss ghpsasTeETeTLLLEN.

12. Previous year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to conform to
this year's classification.

12, UYWL CUBLEHS saUEGEHT SdabLHEES @SHIGUNGLIN GCoemaunar  SeTeBE o
SiepLb&sLILIL(BeTemeT.

13. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees in the Financial
Statements.

13. OENEDEE6T LML SHuiNLD Sleneysd Fbas rBESLILILBeTeTer.

sd/-H S Upendra Kamath

Managing Director & CEO
sd/-B. Prabaharan  sd/-S.R. Aravind Kumar sd/- P.Mahendravel sd/- T. Rajakumar
Director
sd/-K.N Rajan sd/-K.V Rajan sd/- A.Shidambaranathan
sd/- S.Sundar sd/-V.V.D.N. Vikraman sd/-P.Yesuthasen sd/-S.Selvan Rajadurai
Directors Directors Directors Chief General Manager
sd/-T.Prabhakar sd/-M.Gunasekaran sd/-S.Kandavelu - sd/-N.Devadas
General Manager General Manager General Manager General Manager
sd/- C.S.Deepak Vide our report of even date attached
Company Secretary For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.
FRN No. 01931S
' Chartered Accountants
Thoothukudi sd/-N.R Jayadevan

01.06.2015 ' Partner (M.No.23838)
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Auditors Report
To
The Shareholders
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the attached financial
statements of the Tamilnad Mercantile Bank
Limited (the “Bank”), which comprise the Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2015 and the Profit and Loss
account and the cash flow statement for the year then

ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Incorporated in these financial statements are the
returns of 14 branches / offices audited by us, 416
branches/ offices audited by branch auditors.

Management's Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements =~

" The Bank's Board of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companiés Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to
preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and cash flows of the Bank in
accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance

of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies,
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

sofidanaswineniseien onlibamse:

UG ST 6T
SUOPHTEH CLOTHIML 60 6umIE!
o)) HMBDH6IT LESHT68

He0ND

1.853IL a1 BeneumdbaliLl Beten  SOPHTE
Quiseian e eumHuler HHBmew DIHMBB6I
oEIEeNTed  FHewldbens  OFuwi Gereng. - B
31.03.2015 oeim @mUY HenevsGBilL  LBHID
simpy  CasuLal  WYRAdLES B
WITEwTgBHTE @6V B HEWihE), LIRILILINGHES
OPfHms, (Phd HeHE OBBI(LPmDBEET LOBBID
Um  elendamismenud o elenLsSg Bameu
AMIB6NTEY Hewiibens GFUwWILLL 14 Hlevense,
smageoll Lfley, B85 Seeeskse wigh I
Sl b BLLITETHENTE0 Hewldbend QgL 416
demensened(Bbd  GuplL  Spfidamasefen
SILILINLUT6D SIeNLOHSIGIT6TEIT.

134 (5) &

Ppleuertiset  FULD 2013 Wifley
OarhsaiuL(Beren  alUIRSEHSES SUSSBHIGD
QurmIt] SLGD.Bmer HHMHenew WHTer ©_aHenLo
oBEID  CEMWLTET  UTTaaiaLL CBTHEHHBSI.
HONSEIIG (POBHETS GUTHIUTE EHAHuTaled

IBRIOETATAMUULLSBG  gBU,  BliSHlene
Qwebdmenr  BBID euhBuler v LTUI6Y
SNEME B,  BIBIUGTRISET  (HWHE)
algdlser 2014 Ufley 133(7)0 OEBTHSHSLILIL BoiTen
BHS W0 CBBI(PMmBHEDHHE LUl [H 2 66l
amaEwlear  CsTHEIBEmen  UTHISTUILSBSTHLD,
Guorggsmet  HEILBlUSBSTHD 1OBBID  BFHT
wopBshxeailed @HHH  SHUUSBHTHOLD,
Gumgiomen  BeWIh@G  IUTRIEMET  LIFTOFLILGI
BWHGHT GUp uTEIi SLEWD. o flu SeansdlLed
Qaratenasmer  OFfHOSHSHH0 OB BID
QFweLBHSHIFHE0, (WPQaIEeT WBEBID  HTBHH6I
BwmuoTerdTe wBpId alCuswTaSTE E)hHSH60,
2 Lyp Bl& SLGUUTLIQENST  aIQeUeMLOSS6D,
QFweLBHSHIHEL LOBWID  PHliTudHSHe0,  Beneu
dpuure QFweOUL®,  Sevellwd  BmID
WWMLWTT  &H6W & Bl ed U D6 & 6mer
o pFHoFidamear. Seeu B DHmeosiiibms
SWIT] Q&g e o i em 1M ML
QeuafiliueLWTer UTTemel 2_enL WSTHaD LBHILD
Gomgly  SIELVG  HeUBIHENTED  GBLGLD  SHeumTer
Sfbamauied BmheH HTHBBSI.
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Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. We
have taken into account the provision of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the rules made
there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
the standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(1) of theAct. Those Standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the Bank's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the
bank has in place an adequate internal financial
control system over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. -

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

SHenllGenSWTN]  OLITEILILIB6NT:

amIBeNE  SHewlldemasuiler  cpsuld,
pdpme  opdmsula gl
QauefiuBSHBIeug  GTRIB6NHI }' QuTmI] — SLGL.
Bopats  gHUBSBILLL D
al Faallaiug, smisomsiHs sl

8565
B(HSH DI B m6N
FLLID
o L UBSHSILLCouemigws,  FLLLQUITET  QSHIGS,
FMGABHON, SHNSMBBHMEOBET  SELIIBEND
Qaren® BB Bmd Saulboms GFuigeTCanid.
grLfley 143 (1) e S GamedeoLiL Beiten

g,
Qaw glei Conmid . olal um BTN

(1p6» 13 & 6V 61 BIE &6 — HlHME
& el & M &
& 60t &b 6 & L) 6 6ot
Beion

Hened&  LBLUTS

AUMT(PDBEH6T,  [BIEIHE
FULOLG  CoweonBpieuser  (peold,
SN SnBHET 2 _EWiemID
@@mrrgmg, salgwicuen) 2 BIHCFUIHIOBTETIMS
IO BIH SIS ST |

S GBS, BBV Siflbmssered
GeueluiLiiul L OFHTenas®sl LOBHID - HHEILSHMEN
2 pigl
SM6NIOUBIISBETH
LGS BU®D
AN(PMBHMET  FHEWH HEDBUITEN],
ypibiisbeors HFBeme spfidamasmen GeseliuiiBL
GuTBL®, SHpeomiey Qs  SoTalbaEBy.
Bwruorer B Spfismasmen GeefiullBl
GUTBL® Floean  GopGsra Geier
o [HLEIUTE (popsmeT SHhHIB CETami,
GLEONGG SEHS STMENS  BOLPOBESET
STl GEILGABEH. SHMNSMSWTHIG  DieuTasLd
OpH B St
aeig’  WEHIIG  QFUIHeD,
LE:RNR{CY: Y olon

Qswig OQameTeugBaTaT  FTEH

Qawev

BanoTa
I (0] 10 G

ULl LPEBHENETT

o a6 &Sl

G OaTeT@pld  HD S
QLIT(H & SHLOTGTEHGULLIT
B uTdg S&r 5w & a|wed
FUTfSSed  BDID
oI & 60 & & M6 LD

SOASG BB
SLTTUID &I
S ALMB®B 266N SBHLSTSLD.

BIIG6T GBOSTEHIL  HEllbme  CImIB6T
BMHHHES 5GHS BBNHBMEN SjellSHBSI.

uny & &6
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Opinion SMSHBIOT:
oumidl  sLGUUTG FLLID 1949 B

In our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanation given
to us, the said accounts together with the notes
thereon give the information required by the
Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as well as the
Companies Act, 2013, in the manner so required for
the banking companies and give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Bank as at 31st March
2015, and its profit and cash flows for the year then
ended. |

i In the case of the Financial statement, of the
state of affairs of the Bank asat March 31,2015
11. In the case of the Profit and Loss Account of

the Profit for the year ended on that date, and
1. In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the

cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

i, We draw attention to Note No. 10 to the
financial statement with regard to our appointment
as Statutory Auditors of the Bank in terms of the
Reserve Bank of India approval dated 10th October
2014 pending conducting of Annual General
Meeting of the Bank.

ii. =~ Wedraw attention to Note 6.9 to the financial
statements, regarding deferred tax assets of Rs. 7.69
Crores on the diminution in the fair value of Standard
restructured accounts, as the realisability of the same
is considered certain. Our opinion is not qualified in

respect of this matter

Hipeuen UL 20136@ CHMeuWITET HHeUE0HMET
Gued GBILILL SWIBGH6N WBBILD  GBILILD6T,
amd  BpeIahBEDEE CoHmeuwter aenasuisy,
o_ewienownseyd GevefliliuemLwiraeyd 31  1oTf&
2015681  elleuBTIRIGMEMUD  (IPQHS  SLERTQBSHTEN

euTL LOBEILD LswTumensulid efeufldsna.

i. Hablensv ofidemnasulen L, eumiduler 31
& 20156 afleusmy HlensolLT®

i, GUTL Bl Semisder L, O Hefed

SLWIB (pigelBaEmet eOmLILD

ii. Uer UMeYy Semadlen Lg, SibsbTeRsd

SWIB (PgalBsmer Liewr LimUiey

OIS 6 (L& BUISHSHIeULD:
i. amgular  FlLfglwurer  solldms
WTenjsentas  emibenen  HUSSIULL HBST6

PUUHL UTISW FFfel eumidmed 10 ©BGLTUT
201460 eoumidufler Bleemeuuigpieiien  euHLAHIT
CUTHIGLY &l BpOLOUDGHEG o Lul®
m@rﬁ&UuLL@j. Bg SamEHGHEHEBTE  GHBIULIED
1081lD cTERTENT6L 2 _6oNeNd 2 _MEH6T HEUMBIBES
QasTemi® eumSGBILD.

ii. oy Syl sabEGHeNaT  DHLILS
Gopelsd @5.7.69 Camgdsten HeTemMiGUITLUILILL
auflQgTdhgiIHar,
DEFLOTNSHTE  SHSLUUBUSTEL GOULLS. B
SMSSHDBEpEHETO  GPIIed 69D  eramTanied
© _MEeT  HeUMSIMS
AmSCBTD. Bg FOUBSITS [HIRIGET (&6

)& BH6WI & (G BH61T BU@GH6VTEUSI

DI (91 [0F:) Q@Tewi(p

BTN 606M6V.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

L. The Balance Sheet and the Profit and
Loss Account have been drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of Section 29 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

2. As required sub section 3 of Section
30 of the Banking Regulation Act 1949 and the
appointment letter dated 31.10.2014 we report that:

a) We have obtained all the information
and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of our
audit and have found them to be satisfactory. ,

b) The transactions of the Bank, which
have come to our notice, have been within the
powers of the Bank

C) The returns received from the offices
and branches of the Bank have been found adequate
for the purposes of our audit.

d) Financial accounting system of the
Bank are centralized and therefore accounting
returns for the purpose of preparing financial
statements are not required to be submitted by the
branches. We have visited 14 branches for the
purpose of our audit.

3. Further as required by Section 143(3)
of the Companies Act, 2013 we further report that:
We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanation which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

a) The Statement of affairs and Profit
and Loss Account and cash flow statement dealt with
by us in the report are in agreement with the books of
account and with the audited returns from the

" branches.
b) In our opinion, proper books of
account as required by law have been kept by the
Bank so far as appears from our examination of those

books.
c) In our opinion the aforesaid financial

statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

glLTauonpd @uriid(en alaguimige e
EMD

1. iy PHeed@GBilyn, Georu Hadlé

SSGD aEIE QUEIGWeBF FLLID 19496 Lifley

29 wigh swoueisst sl 20136 Uifla) 13361

L SwmfléaliuL Heiera.
2. aurid &l GUUTL® gL 19496 Lfley 30

o L iifley Gaemeuuieguio  31/10/2014
Cpui' L Puwenr SgSHHHe LG [BIBISET

SPlalILg!:
a) RGG SWEMEEGS CHEUTET 616060T

wpm  eallend SmIGMETUD
serelpe  Gupn

FBUIHSTOTAOTSE SBHSHTE SHSISCHILD.
b) amEaE saaSIDG obe bl

pLagsmEEe  amduld  SIPEMHESEHSS

3o

& 6160 & N 6TTUL|LD

@ 5 em6u i e Simal

o 'L B o siernar.

¢) devense wHED B SigeuesHGIGHHSH
QUL L SHaeodeT MRS  HNSMBED
GurgITeEHTE E(HHHE.

d) amduld HIHBM sEISBWD (YD
LWILESSIUL Geitengl. aaiGa  abiddlamendei,
BB opfdms  HUTfLFLIaISDH ST
semibd e alugmismen Fojliss Cheamen Bedamsv.
ErEseT 14 doasase Osap Smibms
QFuigienGermib.

3. Boeens L 2013 Ofle), 143 (3) &
Gomeausafar L BiRseT Gogubd SEelivg:
ahseT  SafemasE GCHMAUTET  HBeUCLSEI

SOMGSID  EEeT  BIS@BEGD, 2L
Osfls PHospmscd e LUl Gupiul
2 _s6lengl.

) GEIGET6) WML aleusTIEIEEhSST6N
SIME®S, TUBOIL SfiGmae WHEID LemLmiiey
sfsms Syume ekl dmansefsd SHbS!
Qupi'L  goisme opflsmsuled  SHbSHID,
aunigufest LgSehsaled  BmbSID
aBh&ESUULLG.

b) emiEE BHSSIILY HBUIG LSSSEISHMEN
SPMTIIHSH0 ki gmmeséznm gL alFHsendE
ComeadBaBpLy FHLTE @eudHIleTerdi.

C) samsdugibsmen Hyeuen s LD 2014, alg 7,
Nifley o LuL®

HEIHE)

1336 & (W &t O\ & 7 601 6ot

BHBmooPsmse SWTieai’ b 2 6lengl.
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d) The reports on the accounts of the
branches audited by branch auditors have been dealt
with in preparing our report in the manner considered
necessary by us.

e) On the basis of the written
representation received from the directors and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2015 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164

(2) of the Act.
f) With respect to the other matters to be

include in the Auditor's report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanation given
tous

i The bank has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements - Refer Note 6.9

ii. There has been no delay in
transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

4, Being Banking Company, the
Company (Auditor's Report) Order, 2015 issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Sub-
section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, is not
applicable.

For MAHARAJ N R SURESH AND CO.,
Chartered Accountants

FRN No. : 01931S

Sd/-

N. R. JAYADEVAN
PARTNER

Membership No.023838

Thoothukudi
1.6.2015

d) amis  denensefled  Sloujseiess  Senen
selbamswmenjsmen  CQatemi® Hwny CFuls
Semenaeflell HEMIBSHHN RIS DPlbens SWITT

QFuiw 1B SISO BTaTEMILL L F).

e) amduler  QUEGSHIBET  eIGSHICLPEOLOTS
QaTBHH, BUSSHT GPeuTed Lgley QFuiw L
saaueday 201510 eumLLd TFEF 31b CxhFHuied
6h% @ BUSSBHHLD SoLeNSeT FLL Sdear Lifley

164 (2)e0 @PUILOU Betenr el FHdeflenr  Lig
SGHWBBarTes  &HS  Ceewngw  Heneouled
Be0emev.

f) soidms wBEID HewldamsuTeryaendbaTe

Dmiewer gL 2014 ol 11ég GCxemeauwmen

afl a9 Wisi & 61T MG GO, 616 HEHD &

CaThs aslul Geaien  afl6ns &mi &arfl el (B &

(BB BLILIL(BH6IT6IT CTRIGENSH HHSHSHIBDH6T QLGLD.

1) emdulear Baumeaulgeien aups@GHHen B
Heneoufled elelleuTmnl FHThEBHMS GHBUBHS W66
aaiug  Blg Pl  gpideaulsd  @GoilniL
U BelTengy). @My 6.993 LmaéaEalib.

1) WFeSLLmeny sevall wBGID UTHIGTIY BHHSE
Qess Geuaiigw GFTens gFfwrs FHmogidlemn
UEISILITED [HF BewibBIHE WIHBULGSDSI.

4. wHHW s FLL e Lfley 143 2 L1fley 11ar
S eupRESILLL Bpeuet 2 $FHre] 2015, eumis)
D DIOITHISEHEE CUTHHSHTE.

BT aaiey] &8rad Sewn. Csr
& 601 &M BLITENTT BT
ugeystemt : 019318

guubd N.R.Onuwlseaier
Uiy L_6o1y
o .elemr. 23838

SITHEISlg
1.6.2015
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

Registration Details Registration No.| I ! I ° | 0 | SJ State Code

Balance Sheet Date l 311 | l 0 I 3| 2|01 ﬂ
(Rupees in Thousands) (Rupees in Thousands)
Capital raised during the Year
Public Issue Nl I|L Rights Issue N I I
Bonus Issue , NjI|L Private Placement N I|
Position of mobilisation and Deployment of funds
Total Liabilities [olT1494521 Total Assets [2o]7149452 1
Sources of funds
Paid-up Capital 2845 Reserves and Surplus 205 29 2
Secured Loans : Unsecured Loans 20516902384
Application of funds
Net Fixed Assets 1207304 4 Investments 716/ 71 1 O §
Net Current Assets 2104861422 Miscellaneous Expenditure| NIT
Accumulated Losses NI L
Performance of Company
Turnover 31102 74 137
Total Expenditure 215669 41 8
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 50604719 +
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 3794019 t
Earning per share in Rs. - 113338
Dividend Rate % 1 6 0 0 0
Generic names of three principal products / services Item Code No. : NOT APPLICABLE
of the Company (as per monetary terms) Product Description : Banking Company
sd/-H S Upendra Kamath
. Managing Director & CEO
sd/-B. Prabaharan  sd/-S.R. Aravind Kumar sd/- P.Mahendravel sd/- T. Rajakumar
; Director
sd/-K.N Rajan sd/-K.V Rajan sd/- A.Shidambaranathan
sd/-S.Sundar sd/- V.V.D.N. Vikraman sd/-P.Yesuthasen sd/-S.Selvan Rajadurai
Directors Directors Directors ’ - Chief General Manager
sd/-T.Prabhakar sd/-M.Gunasekaran sd/-S.Kandavelu sd/-N.Devadas
General Manager General Manager General Manager General Manager
sd/- C.S.Deepak Vide our report of even date attached
Company Secretary For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.
) FRN No. 01931S
Thoothukudi ‘ Chartered Accountants
01.06.2015 sd/-N.R Jayadevan

Partner (M.N0.23838)
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TAMILNAD MERCANTILE BANK LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2015

Year ended Year ended
31.03.2015 31.03.2014
Cash profit generated from operations | Rs. In thousands
Net profit for the year 37,94,019 30,07,669
Add/Deduct
Loss/(Profit) on sale of assets 287 1,159
Depreciation on Fixed assets 3,37,553 2,29,371
Provisions & Contingencies
(incl. Deferred tax
adjustments) 22,79,650 31,22,780
Total 64,11,509 63,60,979
Cash flow from operating assets & liabilities II
Increase/Decrease in liabilities
Deposits 300,41,792 242,18,720
Other liabilities & Provisions (1,04,035) (30,00,531)
Increase/Decrease in assets
Advances (219,20,962) (88,78,600)
Investments (89,92,147) (142,36,187)
Other assets (22,50,089) (16,00,184)
Total (32,25,441) (34,96,782)
A. Net cash flow from operating activities | + il 31,86,068 28,64,197
Cash flow from investing activities
Sale/disposal of fixed assets 4,118 6,426
Purchase of fixed assets (4,46,161) (4,06,600)
B . Net Cash flow from investing activities (4,42,043) (4,00,174)
Cash flow from financing activities
Interim Dividend incl.tax (3,07,195) (2,99,517)
Borrowings (21,92,056) 89,993
C . Net Cash flow from financing activities (24,99,251) (2,09,524)
Total cash flow during the year (A+B+C) 2,44,774 22,54,499
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 01-04-2014
Cash & bank balances with RBI 103,39,027 91,76,640
Balances with banks & money
at call & short notice 37,64,941 26,72,829
Total 141,03,968 118,49,469
Cash & Cash equivalents as on 31-03-2015
Cash & bank balances with RBI 127,16,468 103,39,027
Balances with banks & money at call & short notice 16,32,274 37,64,941
Total 143,48,742 141,03,968
Increase or decrease in cash flow 2,44,774 22,54,499

sd/-B. Prabaharan

sd/-K.N Rajan

sd/-S.Sundar
Directors

sd/-T.Prabhakar
General Manager

sd/- C.S.Deepak
Company Secretary

Thoothukudi
01.06.2015

sd/-S.R. Aravind Kumar
sd/-K.V Rajan

sd/-V.V.D.N. Vikraman
Directors

sd/-M.Gunasekaran
General Manager

sd/-H S Upendra Kamath
Managing Director & CEO

sd/- P.Mahendravel sd/- T. Rajakumar

Director
sd/- A.Shidambaranathan

sd/-P.Yesuthasen
Directors

sd/-S.Selvan Rajadurai
Chief General Manager

sd/-S.Kandavelu
General Manager

sd/-N.Devadas
General Manager

Vide our report of even date attached
For Maharaj N R Suresh And Co.
FRN No. 019318
Chartered Accountants
sd/-N.R Jayadevan
Partner (M.No.23838)
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Thoothukudi Main

Madurai Main
Sivakasi
Virudhunagar
Nagercoil
Dindigul
Theni
Chennai-21
Vilathikulam
Muhavoor
Kamuthi
Pavoorchatram
Puthiamputhur

Rajakkamangalam

N.Pudukottai
Coimbatore Main
Pudur
Anjugramam
Tiruchirapalli
Chennai G.T
Kommadikottai
Megnanapuram
Yercaud
Kayamozhi
Tirunelveli
Thalakulam

Mullakkadu
Salem
Radhapuram
Tisayanvilai
T.Kallikulam
Vellore
Elayirampannai

Kovilpatti

LIST OF BRANCHES- STATEWISE

35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52

53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68

Pudukottai (035)
Erode
Kumbakonam
Aruppukottai
Kalloorani
Alangulam
Bommidi
Thickanamcode
Thiruvarur
Villupuram
Palliyadi
Verkhizambi
Chinnamanur
Colachel
Agasteeswaram
Eriyodu
Sayalkudi
Siruthondanallur

Prahasapuram
Chennai T.Nagar
Rayagiri
Kanjampuram
Podanur
K.Puthur
Kannankurichi
Ayyalur
Thanjavur
Sonakanvilai
Arumanai
Usilampatti
Vallalnathi
Pannaipuram
Rajapalayam
Tirupur

69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
7
78

79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102

Odaipatti
Kallimandayam
Viralipatti
Pavithrampudur
Pottireddipatti
Vattur

Cuddalore
Govindakudi
Vengadampatti
Karur

Palani

Pollachi

Puliampatti
Edalakudy

Madurai Simmakkal
Mayiladuthurai
Chennai Mount Road
Porulur
Padanthalumoodu
Mayiladumparai
Kappukadu
Kancheepuram
Thoothukudi South
Chengavilai
Vadamalaikurichi
Pandaravilai
Varaghur
Chockalingapuram
M.M.Kovilur
Madurai Chinthamani
Dr.Nanjappa Road
Chennai T.T.K.Road
Udumalpet
Tiruchengodu
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103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136

LISTOFBRANCHES-STATEWISE
Karaikudi 137 Kulasekaram 171
Pudukottai (128) 138 Perundurai 172
Namakkal 139 Bodinayakanur 173
Ramanathapuram 140 Paramakudi 174
Sattur 141 Virudhachalam 175
Thiruvannamalai 142 Pillayarpﬁram‘ 176
Nagapattinam 143 Aranthangi 177
Coimbatore R.S.Puram 144 Surandai 178
Dharmapuri 145 Bhavani 179
Sankarankoil 146 Ranipet 180
Mettupalayam 147 Tindivanam 181
Chennai Aminjikarai 148 Krishnagiri 182
Marthandam 149 Arakonam 183
Hosur 150 Sivakasi, A.J.College 184
Chennai Tambaram 151 Panruti | 185
Palayamkottai 152 Sholinganallur 186
Thirumangalam 153 Shenkottai 187
Sivaganga 154 Perumanallur 188
Cumbum _ 155 Rasipuram 189
Sipcot, Thoothukudi 156 Sathyamangalam 190
Chennai Perambur 157 Sriperumbudur 191
Chennai Thiruvanmiyur 158 Kunnathur 192
Valliyoor 159 Poonamalle 193
Chengalpattu 160 Valasaravakkam 194
Chennai Anna Nagar 161 Kottivakkam 195
Madurai Tallakulam 162 Maduravoyal 196
Gobichettipalayam 163 Thiruvallur 197
Chennai Purasawalkam 164 Pallavaram 198
Thuckalay 165 Gudiyatham 199
Gingee 166 Guduvancheri 200
Tiruchendur Road 167 Melmaruvathur 201
Kovilpatti Pasuvanthanai Road 168 Andipatti 202
Vadakkankulam 169 Palamedu 203
Alagappapuram 170 Maraimalainagar 204

LR R
TR R
S AR et «”:":‘fﬁr K U

Neelambur
Annur
Vandavasi
Madipakkam
Naravarikuppam
Porur

Pettai Rural
Thiruthangal
Kavundampalayam
Chitlapakkam
Medavakkam
Chatrapatti
Melur
Chengam
Somanur
Sankaraperi
Natham
Thuraiyur
Sathankulam
Sankari
Avinashi
Kaveripattinam
Elampillai
Panagudi
Ariyalur
Punnaiyapuram
Arcot
Authoor
Manapparai
Udangudi
Mudhukulathur

Thiruthuraipoondi
Kuthukkalvalasai
Poovanthi
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205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234

235
236
237
238

Katpadi
Veppadai
Koolipatti
Bellaipalayam
Othakuthirai
Therekalputhur
Kanyakulam
Oddanchatram
Kallakurichi
Kariapatti
Kulathur
Thirunagar
Asesham
Kalakkad
Chekkadu
Perambalur
Adayalampattu
Chinnalapatti
Pallipalayam
Dasanaickenpatti
Pachanampatti
Uchipuli
Checkanurani
Bikshandarkoil
Devakottai
Tharamangalam
Kilambi |
Dharapuram
Harur
Sevagampatti

Chikkandarchavadi
T.Saveriyarpuram
Chinnappampatti
Soolakkarai

LISTOFBRANCHES-STATEWISE
239 Coonoor 273
240 Pattukottai 274
241 Ami 275
242 Arumuganeri 276
243 Vembar 277
244 Chidambaram 278
245 Senapathipalayam 279
246 Aralvaimozhi 280
247 Attur 281
248 Kadayanallur 282
249 Pasuvanthanai 283
250 Komarapalayam 284
251 Thiruvengadam 285
252 Pallagoundenpalayam 286
253 Madampalayam 287
254 Villapuram 288
255 Srivilliputhur 289
256 Madurantakam 290
257 Kalangani 291
258 Athipatti 292
259 Mathvarayapuram 293
260 Tirupathur 294
261 Reddiarpatti 295
262 Pappakudi 296
263 Venkateswarapuram 297
264 Vilampatti 298
265 Ambur 299
266 Iravathanallur 300
267 Thippanampatti 301
268 Edappadi 302
269 Senneerkuppam 303
270 Sulur 304
271 Kannicheriputhur 305
272 Sivathaiyapuram 306

Puthagaram
Kulayankarisal
Peraiyur

Vandiyur
Kuruvikulam
Vazhkkai
Poravachery
Lalgudi

Kanakkan Kadu
Mettur
Somayampalayam
Servaikaranpatti
Goundampalayam
Sikkarayapuram -
Tiruchendur
Allampatti
Ayapakkam
Rameswaram
Poonjeri
Malayandipatnam
Siruvalur
Saravanampatti
Thoothukudi Port Trust
Avadi
Thiruchirapalli, Thillainagar
Madurai S.S.Colony
Karungal

Kulithalai
Ammapalayam
Neelankarai

Pudu Gummidipoondi
Kazhugumalai
Veerasigarhani

Vedaranyam
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LISTOFBRANCHES-STATEWISE
307 Pallikaranai 8 Kottayam
308 Gudalur 9 Kalamassery
309 Ayyampalayam 10 Pappanamcode
310 Ponneri 11 Pathanamthitta
311 Dharmaapuri 12 Kayankulam
312 Ariyakulam 13 Chavakkad
313 Sithurajapuram 14 Kanhangad
314 Keela Eral KARNATAKA
315 Kallikudi 1 Bangalore City
316 Kangeyam 2 Gulburga
317 Palladam 3 Bangalore Cantt. .
318 Vickramasingapuram 4 Mangalore
319 Nerkundram 5 Hassan
320 Vengatadampatti 6 Anckal
321 Kilakarai 7 Nelamangala
322 NGO Colony, Tirunelveli 8 Hebbagodi
323 Coimbatore,Ganapathy 9 Kanakapura
324 Coimbatore,Singanallur 10 Yelahanka
325 Regunathapuram 11 Yadgiri
326 Ambasamudram 12 Ramanagara
327 Kelambakkam 13 Channapatna
328 Tenkasi 14 Chamarajanagara
329 Sirkali
330 SME Branch,Thoothukudi WADHYAPRADESH
KERALA 1 Pithampur
1 Tirupuram 2 Dhar
2 Kottugal PUNJAB
3 Thiruvananthapuram 1 Ludhiana
4 Kollam
5 Emakulam
6 Kozhikode
7 Chenganachery

GUJARAT

Ahmedabad
Surat

Unjha

Vadodara

Surat, Ring Road
Sidhpur

Bardoli
Himatnagar

O 0 0 N W B W N e

Vapi

[a—
(o)

Sachin

[am—
[—

Deesa

TELANGANA

1 Hyderabad

2 Secunderabad

3 Rikab Gunj, Hyderabad
4 Miryalguda

5 Suryapet

NEW DELHI

1 Delhi
2 Shahdara, Delhi
3 Karol bhagh, Delhi
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ANDHRA PRADESH MAHARASHTRA UTTAR PRADESH

, _ 1 Ghaziabad

1 Guntur 1 Mumbai Mandvi

2 Vijayawada 2 Mumbai Vashi

3 Nellore 3 Ichalkaranji

4 Rajamundry 4 Pune UNION TERRITORIES

5 Tadepalligudam 5 Mumbai Andheri (E) 1 Pondicherry

6 Vishakapatnam 6 Mumbai Sion 7 Karaikkal

7 Kakinada 7 Andheri(West), Mumbai 3 Silvassa

8 Tirupathi 8 Sewri,Mumbai 4 Port Blair

9 Kurnool 9 Chembur,Mumbai

10 Nandyal 10 Mumbai Dharavi WEST BENGAL

11 Gollapudi 11 Boisar 1 Kolkata

12 Chebrolu 12 Sukapur

13 Pedanandipadu 13 Vita

14 Tanuku 14 Madhavnagar UTTARAKHAND

15 Vinukonda 15 Ratnagiri 1 Roorkee

16 Jaggayyapet 16 Jaysingpur

17 Mandapeta 17 Nanded

18 Chirala 18 Manmad RAJASTHAN

19 Chilakaluripet 19 Chiplun I Bhilwara

20 Narasaraopet ORISSA 2 Bhiwadi

21 Kavali | Cuttack

Total Number of Branches : 430
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PROGRESS AT A GLANCE
(Rupees in lakhs)

Y , : .| No. of
ear Capital | Reserves |Investment | Deposits | Advances | Profit

| Branches
1983 19 134 2064 9269 5338 49 103
1984 19 171 2815 12487 6580 98 106
1085 19 240 3091 13409 6752 90 108
1986 19 337 3915 14556 1345 136 108
1987 19 424 4765 16795 7810 157 108
1988-89 19 576 5473 17792 10820 228 115
1989-90 28 1025 6309 22604 12445 235 115
1990-91 28 1320 9309 | 30906 17257 305 117
1991-92 28 1826 12012 40819 20662 498 117
1992-93 28 2470 15975 54769 28838 665 123
1993-94 28 3874 20912 78897 43210 1036 133
1994-95 28 5528 29306 104404 63412 | 1683 139
1995-96 28 7916 34100 111687 69580 | 2405 139
1996-97 28 11317 49698 125830 74619 | 3420 142
1997-98 28 15107 66238 160445 82547 | 3815 142
1998-99 28 18587 88605 205595 97147 | 3503 144 |-
1999-2000 | 28 22623 | 123899 266453 | 125504 | 4063 157
2000-2001 | 28 27643 | 148532 319807 | 158835 | 5040 160
2001-2002 | 28 33167 181571 372999 | 177266 | 5535 163
2002-2003 | 28 39660 214211 408458 | 195998 | 6376 165
2003-2004 | 28 47654 235371 440427 | 211399 | 8068 171
2004-2005 | 28 55856 | 228557 482688 | 262624 | 8235 172
2005-2006 | 28 65650 | 236194 520287 | 312639 | 10119 173
2006-2007 | 28 75887 | 231641 601988 | 404672 | 10578 183
2007-2008 | 28 85800 | 255354 767026 | 533132 | 12673 200
2008-2009 | 28 98824 | 320719 956604 | 657169 | 15021 213
2009-2010 | 28 114790 | 349919 | 1163930 828761 | 18453 216
2010-2011 | 28 136573 | 376714 | 1379330 | 1075865 | 25090 233
2011-2012 | 28 163456 | 489027 | 1711044 | 1377886 | 31346 280
2012-2013 | 28 202179 | 534827 | 2022381 | 1625599 | 44028 320
2013-2014 | 28 226931 | 677189 | 2264568 | 1714385 | 30077 370
2014-2015 | 28 259403 | 767111 | 2564986 | 1933595 | 37940 430
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Mercantile
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Its always, - Family First
One Family - One scheme
A comprehensive

v Medical Cover
v Life Cover
v Personal Accident Cover

For a Happy Family

Contact our nearest branch for details

Our Vision
To be a progressive bank with Strong brand equity,

enhancing value for all the stake holders through

excellence in performance and good governance.

Our Mission
We shall provide exe
delivery efficiency,

mplary service with highest
based on ethics, honesty and
sincerity with cutting edge technology and

emerge as a truly national bank,

Be a step ahead of life
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